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Selected key consolidated financial data

Preliminary comments

In comphiance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR {as fram the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and
Actiwision Biizzard [as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported tn Vivendr’s Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivendr deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Bhzzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and
October 11, 2013, respectively, 1 e, the date of their effective sale by Vivend:

The adjustments to previously published data are reported in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financral
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 These adjustments were made to alf periods as set out 1 the table of selected key
consolidated financial data below in respect of data from the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Cash Flows

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Consolidated data
Revenues 10089 10252 9597 9084 9152
£8IT 736 637 (1131} 1269 7
Eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shareawners 474 1967 179 2681 2198

of which eamings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivendy SA shareowners {290) 43 {1 565) 571 647
EBITA(a) 999 955 1074 1086 1002
Adjusted net income () 626 454 38 270 514
Financ:a! Net Debt / {Nes Cash Posttion) (a) {4 637} 11097 13419 12027 8073
Total equity 22988 19030 21291 22070 28173

of which Vivends SA shareowners' equity 72 606 17 457 18 325 19447 24 058
Cash flow from operations before caprtal expenditures net (CFFO before capex net) 1086 1139 1139 1205 1251
Capital expenditures net {capex, net) b} (243) (245} (293) {308) (271}
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) {a) 842 894 846 897 980
Cash flow from operations after snterest and incoma tax paid {CFAIT) 421 503 72 826 370
Financial investments 11 244) (107} (1689) {289) {655}
Financial dvestmenis 17 807 3471 0 47205 1484
Drvidends paid with respect to previous fiscal year 1348 {c) 1,325 1245 1731 1724
Por sharg data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 13458 13306 12989 12814 12738
Adjusted net Income par share 045 0.34 024 021 040
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the penod {excluding treasury shares) 13516 13396 13225 12874 12787
Etrity per share attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 1673 1303 1386 151 1881
Dividends per share pard with respact to previous fiscal year 1.00 {c) 100 100 140 140

In millions of euros, number of shares in milhions, data per share in suros

a The non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt}, and Cash flow from operations
(CFFO} should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as
presented in the Consohdated Financial Statements and the related notes, or as descrnbed n this Financial Report, and Vivend
considers that they are relevant ind:cators of the group’s operating and financial performance Each of these indicators s defined in the
appropriate section of this Financial Report or in its Appandix In addition, 1t shoutd be noted that other companies may define and
calculate these indrcators differently from Vivend), thereby atfecting comparability

b  Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

¢ On June 30, 2014, Vivend) SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders from the additional paid-in camital, considered as a
retum of capital distnibution to shareholders
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (£C) 809/2004 {Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for 1ssuers of securities
listed on a regulated market within the European Union (implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the "Prospectus Regulation®), the following items are
Incorporated by reference into this report

e 2013 Financia! Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2013, prepared under IFAS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented ;i pages 172 to 324 of the “Document de Référence” No D 1440355, filed with the French Autonté des
Marchés Financiers {AMF) on Apnl 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the English translation of this "Document de Référence”, and

e 2012 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Audrtors’ Report presented in pages 168 to 319 of the "Document de Référence” No D 13-0170, filed with the AMF on March 18,
2013, and on pages 168 to 319 of the Enghish translation of this “"Document de Référencs”
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I - 2014 Financial Report

Preltminary comments

«  On february 11, 2015, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Having considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation from its meeting held on February 20, 2015, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, as previously
approved by the Managsment Board on February 11, 2015

s The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
with no quahfied opinton The Statutory Audiors’ Report on the Consoftdated Financial Statements 1s included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

« In comphance with IFRS & - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivend:'s Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the
following terms

- Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivendi and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the
sale of GVT As a result, GVT has been reperted in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as a
discontinued operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of
Financtal Position as of December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the hnes “Assets of discontinued businesses” and "Liabilities
associated with assets of discontinued businesses”

- Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Earmings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are reported in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

1 Significant events

11 Significant events in 2014

111 Group’'s Governance

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Shareholders’ Meeting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivend's Supervisary Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders” Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-Reré Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, as Honorary Chatrman The Board appointed Mr Daniel Camus as Chatrman of the Audit Committee and Mr
Philippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committee

The Supervisory Board also appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s currently comprised of Messrs Amaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe and Stéphane Roussel

The Supervisory Board 1s currently comprised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative
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11.2 Sale of SFR

On November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered mnto on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Competition Authority
on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions {see below), Vivendi announced the closing of the combination between SFR and Numencable The
main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €13 5 bithon, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivendi received
€13 366 billion in cash and, on Oecember 3, 2014, Vivendi made a contrbution of
€200 million to the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numencable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated 15 based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes n the net working capital, SFR's net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and 15 subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis in accordance with the contract

Vivend''s interest 1n the combined entity | 20% of Numencable - SFR {publicly-listed)

Altice’s interest in the combined entity Approxmately 60% of Numericable - SFR (approximately 20% free float)

Earn-out Earn-out of €750 m:llion if the EBITDA-Capex aggregate of the combined entity 1s equal to
or higher than €2 illion during any fiscal year, ending not later than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Governance - Minonty representation for Vivendi on the Board of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivend: retaning a 20% interest 1n Numericable - SFR (1 director if Vivend
holds an interest between 10% and 20%}

- Veto nghts on certain exceptiona! matters subject to Vivend: retaining a 20% interest in

Numericable - SFR

Numenicable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Authority an undertaking

not to disclose any strategic information on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV

services, or uitramarine telecommunications markets to Vivend

Standard 180-day lock-up period, tncluding restrictions on any disposal or transfer of

shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the nghts

issue of Numericable Group (on November 20, 2014), at the request of the underwriting

banks

- Lock-up penod until the end of November 2015, after which Vivendi may sell or distnibute
its Numericable - SFR shares, without restrictions, with a night of prionty granted to
Altice {pre-emption nght or nght of first offer)

- Vivend: has agreed not to acquire any Numericable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,
until June 30, 2018

- Subject to Vivendi retaining (ts shares, Altice will have a call option at market value
{subsect to a floor'} on Vivend!'s interest, exercisable in three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%} over
one-month window periods starting on June 1, 2616, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018

- Tag-along nghts for Vivend: «f Altice sells its shares

Liquidity - Lock-up penod

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the
Statement of Financial Position of Vivend: as a distontinued operation The capstal gain on the sale of SFR amounted to £2,378 million {after
taxes), recogmzed in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings under the lme "Eamings from discontinued operations™ Excluding the
disconunuation? of amortization since April 1, 2014, in accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to
£3,459 million (please refer to Note 3 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014}

Recognition of 20% interest in Numericable - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of its interest in SFR to Numencable and recevad €13 166 billion 1 cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numenicable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts Since that date,
Vivend: deconsolidated SFR Given the significant restnctive nature of the commitments given by Vivend) and Numencable - SFR to the
French Competition Authority with respect to all Numencable - SFR's operations, Vivend)'s minority representation on Numericable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivendi by Numenicable - SFR's governance (see above) helps Vivendi

! Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) of Numericable Group's share price over the 20 business days before the closing date {which occurred on November 27 2014)
£€2948 grossed-up at an annual rate of 5% dunng the penod ranging from the closing date until the date of exercise of the call option

Z When an operation 1s discontinued IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation s tangible and intangible assets Therefore for SFR reported as a
discontinued operation since March 31 2014, Vivend) discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resulting in & positive
impact attributable to Vivendr SA shareholders of €1,081 muffion on earmings from discontinued operations from April 1 to November 27 2014
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adequately protect its propnetary interests as a minonty shareholder Vivend: considers that 1t does not have the nght to participate In
Numericable - SFR's financial and operational policy-making processes, according to J1AS 28 Without having a significant influence, the 20%
interest in Numericable - SFR was racognized as an “available-for-sale securities™ in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, in accordance with IAS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 milkton as of December 31, 2014} as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recognized m equity From November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivendi's interest in Numericable - SFR resulted n an unrealized gain of £743 million (before taxes)

1.1.3 Plan to sell GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivendr's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefonica to sell GVT After receving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 st authonized the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterprise value of €7 45 biflion (based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiations were entered into with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction is subject to certain conditions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authonties, and 1s expected to eccur during the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completron date €4 66 billion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes i net working capital, GVT's bank debt {approximately €480 midlion}, as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 millon The net sale price 18 estimated at
approximately €3 75 hillion

Consideration shares 7 4% interest it Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% mnterest {83% voting nights)
Telecom ltalia

Financing Capnal increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction is subject to obtaiming approvals from ANATEL (AgBncia

Nacional de Telecomunicagdes) and CADE (Conselho Administrativo de Defesa EconBmica) in

Brazil, and other conditions customary in this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Liquidity With respect to Vivend)'s interest in the cambined VIVO/GVT entity

- maximum 180 day lock-up perod starting as from the completion date of the
transaction, and

- tag-along rights

Governance No specific governance nghts in VIVO/GVT and Telecom Italia

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earmings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in Statement of Financial Position of Vivend: as a discontinued aperation

114 Sale of Maroc Telecom group

On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered into on November 4, 2013, Vivends sold 11s 53% mterest in Maroc Telecom to Etisalat
and recewved €4,138 million in cash proceeds from the sale after a contractual price adjustment {-€49 million} On the same date, Vivend:
deconsolidated Maroc Telecom and recorded a capital gain of £786 mithon (before taxes and net of costs related to the sale), which 1s
presented under “Earnings from discontinued operations” 1n 2014 The agreements, which are described in Note 3 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, contamed representations and warranties customary to this type of transaction
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115 Canal+ Group
Broadcasting rights for sport events

in 2014, Canak+ Group was awarded broadcasting rights to the foltowing sport events
s the French Professional Soccer League 1, far four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020) the two premium lots for an aggregate amount
of €2,160 million {or €540 mullion per season), and
«  the Champions League for three seasons (2015/2016 to 2017/2018}

On January 14, 2014, Canal+ Group was awarded broadcasting rights for the National French Rugby Championshup “TOP 14" for five seasons
{2014/7015 to 2018/2019) These exciusive rights related to ali of the “TOP 14" matches across all media and all terntones i which the
Canal+ Group operates On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority suspended the agreement between Canal+ Group and the
National Rugby League as from the 2015/2016 season and ruled that a new call for tenders should be organized for the four seasons
{2015/2016 to 2018/2019) Following to this call for tenders carned out in December 2014 and January 2015, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights refated to all of the “TOP 14" matches These nights, which include all seven games on each match day, play-off games, as
well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover seasons 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

Acquisitions by Canal+ Overseas

On February 13, 2014, following approval from the French Competition Authonty, Canal+ Overseas completed its acquisition of a 51%
interest in Mediaserv, an overseas telecom operator

On October 28, 2014, Canal+ Overseas acquired a majonity interest in Thema, a company specializing in the distribution of general, thematic
and ethnic television channels in France and abroad Among other channels, Thema broadcasts the African fiction TV channel Nollywood

Launch of the A+ channel

On October 24, the A+ channel officially launched in Africa and will be broadcast in maore than 20 countries 1In West and Central Afnca
through Canalsat A+ i1s positroning Jtself as “the great African channe!®, seeking to bring together a wide audience and offering rich, vared
and high quality programming

TNT license in Congo

On December 12, 2014, Canal+ signed an operating agreement in relation to cabla television services on digital terrestrial television in the
Republic of Congo, where the company already offers television services via satellite

TVN mnterest in Poland

On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and Tl Group announced that they were jointly considening strategic options in relation to their 51% interest
in TVN {FTA broadcaster (n Poland)

Success at the box office for Non-Stop and Paddington

In March 2014, Non-Stop, directed by Jaume Callet-Serra and starmng Lram Neeson and Julianne Moare, armved in first place at the US
weekend box office with $56 million in revenue after its first eperating weekend This success was largely confirmed wherever the film was
subsequently released, including in France, Germany and Chma where 1t also dominated its competitars during tts release To date, the film
has generated $236 million i worldwide revenue

Since the end of November 2014, Paddington, produced by David Heyman {the Harry Potter saga, Gravity } and featuring Hugh Bannewitle
and Nicole Kidman has captivated audiences around the world Paddington 1s the biggest success for a Studiocanal film n the United
Kingdom, where it eamed £34 million in revenue in eight weeks In France, 1t sold 28 million tickets and it 1s off to a great start in the United
States where 1t 15 distnbuted by the Weinstein Company As of February 4, 2015, Paddington had exceeded $200 mithon in worldwide
revenues, a record for a family film produced by an independent studio

TV Series Development

In 2014, Studiocanal produced 57 hours of senes television through 1ts subsidianes Red Production Company and Tandem Red produced
season 4 of Scott and Bailey, and the new series Happy Valley, Prey and The Driver all of which broke audience and satisfaction records in
the United Kingdom when broadcast Tandem produced Season 2 of Crossing Lines, the cime senies with an intemational cast and the
Spotless series, an onginal Canal+ creation
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New partnerships entered into by Studiccanal

In May 2014, Canal+ and Studiocanal jained forces with wiiters and creators Sgren Sveistrup and Adam Price and producer and CEQ Meta
Louise Foldager to create the production company SAM Productions ApS SAM wall work with the strongest Scandinavian creative talents to
produce TV-series for the intemational market Studiocanal joined SAM as a partner and will serve as the company's distributor

In September 2014, Studiocanal and The Picture Company - Andrew Rena and Alex Heineman's new production company - announced they
had entered into a development and production agreement The first collaboration is the development of the adaptation of Tom Wood's
Victor the Assassin book franchise to be directed by Pierre Morel In the past, the two producers, while at Silver Pictures, produced several
hit actron films for Studiocanal including Without identrty and Non-Stop, as well as the soon-to be released The Gunman, also directed by
Pierre More

In September 2014, Grand Electric, the new production company created by Enc Newman, and Studiocanal entered into an agreement for
the acquisition, development and production of feature films for the European and American markets Under this agreement Studiocanal
will be both a creative and financial partner, will handie international sales and will distribute the new Grand Electric films n 1ts terntores

On September 4, 2014, Studiocanal and Svensk Filmindustr entered into a strategic partnership to distnbute all Studiocanal films across the
Nordic market (Sweden, Norway, Denmark and Finfand) and co-produce films and TV-senes This strategic partnership capitalizes upen Nordic
titles and talents and targets the intemational market Svensk Filmindustri will be responsible for the Nordic market and Studiocanal will be
responsible for interational distribution

On October 8, 2014, Studiacanal extended 1ts multi-year SVOD agreement with Amazon in the United Kingdom and Germany Amazon will have
the exctusive first pay-TV nights to afl Stediocanal theatrical titles in both terntones, as well as hundreds of library titles added to 1ts service

116 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Acquisition of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited

On Apnl 8, 2014, UMG acquired the entire 1ssued share capitat of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited, an ndependent producer and
distributor of music films and programming for DVD, television and digital media

Sale of interest in Beats

On August 1, 2014, UMG sold its interest in Beats to Apple for a net amount of €250 mitlion (of which €221 milon was received during the
period} The net gain on sale, recarded as other income in the Statement of Earmings, amounted to €179 milkion

Sale of Parfophone Labet Group

On July 1, 2013, Vivend sold Parlophone Label Group to Warner Music Group for a consideration of €591 midlion The arbitration process in
respect of contractual restatements to Parlophone Label Group's sale price completed at the end of November 2014 and UMG was awarded
a further £30 milhon As a result, this restatement took the total amount recewved from Wamer Music Group in respect of this sale to
£621 mithon

New agreements entered into with Havas

Havas and Universal Music Group {UMG} announced the following agreements
on September 29, 2014 digital brand integrations in select UMG music videos by using Mirad's Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
on January 5, 2015 formation of Giobal Music Data Alliance (GMDA) related to consumer's data

1.1.7  Vivend Village

Vivend: Viltage consists of the following companies as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick), Watchever
and Wengo
Watchever

In Germany, since the start of the second half of 2014, Vivend: is carrying out a transformation plan at Watchever to reduce costs while at
the same time exploring new content and platform monetization models An exceptional provision of €44 million was recorded as of June
30, 2014, reduced by €18 million
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1.1.8 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered into on October 11, 2013, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivend: were
subject to a two-tiered lock-up provision

e from October 11, 2013 until Apnl 9, 2014, Vivend: cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Actwvision Blizzard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apni 10, untl July 9, 2014, Vivend: can sell Actrvision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of 1} 50% of Vivendi's 83 miliion remaiming shares and {1} 9% of the outstanding shares of Activision
Blizzard, and

e from July 10, 2014 until January 7, 2015, Vivend! was subject to another lock-up provision, as from January 7, 2015, Vivend may
sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Considering the initiat intention of Vivendi Management 1o sell these shares at the end of the lock-up periods f market conditions were
favorable, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivend sald a first tranche of 41 5 milhon Activisien Blizzard shares for $852 mullion (€623 mullion) The €84 million capital
gain Is presented in "Earmings from discontinued operations” Taking into account the capital gain of €123 million recorded in 2013, the
capital gain realized by Vivend) with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 million

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining interest of 41 5 millien Activision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million (€689 million) was
reclassified in “avaitable-for-sale secunties” as Vivend: Management has decided not to sell this interest in the immediate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 mithon {before taxes), directly recognized in
equity

119 Other

Early redemption of bonds

Following rece:pt of the cash proceeds from the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014, in order to enhance the structure of its financial pastion
statement, Vivend: atlocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and US dollar
denominated bonds that contained a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4 25 billion and 306 billion In
addition, Vivend: cancelled all of its existing bank credit facilities for €7 1 bitlion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, maturing in
five years (2019), with two one-year renewal options Please refer to Section 5

Distnbution to sharsholders

On June 39, 2014, Vivendi SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders, from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of
€1,348 million, considered as a return of capital distribution to shareholders

1 2 Subsequent events

The significant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 (the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend!'s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014} were as follows

o OnJanuary 19, 2015, following a call for tenders carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured exclusive rnights
related to all of the National French Rugby Championship's “TOP 14" matches These nights, which include all seven games on
each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2019 please refer to
Section 115, and

¢ |n February 2015, Vivendi announced the creation of Vivend: Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivend! Contents will be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content support for music
and visual image, and will manage related investments
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2 Earnings analysis

Prelwmnary comments

In comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014). SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as welf as Maroc Telecom group and
Actvision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reparted in Vivendr's Consohdated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actvision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and
October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows
- their contribution until the effective divestiture, «f any, to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Farnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been reported on the ling "Earmings from discontinued operations”,
- in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been apphed to ail periods presented to ensure consistency of information, and
- therr share of net income has been excluded from Vivend:'s adjusted net income

The adiustments to previously published data are presented 1 Appendix Z to the Financial Report and i Note 31 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

2 1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
Year ended Dacember 31 Year ended Decambar 31
2014 2013 {a} 2014 20131{a)

Aevenues 10,089 10.252 10089 10252 Revenues
Cost of ravanues 6121} [6 097} 6121) {6097) Cost of revenues
Margin from operations 3968 115 3968 4,155 Marginfrom operations
Selling genera! and admimstrative expenses excluding Selhng general and administranve expanses excluding
amortizabion of intangibla assets acquired through business amortzaton of intangible assats acquired through business
combinations (2811} {3 008) {2811) {3008) combinations
Restructuning charges and other oparating charges and Rastructuring charges and cther operating charges and
NCoMa {158} 192) {158) (192) ncame
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations {344) {390)
tmpairment losses on intangible assets scqured through
business combenations {92} {6}
Other income 203 88
Qther charges 30 {50)
EBIT 136 637 999 955 EBITA
Income from equity afhliates {18 {21) {18) 121} Income from equity affilkates
Intarest (96) {256) {96) (266} Interest
Income from nvestments 3 86 3 66 income from investments
Other financial income 19 13
Other financial charges {751 {300)
Earmings fiom cortinuing operations hefore provigion 1o 129 #88 733 Adjusted earnengs from contiruing operations before
for income taxes provision for income taxes
Prowston for income taxes {130) 17 {200} {170} Prowision for income taxes
Earmings from continuing operations GB_'H 146
Eamings from discontinued operations 5262 2633
Earmings 5.025 2719 B8 %4 Adjusted nat incoms bafors non-controlling interests
Cf which Of wiich
Earnings attributable to Vivead: SA shereowners 414 1967 454  Adjusted net income

continutng operationy {290) a

discontinued operations 5034 1,923
Non-contrelling interests 781 8i2 62 110 Non controling interasts

Earnengs attributable to Vivend: SA sharsowners per

share - basic {in euros) 352 14 046 034 Adjusted net income per share  hasic (in eurgs)
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - diluted {in euros) 351 147 046 034 Adjusted net income per share - diluted (in eures)

In millions of euros, except per share amounts

a  Data published with respect to the year 2013 has been adjusted following the application of [FRS 5 [please refer to the preliminary
comment above}
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2 2 Earnings review

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners analysis

in 2014, earnuigs attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to £4,744 million {or €3 52 per share), compared to €1,987 million
{or €148 per share} in 2013, a €2,777 miltion increase (x2 4} This change notably included the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR
{€2,378 million), Maroc Telecom (€786 million), Beats (€179 miltion) and half of the remaining interest in Activision Blrzzard (€84 million), as
well as conversely, premium paid (€642 million} on the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners for continuing operations, after non-controlling interests (Canal+ Group,
Universal Music Group and Vivendi Village, as well as Corporate) was negative at £290 milhion in 2014, compared to a €43 million gain
2013, an unfavorable change of €333 million The £39 million increase in EBIT, notably included the capital gain on the divestiture of Beats
{€179 million), as well as the decrease in interest expense (+£170 milhon} more than offset by the mcrease in premium paid on the early
redemption of bonds (£642 millian 1n 2014 following the sale of SFR, compared to €182 million in 2013 fallowing the sale of 88% of the
interest in Activision Blizzard) and by the income tax expense (-€147 mithion}

Eamings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners for discontinued operations, after non-controlling mterest {SFR, Marac
Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT}, amounted to £5,034 million in 2014, compared to €1,924 million 1n 2013, a £3,110 million increase in
2014, the amount notably included the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR (€2,378 milion} and Maroc Telecom (€786 million) as well as
the capital gain on the divestiture of half of the remaining nterest in Activision Blizzard (€84 milhion) In 2013, the amount notably included
the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard (€2,915 million), as welt as, conversely, the impairment of SFR's
goodwill {-€2,431 millign}

Adjusted net income analysis

In 2014, adjusted net income was €626 million (or €0 46 per share®} compared to £454 milhion 1n 2013 (€0 34 per share), a €172 million
increase (+37 9%} As a reminder, according to the application of IFRS 5 to SFR, Maroc Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT, the Adjusted
Statement of Earings presents the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group {UMG) and Vivend) Village's activities, as well as
Corporate costs The increase in adjusted net income notably resulted from

. a decrease 1n Interest expense (+£170 mithon),

»  anncrease in EBITA (+€44 mithon),

e  adecrease in the share of adjusted net income attributable to non-controiling interests {(+£48 million}, and

*  adecrease in income from equity affiliates (+€3 milkon),

partially offset by
= adecrease In income from investments {-€63 miilion), and
e anncrease in income tax expense {-£30 million}

Detailed analysis of the man items from the Statement of Earmings

Revenues were £10,089 million, compared to €10,252 milhon n 2013 (-16%, or -14% at gonstant currency and penmetert) For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Sectien 4 of this Financial Report

Cost of revenues amounted to €6,121 mill.on, comparad to €6,097 million in 2013
Margin from operations decreased by €187 million to €3,968 rillion, compared to €4,155 million in 2013 (-4 5%)

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €2,811 million, compared to €3,008 million n 2013, a £197 million decrease {-6 5%}

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or n selling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired thiough business combyinations, were
stable at €307 million {compared to €310 milion 1n 2013), and were notably related to Canal+ Group's set-top boxes, as well as Studiocanal’s
catalogs, films, and telev:sion programs

3 For the detatls of adjusted net income per share pleasa refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report

* Constant perimeter reflects the following changes made in the consohidation scope
at Lanal+ Group t excludes the wmpact in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company (November 22 2013) of Mediaserv (February 13, 2014} and of Thema
{October 28 2014}, and

- atUMG it excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parfophone Label Group repertoire
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EBITA was €999 million, compared to €955 mill'on in 2013, a €44 million ncrease (+4 6%) At constant currency, EBITA increased by
€46 million (+4 8%) At constant currency and penmeter, EBITA increased by €74 million {(+8 1%) This change primarnly reflected the
increase in Uriversal Music Group's EBITA (+€58 milhon at constant currency), notably due to the decrease in restructuring and integration
costs {-€78 million) For a breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Restructunng charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €158 million {compared to a net charge of
€192 millien in 2013} They notably included restructenng charges for €104 million, 2 €12 million decrease compared to 2013, the decrease
in UMG's restructuring charges for €64 miliion was offset by the €44 million provision recorded as of June 30, 2014 with respect to
Watchever's transformation plan 1in Germany, reduced by €18 million

EBIT was €736 milhon, compared to £637 miilion 1n 2013, a €99 million increase (+15 6%) This amount ingluded

= amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €344 million, compared to €350 million 1n 2013, a
£8 millron decrease,

« mpairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combnations for €92 million, compared to €6 million 1n 2013 In
2014, they related to goodwi] attnbutable to Digitick (€43 million) and Wengo (€48 mullion), and

» other charges and income for €173 million of net income and primanly incfuded the capital gain on the sale of UMG's interest m
Beats {€179million) [n 2013, other charges and income were a net mcome of €38 million and included the gain related to the
dilution of Universal Music Group’s interest dilution in Vevo (€18 million)

Income from equity affiliates amounted to €18 million, compared to €21 million in 2013

Interest was an expense of €96 million, compared to €266 millon in 2013, a €170 million decrease {-64 1%)

In 2014, interest expense on borrowings amounted to €283 mullion, compared to €494 mihon 1n 2013 This €211 million decrease was
attnbutable for (1} €167 million, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €9 7 bitlion in 2014 {compared to €15 3 bilhion in
2013) and () €44 million, to the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 2 94% in 2014 (compared to 3 22% in 2013} The
early redemption of bonds for an aggregate amount of €3 billion carmed out in October and November 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
interest i Activision Blizzard, as well as the redemption, at matunity, of other bonds for €700 mullion in October 2013 and €834 million In
January 2014, resulted in a €191 mullion reduction in interest compared to 2013 The bond redemptions for €4 7 brllion n December 2014
following to the sale of SFR will only have an impact 1n 2015, interest expense on remaining bands (€1,950 mellion as of December 31, 2014)
amounted to €67 million 1 2014, similar to 2013

Moreover, as a result of the application of IFRS 5 to GVT and SFR, interest expense was reported net of interests received by Vivend: SA on
the financings granted to SFR and GVT, at market conditions, for €172 million in 2014 {compared to £222 million in 2013)

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €15 million in 2014, compared to €6 million n 2013 This change was
related to the increase tn average cash and cash equvalents to €2 1 billion in 2014 {compared to €0 6 billion 1n 2013}, which reflected the
impact of the sales of businesses

For a breakdown of the impact of the sales carmad out 1n 2014 on Vivend:'s treasury, please refer to Section 5 of this Financial Report

Income from investments amounted to €3 million, compared to €656 million 1n 2013 It included interest income and dividends received
from unconsolidated campantes In 2013, 1t included interest income paid by PLG for £10 milhon and the dividend paid by Beats to UMBG for
€54 milkion

Other financial charges and ncome were a net charge of £732 million, compared to a net charge of £287 million n 2013, a €445 million
increase In 2014, they mainly included the prermium paid (€642 million) with respect to the early redemption of the bonds following the sale
of SFR In 2013, they mainly included the premium paid (€182 million] with respect to the sarly redemption of bonds following the sale of
B8% of the interest in Activision Bhizzard Please refer to Note 5 to the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
2014

Eamings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes amounted to a €107 million lass, compared to a £129 million
gain in 2013, an unfavorable change of €236 million

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €200 million, compared to €170 milhion in 2013, a €30 million
increase (+17 7%} In 2013, income tax expense included certan non-recumnng items (+€149 miflion), which reflected the change, during
2013, to the assessment of nsks related to previous years’ income taxes The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was at
22 0% n 2014 {compared to 22 5% n 2013)

In addition, pravision for income taxes was a net charge of €130 million, compared to a net gain of £17 million in 2013 In add:tion to the
non-recurnng items, which explain the increase in come taxes reported to adjusted net income, this €147 million unfavorable impact
refiected the change in tax savings related to Vivend: SA's Tax Group System, which was a €110 million income in 2014, compared to a
€254 million income 1n 2013 This change was notably attnbutable to the entry of Canal+ France in Vivend: SA's Tax Group System m 2013
(an income of €258 milhon, of which €129 mullion related to current tax savings realized in 2013 and €129 million related to deferred tax
savings expected 1n 2014) The ext of SFR from Vivendi SA's Tax Group System was anticipated at the end of 2013, hence had no impact an
tax savings for 2014
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Eamings from discontinued operations (before non-controlling interests} amounted te €5,262 million, compared to £2,633 million I
2013 They primanly included

« with respect to SFR, the capital gain on ts sale on November 27, 2014 {€2,378 million, after taxes) as well as net earmings until
the effective divestiture date (€1,299 million, before non-controlling interests), which compnsed the discontinuation® of the
amortization of tangible and intangible assets since April 1, 2014 (impact of +€1,088 million for the penod from Apnl 1 to
November 27, 2014} In 2013, SFR's net eamings were -€2,004 million, after a -€2,431 million loss related to the goodwill
impairment,

« with respect to GVT, net earmings of £304 million in 2014, compared to €89 million in 2013 GVT's net gamings comprised the
discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, in comphance with IFRS 5 {impact
of +€116 million for the penod),

« with respect to Maroc Telecom group, the capital gain on its sale on May 14, 2014 {€786 rullion} as well as net eamings until the
effectuve divestiture date (€407 million, before non-contralling interests}, which compnsed the discontinuation of amortization of
tanghle and intangible assets since July 1, 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5 (impact of +€181 million for 2014, compared to
+£245 million for 2013) In 2013, Maroc Telecom group’s net earnings were €782 mitlion, before non-controlling interests and
before deferred taxes refated to its expected sale (-€86 miliion), and

+ with respect to Activision Blizzard, the capital gain on the divestiture of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014
{€84 mullion) in 2013, it notably included the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11,
2013 {€2,915 million} and Activision Blizzard's net eamings until the effective date of divestiture (€692 million, before non-
controlling interests)

Please refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Earnings attrnbutahble to non-controlling interests amounted to €281 million, compared to €812 midhion in 2013, a €631 mullion decrease
{-654%) This change was primarily attributable to the sale of Activision Bhizzard on October 11, 2013 {-€269 million} and the sale of Maroc
Telecom group on May 14, 2014 {-£222 milion) Tis change also included a favorable impact for Canal+ Group related to the acquisttion of
non-contralling mterests on November 5, 2013 (-€75 million} partially offset by the increase in earnings of nc+ in Poland {+€27 muflion)

Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €62 mdlion, compared to €110 milion 10 2013, a
£48 million decrease resulting from the changes m Canal+ Group's non-controlling interest

The reconciliation of earmings atinbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners to adjusted net income 15 further described in Appendix 1
to this Financial Report In 2014, this reconcibiation primarly included earmings from discontinued operations {+€5,034 million, after non-
controlling wnterests) The reconciliation afse included the premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of the bonds
{-€698 million), the capital gain on the sale of Beats {+£179 million) as well as the amortization and impairment of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations (-€327 million, after taxes) In 2013, this reconcilation primanly ncluded eamings from discontinued
operations {+£1,924 million, after non-controlling interests) offset by the amortization and rmpairment of intangrble assets acquired through
business combinations {-€246 million, after taxes), as well as the premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds
{-€202 mulhion)

“When an operation 15 discontinued, IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation s tangible and intangible assets Therefore, for SFF, reported as a
discontinued operation since March 31 2014, Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014
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Z-3 Outlook for 2015 -

Preliminary comments. The outlook presented below regarding revenues, income from operations, income from operations margin rates,
adjusted net income as well as distributions and share repurchases 1s based on data, assumptions, and estimates considered as reasonable
by Vivendt Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertainties related m particular to the economie, financial,
competitive and/or regulatory environment as well as the impact of certain transactions, if any In addition, the matenalization of certam
n1sks described in Section 6§ of this report could have an impact on the group's operations and its ability to achieve its outiook Finally,
Vivend: considers that the non-GAAP measures, income from operations, income from oparations margin rates, and adjusted net income are
relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

Vivend: expacts a shght increase in revenues thanks to the growth of UMG’s streaming and subscription activities and Canal+ Group's
intetnational operations 2015 incame from operations margin should be close to 2014 tevel Vivend: also expects an increase in 1ts adjusted
net income of approximately 10%, mainly thanks to lower restructuring charges and decrease in interest expenses

I addition, 1t will be proposed to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on Apnit 17, 2015 that an ordinary dividend of €1 be paid with
respect to 20145, comprising €0 20 relative to the Group's business performance and a €0 80 retumn to shareholders as a result of the
disposals of assets

The objective 1s to maintain this distribution level for the fiscal years 2015 and 2016, representing an additional retumn to shareholders of
€2 billion

In addrtion to this distribution, a share repurchase program 1s planned to be launched, within the legal fim:it of 10% of the share capital, for
approximately €2 7 billon in accordance with the market regulations on share repurchases The program will run over a period of 18 months

In total, the return to shareholders could reach appraximately €5 7 billion by mid-2017 in addition to the €1 3 bitlien paid in 2014

8 With an ex-tistribution date of Apnt 21 2015 and a payment date of Aprl 23 2015
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3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comments

o The non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO). cash flow from operations before capital expenditures {CFFO before capex,
netl, and cash flow from operations after mnterest and taxes (CFAIT) should be considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for,
other GAAFP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes or as described m the Financral Report, and Vivend: considers that they are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financial performance

s in compliance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Actrvision Bluzzard fas from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued aperations Vivend:
deconsofidated SFA, Maroc Tefecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013,
raspectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

thesr contribution untif the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the line “Cash flows from discontinued operations”,

in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information, and

their cash flow from operations (CFFD), cash flow from operations before capital expenditures (CFFO before capex, net} and cash
flow from gperations after interest and mcome taxes {CFAIT) have been excluded from Vivendr's CFFO, CFFQ before capex, net and
CFAIT

In 2014, cash flow from operations {CFFO) generated by business segments was €843 million (compared to €894 million In 2013), a
€51 mitlion decrease {-5 8%) Capital expenditures remained stable at €243 milion (compared to €245 million in 2013) and included the
acquisition of set-top boxes by Canal+ Group for €115 million {compared to €133 million n 2013) Moreover, in 2013, CFFG included
dwvidends (€54 millien) paid by Beats, sold in August 2014 Excluding dvidends received and capital expenditures, net cash provided by
operating activities before income tax paid amounted to €1,079 million {compared to €1,082 milion in 2013}

In 2014, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) was €421 million (compared to €503 million in 2013), a
£82 mithon decrease

Cash payments related to financial actvities amounted to £702 million {compared to €596 millian in 2013), a €108 million increase In 2014,
they pnmar:ly included the premiwum pard (€642 million) related to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR In 2013, they
mainly included the premium paid (182 million} reiated to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of 88% of the interest in
Activision Blizzard Moreover, cash payments related to financial activities included interest paid, net for €36 million (compared to
£266 mdlion in 2013), a decrease of €170 million, and the results on foreign exchange nisk hedging (a £47 miliion gan in 2014, compared to
a €142 million loss in 2013)

Cash flows related to income taxes were made up of 2 €280 mullion inflow 1n 2014, compared with €205 million in 2013 These amounts
notably included refunds receved by Vivendi SA related to previous years {€366 million in 2014 with respect to 2011 Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System and €201 million received n 2013 with respect to 2012 Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System) In 2013, the amount of taxes paid
included the additional contribution of 3% on the dividend paid by Vivend: SA (€40 million)
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- B Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 [a) % Change
{in miltons of euras}
Revenues 10089 10252 -1 6%
Operating expenses excluding deprectatton and amartization (8 64E) {8 797) +1 7%
EBITDA {b) 1443 1455 08%
Restructuring chargas paid {84} {105) +202%
Content investments, net 19 (148) na
of which film and television nghts net at Canai+ Group
Acguisition of film and television nights {604) {7.38) +181%
Consumptron of film and television rghts 7i3 743 4 1%
109 5 x197
of which sports nghts, net at Canat+ Group
Acquisition of sports nights {818 (714} -144%
Consumption of sports nights 801 758 +55%
{17 45 na
of which payments to artists and repertoire owneis net at UMG
Payments to artists and repertoire owners (554 {559) +75%
Recoupment of advancas and ather movements 513 561 +32%
55 {38) na
Neutralizatiors of change n provisions included i operating expenses {154) {76) -97 9%
Other cash operating items {22} {78} +72 3%
Other changes in net working capital {123) 36 na
Net cash provided by eperating activities before income tax pad ] 1,079 1,082 02%
Dividends raceved from equity affiliates {d 4 3 +323%
Dmdends recesved from unconsohdated companies {d) 3 54 96 1%
Cash flow from operations, hefore caprtal expenditures, net {CFFOQ before capex, nat) 1,088 1,139 -4 7%
Capital expenditures, net {capex net} {e} {243 {245) +0 9%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 843 894 -5.8%
Interest paid net i) (96) (266} +64 1%
Other cash rtems related to financial activities if} {60g) (330} -84 1%
of which premwum paid on earfy bond's rederption {642) {182} x33
gams/flosses] on currency transactions 47 {142) na
Financial activities cash payments {762) (596) -178%
Payment recerved from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivend SA's French Tax Group
and Cansolidated Global Profit Tax Systems 366 2m +821%
Other taxes paid {86} 4 na
Income tax (paid)/recewved, nat (c) 280 205 +36 6%
Cash flow from operations after intarest and income tax paid (CFAIT) o 503 -16 4%

na not applicable

a Data published with respect to fiscal year 2013 has been adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 {please refer to the preliminary
comments above)

b EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, 1s described in Section 4 of this Financial Report

¢ As presented in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing cperations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer
ta Section 5 3}

d As presented m net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table
{please refer 1o Section 5 3)

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as
presented In the investing activities of cantinuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer to Section 5 3)

f  As presented n net cash prowided by/(used for) financial activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table
(please refer to Section 5 3}
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4 Business segment performance analysis

Preliminary comments

Vivend: Management evaluates the performance of Vivendi's business segments and allocates the necessary resources to them based
on certain aperating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAF measures EBITA {Adusted Earmings Before Interest and Income
Taxes), and income from operations

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combimnations, the
impaiment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other charges™ and “ather mcome”
as defined in Note 12 3 to the Consoiidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

As defined by Vivend, income from operations 15 calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Farnings, before
share-based compensation costs related to equity-settled plans, and special items due to their unusual nature or particular
significance (please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report}

Moreover, 1t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate EBITA, and income from operations differently from
Vivend), thereby affecting comparability

In comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFF fas from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued aperations In practics, income
and charges from these four businesses have been reported as folfows

thesr contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each ine of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controliing mterests) has been reported on the ine "Earrings fram discentinued operations”,

in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of mformation,
and

- their share of net income has been excluded from Vivend:'s adjusted net income

Vivend deconsolidated SFR, Maroe Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11,
2013, respectively
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4.1 Revenues, EBITA and cash flow from operations by business segment

Year ended December 37,
% Change at
% Change at constant rate and
{in millions of euros) 2014 2013 % Change constant rate permeter {a)
Revenues
Canal+ Group 5456 531 +27% +26% 4%
Universal Music Group 4557 4,886 -67% 56% -38%
Vivend Village 95 n
Ehmination of intersegment transactions {20) {16}
Total Vivend 10,089 10,252 -16% -11% -14%
EBITA
Canal+ Group 583 611 -47% -48% 63%
Universal Music Group 565 511 +107% +11 3% +202%
Vivend) Village {79 (80}
Corporate (70) L4
Total Vivend: 999 955 +46% +48% +81%
Year ended December 31
% Change at
{in mitkions of euros) 204 2013 % Change constant rate
Cash flow from operations, before capital expenditures, net {(CFFO before capex, net)
Canak Group 722 689 + 6%
Unwversal Music Group a1 6N -228%
Vivendi Village {38) (724
Corporate {69} {831
Total Vivendi 1,086 1,139 -4 1%
Cash flow from operations {CFFO}
Canal+ Group 531 478 +111% +109%
Unwversal Music Group 425 585 273% -278%
Vivend: Village [44) {80}
Corporate (69) (89
Totat Vivends 843 894 58% -6 8%

a Constant penmeter reflects the following changes made in the consolidation scope

- at Canal+ Group 1t excludes the impacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on November 22, 2013) of
Mediaserv {on February 13, 2014) and of Thema {on October 28, 2014), and

- atUMG 1t excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire
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4.2 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

4.21 Canal+ Group

Year ended Decernber 31,
% Changs at
% Change at constant rate and

{in mulhions of euros) M4 2013 % Change canstant rate perimeter {a)
Pay-TV i Mamland France 3454 3544 -26% -26% 26%
Free to-air TV i Mainland France 196 172 +14 8% +14 8% +14 8%
Imernationa! Pay TV 1,273 1122 +135% +134% +6 6%
Studiocanal 533 473 +12 5% +11 6% +2 8%
Totol Revenues 5,456 5311 +2 1% +26% +0 4%
Income frem operations 618 660 64% -6 6% -86%
Income from operations’ margin 113% 124%
Charges related to
equity settled share-based compensation plans &]] (12)
Other special items excluded from income from operations
{including transison and restructunng costs) {32} {37)
EBITA 583 61 -4 7% -4 8% -6.3%
EBITA margin 107% 115%
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) 50 418 +MN 1% +10.9%
Canal+ Group's Pay-TV
Individual subscnbers (in thousands)
Mainland France 6062 609 -29
international 4,986 4,352 +634

FPoiand 2148 2197 51

Overseas 494 485 +9

Africa 1552 1,063 +469

Vegtnam 794 587 +207
Total Canal+ Group 11,048 10,443 +6505
Subscniptions {in thousands)
Mainland France (b} 9,463 9534 -
International 5 886 5137 +749
Total Canal+ Group 15,349 14671 +578
Mainland France Pey-TV
Churn per indmwiduai subscriber with commutment 145% 14 9% 04pt
Net ARPU, in euros per indwadual subsenber with commemeni 40 4432 05%
Main] Fran =101 ting sh
ok} 33% 32% +01pt
D17 12% 13% 01pt
1>Télé 09% 08% +0 1 pt
Total 54% 5.3% +01pt

a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on November 22, 2013), of Mediaserv
{on February 13, 2014) and of Thema {on October 28, 2014)

b Includes ndividual and collective subscriptions with commitment and without commitment {Canak+, Canalsat and Canalplay)

¢ Source Médiamétnie Population four years and older
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Revenues and EBITA
Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to €5,456 million, a 2 7% increase compared to 2013 (+0 4% at constant perimeter and currency)

At the end of December 2014, Canal+ Group had a total of 15 3 mullion subscript:ons, an increase of 678,000 year-on-year, notably thanks to
strong performance in Africa and Vietnam, as well as the growth in mainland France of Canalplay, its subscniption video on demand offer
For the first time, the total number of individual subscribers exceeds 11 millsan, compared to 10 4 million at the end of 2013

Revenues from pay-TV operations in mainland France were impacted by the higher VAT rate, which increased from 7% to 10% on January 1,
2014 Pay-TV revenues outside of mainiand France showed significant growth thanks to a partfolio increase, netably in Africa

Advertising revenues were up due to higher audience ratings especially at 1>Télé and DB, which was ranked as the fifth most watched
French national channel in 2014

Studiocanal’s revenues grew sigruficantly, thanks to strong theatnical releases and nghts sales [television and subscnption video-on-
demand), including Paddington, Imitation Game, Non-Stop and RoboCop, as well as the ramping up of the TV series production business
with Red in Great Britain and Tandem in Germany

Canal+ Group's EBITA was €583 million, compared to €611 million at the end of 2013 This change manly reflected the VAT increase in
France, partially offset by strong results in other countries
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Canal+ Graup’s cash flow from operations amounted to £531 millon in 2014, compared to €478 million 1n 2013, 2 €53 million increase This
change mainly resulted from a decrease in net content investments and net capital expenditures, partially offset by an unfavorable change in
EBITDA after changes in net working capital and transition costs paid
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422 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31,
% Change at
% Change at constant rate and
(m malhons of euros) 04 2013 % Change canstant rate penmeter {a}
Fhysical sates 1417 1 665 -14 3% 135% -122%
Digital sales 1636 1705 4 1% -268% 4%
Licensa and othar 535 522 +2 1% +26% +4 0%
Recorded music 3,688 3992 76% 64% -4 4%
Music publishing 673 655 +2 B% +12% + 2%
Merchandising and other 232 73 -14 9% -150% -15 0%
Elmination of intersegment transactions {36) (34}
Total Revenues 4,557 4,886 4 1% -5 6% -3 8%
Ing from op s 606 -4 6% -38% +2.3%
income from aperations’ margin 133% 130%
Charges related to
equity-settled share based compensation plans {2 6)
Special tems excluded from income from operations
‘ {including ntegration and restructurning costs} {39} Jak)
EBITA 565 51 +10 7% +1.3% +20 2%
‘ EBITA margmn 124% 105%
Cash flow trom operations (CFF0) 425 585 -213% -218%
‘ Rei d music revenues by geographical area
Europe 1% 39%
North America 39% 40%
Asia N% 12%
Rest of the world 9% 9%

|

|

|

‘ 100% 100%

i a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire
|

Recorded music sales of physical and digital supports {albums, tracks, DVDs and streaming), in millions of equivalent album

units
Artist 2014 Artst 2013
Frozen 100 Eminem 83
Taylor Swift 88 KatyPerry 60
Sam Smith 45 fAihanna 49
Katy Perry 42 imagine Dragons 44
Maroon 5 37 Luke Bryan 41
! Anana Grande 36 LladyGaGa 40
Eminem 35 Drake 39
Lana Del Rey 30 Justin Bieber 38
Helene Fischer 29 Taylor Swift 36
Lorde 29  The Beatles 34
Total 472  Total 464
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Revenues and EBITA

Universal Music Group’s {UMG) revenues were €4,557 million, down 5 6% at constant currency (-6 7% at actual currency} compared to 2013
Excluding the impact of Parlophone Label Group (divested in 2013 as part of the EMI Recorded Music acquisition remedies) and at constant
currency, UMG’s revenues were down 3 8% compared to 2013 due to the rapid transformation of the recorded music industry

Recorded music digital sales were flat compared to 2013 at constant currency and penmeter, as significant growth in subscription and
streaming revenues offset the decline in digital download sales However, total recorded music revenues dechned due to the continued
industry decline in physical sales

b i

In the United States, UMG had the top three albums of the year Disney's "Frozen” soundtrack, Taylor Swift’s “1989” and Sam Smith's “In
The Lonely Hour” Including track and stream equivalent albums, UMG had the top six, adding Ariana Grande “My Everything”, Katy Perry
“Prism” and Lorde “Pure Herone” In France, UMG had the top three albums of the year from Stromae, Indila and Kendp Girac Globally,
recorded music best sellers for 2014 included sales from the Disney "Frozen” soundtrack, the new release from Taylor Swift, the
breakthrough releases from Sam Smith, Ariana Grande and 5 Seconds Of Summer and carryover sales from Katy Perry and Lorde

Reflecting this success, UMG won 33 awards and swept all four major categaories at the 57th Annual Grammy Awards in February 2015 Sam
Smith received three of the four major awards for Record of the Year, Song of the Year and Best New Artist and Beck won for Album of the
Year

UMEG’s EBITA was €565 million, up 11 3% at constant currency {+10 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013 and up 20 2% excluding last
year's contnbution from divested Parfophone Label Group The favorable performance reflected the benefit of cost management and lower
restructuning and integration costs that more than offset the dechine in revenues

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

UMG's cash flow from operations amounted to €425 milhon (compared to €585 million 1n 2013} In 2013, cash flow from operations
benefited from excepticnal proceeds (n relation to an insurance settlement, property disposals and dividends (£54 million) from its interest
Beats, divested in August 2014 UMG's cash flow from operations was alse impacted by the unfavorable changes in working capitat related
to the phasmng of digital income receipts and royalty payments
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423 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013

Dhgitick 15 13
See Tickets 36 31
Watchever 26 12
Wengo 19 15
Total Revenues 96 n
Income from aperations {34 (78)
EBITA (79} (80)
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) {44} {80

Revenues and EBITA

Vivend: Village's revenues amounted to €96 million, an ncrease of €25 million It incfuded revenues from Digitick (€15 million, compared to
€13 milhon i 2013}, See Tickets (€36 million, compared to €31 million in 2013), Watchever (€26 million, compared to €12 miilion in 2013),
and Wengo (€19 mill:on, compared to €15 milhion in 2013)

Vivend: Village’s EBITA amounted to -€79 mithon, compared to -€80 million in 2013 In 2014, 1t was notably impacted by Watchever's
restructuring charges in Germany {-€44 million)
Cash flow from operatons (CFFO)

Vivend: Village's cash flow from operations amounted to -€44 msllion, compared to -€80 million in 2013 This change was marnly related to
the change n EBITDA

4.24 Corporate

Year ended December 31,

{in mithons of euros) 2014 2013

Income from operations (82) {87)

EBITA (70} {87)

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) (69) (839)
EBITA

Corporate EBITA was -E70 milfion (compared to -€87 mullon in 2013}, an ncrease of €17 millien This increase was pnimarily due to the
decrease n operating expenses and to non-recurrng items related to pensions
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€63 million, compared to -€89 million in 2013 This change was mainly attributable to
the change in EBITA

425 GVT (discontinued operation)

GVT's revenues were €1,765 million, a 12 8% ncrease at constant currency compared to 2013 This performance was driven by continuous
growth of the core segment (retail and SME), which increased 14 1% at constant currency, including a 56 8% year-on-year increase in pay-
TV This service, which now represents 14 2% of GVT's total revenues, had 858,860 pay-TV subscribers, reflecting a 336% increase
cormpared to 2013

GVT pursued :ts expansion in Brazil in a controlled and targeted manner and launched 1ts services in six additional cities during 2014 1t now
operates in 156 cities in the South, Southeast, Midwest and Northeast regions i Brazil

GVT's EBITDA was €702 mitlion, a 8 4% ncrease at constant currency compared to 2013 Its EBITDA margin reached 39 8% (41 4% for its
telecom activities alone), which 1s the highest margin tn the Brazilian telecom operator market
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5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments.

o Vwend: considers Financial Net Debt and Net Cash Position, non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators in measuning Vivendi's
treasury and capital resources postiron

- Financial Net Debt s calculatad as the sum of long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial liabihties as reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Financral Fosrtion, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posttion as well as denvative financral mstruments in assets and cash deposits backing borrowings {included i the Consolrdated
Statement of Financral Position under “financial assets”}

Net Cash Fosition 1s calculated as the sum of cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, dervative financial mstruments in assets, and cash deposits backing borrowings included in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Posttion under “financial assets”) less long-term and short-term borrowings end other financial habiities

e financial Net Debt and Net Cash Position should be considered 1n addiion to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures as
presented n the Consohdated Statement of Financial Position, as well as other measures of indebtedness reported in accordanca with
GAAP, and Vivend) considers that they are relevant indicators of treasury and capital resources pesttion of the group Vivend:
Management uses these indicators for reporting, management, and planming purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants
of Vivend:

s  Inaddition, cash and cash equivalents are not fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purpesss, meluding but
not himited to business acquisitions, capital expendrtures, dividend payments, share repurchasss, payments of contractual obligations and
waorking capital

5.1 Summary of Vivendi’s exposure to credit and hquidity risks

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi has a Net Cash Position of €4,637 million {including cash and cash equivalents for €6,845 million and
bonds for £1,950 million}, compared to a Financial Net Debt of €11,097 mithion as of December 31, 2013 {including bonds for €7,827 million,
bank credit facilities for €2,075 mullion and commercial papers for €1,906 mullion}, a €15,734 million favorable impact

in May 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group for €4,138 million and sold 41 5 million Activision
Blizzard shares for €623 million Vivend: notably used this cash to redeem its drawn bank credit facilities and 1o pay an ordinary distnbution
of €1 per share to tts shareholders from additional pard-in capital for an aggregate amount of €1,348 million

On November 27, 2014, Vivendi completed the sale of SFR to Numericable Group (please refer to Section 112} Cash proceeds recewved from
the sale amounted to €13,166 mithion, or €13,500 million, net of the price adjustments {-€134 million) and of Vivend:'s contribution to the
financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mohile by Numericable Group (-€200 mullion}

At that date, to further enhance its balance sheet Vivend: allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight
tranches of its euro and US dollar denominated bonds that had a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of
€4 25 billion and $0 6 billion This transaction, completed in December 2014, resulted in a net cash payment of a £642 millton in addition to
the principal amount of €4 7 billion

In addition, on November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivendi cancelled all of its existing bank
credit facilities for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, matunng in five years {2019), with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit faciity was undrawn

As a reminder, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credt for €975 mullion, matunng in March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Section 6} This letter of credit 1s guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 intemational banks with
which Vivend: signed a Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivendr to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit Gn July 16, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of £975 million 1n an escrow account This cash deposit could be used i pnonty against a claim made
agamnst Vivends, if any, and if the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which significantly reduced the letter of
credit’s financing cost, resulted in a €975 mitlion decrease in the group’s Net Cash Position Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-balance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivendi's Financial Net Debt

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: had £6,845 million in cash and cash equivalents, primarily comprised of monetary UCITS, term deposits
and interest-bearing current accounts
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In addstion, on September 18, 2014, Vivend! and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of GVT The agreement represents a total
enterpnise value of €7 45 illion {on the basis of stock market prices and exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiation agreements
were entered into with Telefon:ca} The transaction is expected to close during the second quarter of 2015 After taking into account the
estimated tax impact, GVT's external debt and the price adjustments at closing of the transaction, the expected net proceeds upan the sale
15 expected to amount to approximately €3 8 billion {please refer to Section 1 1 3}

Cash and cash Borrowings and other Financaal Net Debt

tn millions of ewros) equivalents financsat tems (a}
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 1,041) 12,138 11,097
Gutflows/{inflows) refated to continuing eperatians

Operating activities {1.359) - {1,359)

Investing activities {16 326} 26 {16,300}

Financing activities 11128 9212} 1916
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing cperations {10} {1} {11)
Outflows/inflows) related to continuing operaticns (6,567) {9,187} {15,754)
Outflows/linflows) related to discontinued operations 560 (450) 110
Reclassification of discontinued eperations' Financsal Net Debt as of December 31, 2014 203 {283) {30)
Change related to discontinued operations 763 (743} 20
Financial Net Debt / (Net Cash Position} s of December 31, 2014 {6.845) 2,208 [([=H]

a  "Other financial items” include commstments to purchase non-controliing mterests, denvative finanmal instruments (assets and
liabilties) and cash deposits backed to borrowings
Financial Net Debt change duning fiscal year 2014

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend! had a Net Cash Position of €4,637 mullign, compared to a Financial Net Debt of £11,097 million as of
December 31, 2013), a £15,734 milhion favorable impact

This change notably reflected

« proceeds from the sales completed duning fiscal year 2014 for €179 bilion They pnmanly included net proceeds of
€13.166 million from the sale of SFR, €4,138 millign from the sale of Vivendi's 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group, €623 miliion
from the sale of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares, and £221 mtllion from the sale of UMG's interest in Beats,

s cash provided by operating acuvities of continuing operations’ (€1,359 milion),
» cash received from the exercise of stock options by the executive management and employees (€197 million), and
e restatement of GVT's Financial Net Debt as a discontinued operation (£217 million},
partially offset by
=  the cash outflow related to the €1 per share distribution made to Vivendi SA shareowners (€1,348 million),

+  the placing of cash deposits in relation to the appeal aganst the Liberty Media judgment {€975 million) and to the securities’ class
action in the United States (€45 mulhion),

«  cash payments related to financial activities (702 million), of whieh €642 million related to the early redemption of bonds and
€96 mulhon retated to net interest paid,

+  acquesitions (€303 million) made by Canal+ Group for an aggregate amount of €244 million (primarily compnsed of acquisitions of
Medsaserv, Thema, and of an additienal 8% interest in N-Vision} and by UMG for an aggregate amount of €59 million {notably
included the acguisition of Eagle Rock and the contribution to Vevo's share capital increase), and

« cash outflows related to capital expenditures from continuing operations’ (€243 million)

? Continuing operations include Canal+ Group Universal Music Group Vivend: Wilfage, and Corporate
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5.2 Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2014

As of December 31, 2014 Vivendi’s Net Cash Position, in IFRS, amounted to €4,637 million

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to an aggregate of €6,845 mithon, placed primanty in monetary
UCITS {€4,754 million) and n term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts (€1,851 mithon)

Moreover, borrowings and ather financial habilities amounted to €2,208 milkon {compared to €12,138 muliion as of December 31, 2013), a
£€9,930 milhon decrease following the redemptions of barrowings carned out duning fiscal year 2014 €5,564 mullion in bands, €1,655 mihon
i bank credit facilities and £1,908 mitlion i commercial papers

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s bonds amounted to €1,950 million, compared to €7,827 milion as of December 31, 2013 [n 2014,
Vivend redeemed at matunty a €894 milhon bond, SFR’s €300 million bond, and early redeemed bonds with make-whole aptions, of which
£4,250 mullion 1n eure denominated bonds, and $595 million {€420 million) related to US dollar denominated bonds

Refer to Notes to the
Consolidated Oecember 31 2014 December 31 2013

{al

(1n millions of euros| Financial Statements
Borrowings and other financial habiities 21 2347 12 268
of which leng-term (b) 2074 8,737
short-term (b) 273 3529
Denvative financial instruments 1n assets (c) {139 (128}
Cash deposits backing borrowings () - (2)
2,208 12,138
Cash and cash equivalents {b} {6,845) {1041)
Financial Net Debt/ (Net cash position} {4,637 11,097

a  As of December 31, 2014, in comphance with IFRS 5, Vivendi's Net Cash Position does not include the external Financial Net Debt of
GVT {€217 milhon}

b As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
¢t Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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b 3 Analysis of Financial Net Debt changes

Year ended December 31 2014

Refer to

Impact en cash and Impact on borrowings Impact on Financial
section
cash equivalents and other financial tems Net Debt
{in mdlions of euras)
EBIT 2 (135) - {T35)
Adjustments {447} {447
Content investments net 3 119) {19}
Gross cash provided by cparsiing actrvities bafors mcome tax paid {1.262) - 202
Other changes in net working capital 123 123
Net cash provided by operating sctivities before income tax paid 3 {1,079) - {1,079}
Income tax paid net 3 (280) (280
Net cash provides by opareting actwvities of continuing operations {1,359) {1,259}
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued cperations (2 238) {2234)
tn Wit {3.553) - (3,593}
Financial investments
Purchases of conschidated companies after acquired cash 100 116 218
of which investments realized by Canet+ Group 1 86 95 181
investments reahized by UMG 1 14 21 ki
Investments m equity afhliates 87 87
of which wnvestments realized by Canaly Group £3 &3
investments reahzed by UMG 24 24
Increase m financial assets 1087 1057
of which cash deposit related to Vivends s appeal agamst the Liberty Media qudgment [ 975 75
cash deposit related to Secunties Class Action m the Umited States 6 45 45
Total financial investments 1,244 115 1,350
Financial divestments
Proceeds from sales of consehdated companigs after divested cash {16 829) (30) 17019
of winch cash proceeds from the sale of SFR 1 {13 386} {13.368)
financing of Virgin Mobile acquisition 1 200 - 260
SR s net cash deconsoldated 133 29) 44
proceeds from the saig of the 53% mterest m Maroc Telecom group 1 {4 138} {4138
Decrease in financial assets 1878} (878}
of which proceeds from the safe of 41 5 mullion Actrvision Blizzard shares 1 {623} 1623)
praceads from the sale of UMBG s interest i Beats 1 (221} f221)
Yotal financial divestments {12,807} {90/ 17,897}
Fi ] {16,563} 2% {16,537}
Dividends recewved from equity affiliates [0} 14
Owidends recerved from unconsohdated companies 21 12]
Net g activities excluding caprtal expend net (16,568} % {16,543)
Capital expendriures 249 249
Proceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangitle assets (6) (6]
Caprial expenditures, nat 3 243 - 243
Net cash provided byNused for) investing activities of continuing operations (16,32} % {16.300)
Net cash prowded by/{used for) investing actmities of discontinued operations 2034 S5 2089
Investing ctivities {14,2%) 81 {14.211)
T wrth sh s
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of common shares i connection with Vivend: SA's share-based compensation plans (197 197)
of winch exercise of stock cptions by executive management and employees (157} (137}
{Sales)/purchases of Vivendi SA's treasury shares k7] 32
Distnbution to Vivendi SA s shareewners [€1 per share) 1 1348 1348
Other transactions with sharecwners 2 2
Dwvidends paid by consokidated companies ta therr nen-contralling interests 34 34
Total transactions with shareowners 1219 . 1.219
Transactions on borrowings and cther financial habifities
Setting up of long term borrowings and increase i other lang term financial hiabilities 3 3
Prncrpal payments on long term borrpwings and decrease in other long term financial hiabriias 1670 1670
of which bank credit facihties 1855 (1655
Pringipal payments on short term borrowings 7 B0 (7 680}
of which bonds 5 564 15 564)
commercial paper 1 906 {1 806;
Other changes in short term borrowngs and other financial liabilties (140 120 -
Non cash transactions {5l 5)
Interest paid net 3 9% %
(Other cash items related to financial actmties 3 806 606
Total tr. !/ on bor g3 and other i ! tembi] 4909 8.272) 697
Net cagh provided by/{used for} fmancing activities of continusng operations 1,128 9.212) 1916
Net cash provided by/Alused for} finanting activiues of discontinued operatans 756 1508) 248
Einanging activities 1188 18 720) 2164
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continting operations 11'0-) [§]] iy
Fareign currency trans!ation adjustments of discontinued operations 4 3 7
Reclassification of Fnancial Net Debt from discontinued operations 0 {293) 190}
Change n Fnangial Net Debt 5.800) 18,930) {15.734)
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5.4 Changes to financings

¢ InJanuary 2014, Vivend redeemed the 7 75% bond issued in January 2009 for €894 million, upon 1ts contractual maturity

s On November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivendi cancelled all of its existing bank credit
faciities for €7 1 ikl:on and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, matuning n five years (2019} and with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

¢  On December 15, 2014, Vivend: redeemed all its euro-denominated bonds with a make-whole option representing a total principal amount of
€4,250 million and paid a net cash premium of €572 milkon

»  On December 29, 2014, Vivend! redeemed all its US dollar-denominated bonds with a make-whole option representing a total principal
amount of $595 millien (€420 mullion) and paid a net premium of €70 million

For a detadled analysis of the borrowings as of December 31, 2014, please refer to Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

6 Litigation

In the nomal course of 1ts business, Vivendi 15 subject to vanous lawsuits, arbitrations and govemmental, admimstrative or other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”}

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recagnized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi’s best estimate of the
risk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such risk f events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend for all claims and litigations amounted to €1,206 miihion, compared to €1,379 mill:on as of December 31, 2013

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company's and on 1ts group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivendi Itigation

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixtesn claims have been filed against Vivendi, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitted /o re Vivendr Universal S A Securities
Litigation

The plamntiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain prowisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amencan Depositary
Recerpts (ADRs) of Vivend {formerly Vivend: Universal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge issued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunties class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returmed its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivendr between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or misteading and were made in violation of Section 10{b} of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they farled to disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity risk” which
reached its peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Mane Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
hable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
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day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the pla:ntiffs in the class action
The Jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays an the Pans or New York markets {12 days) during the class penod

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrison v National Australia Bank case, that American
securiies law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a security listed on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunty in the United States "

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and issued on February 22, 2011, the Court, i applying the “Morrison” decision, confirmed Vivend:'s
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivend:'s ordinary shares on the Par:s stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivend’s ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivend:'s post-trial
motions chatlenging the jury’s verdict The Court also dechned to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be tssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circutt Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 Cn July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasars who
acquired thetr shares on the Pans stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and issued on February 1, 2012, the Court, In applying the Maorrison decision, also dismissed the clams
of the indivduat plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Panis stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintffs to expand the class to nationahties other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the vahidity of theis clam These
claims are currently being processed and verified by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivendi will then have the nght
to challenge the merits of these claims On November 10, 2014, at Vivendr’s imitiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upan proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantial portion of the claims
Certain large claims were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivendi continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those clams On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed its Notice of Appeal with the Second Circurt Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivend:'s appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivend believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal Vivendi intends to challenge, amang other issues, the plainuffs’ theones of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth abave, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and In accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 13 1 {Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 (Provisions} Vivend: made a provision on December 31, 2009, n an amount
of €550 milhion n respect of the damages that Vivend) might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action litigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Mornison case Using the same methodalogy
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivend re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, if any, that Vivend: might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivendi recognized a 8450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend) considers that this provision and the assumptions on which 1t 1s based may require further amendment as the procesdings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivend: might have to pay to the plantiffs could differ from the current estimate As 15
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudiciat to Vivend

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Medsa Corporation and certawn of its aff:hates filed suit against Vivend) and Jean-Mane Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered nta by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating te the formation of Vivend) Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plantiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the secunties class action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media’s request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class actign jury with
respect to Vivendi's hability {theory of “collateral estoppel”)

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /32




Friday February 27 2015

_The Liberty Medha jury retumed its verdict on June 25, 2012 1t found Vivendr liable to Liberty Med:a for making certain false ar m:sleading

statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media n the amount of £765 millien Vivend filed certain post-tnal motions chatlenging the jury's verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tnal

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict It alse awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 untid the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of retumn on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of £945 millign, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-tnial motians, which were dented on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court 3 Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it believes # has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed a motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment is entered so that the two appeals can be heard simuttaneously Gn Apnl 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivend(’s motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard tagether by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivendi maintained as of December
31, 2014, the provision in the amount of €345 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

Toial of Vivendi's Fermer Officers in Pans

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office {Parquet de Panis) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Addrtional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivendi joined the proceedings
as a civl party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Paris Tribunal of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Paris}, foHowing which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which it confirmed the previous recognition of Vivendi as a civil party Messrs Jean-Mare Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys recewed suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mare Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend
Officers as well as some civil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from Qctober 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Paris Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and disseminat:on of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended pnson sentence and a fine of
€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Paris Court of Appeal rendered its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissermnation of false or misieading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the critenia for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Manie Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Branfman for insider trading and they received fines in the amount of €850,000 (of which €425,000 15 suspended) and €5 million {of which
€2 5 million 15 suspended), respectwely Finally, the Court set aside the lower court’s order for the payment of damages {10 per share) to
certain shareholders and former shareholders of Vivend: {the "civil action™) With regard to Vivendi, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a civii party to the proceedings, exonerated it from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought against it by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court (Cour de Cassation} by certa:n of the
defendants and some civil parties

LBBW and al agatnst Vivend:

On March 4, 2011, 26 mstitutional nvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint agamst Vivend: with the Paris Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivend: in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Aprit 2002 Subsequently, on Apnl 5 and
Apnil 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of ldaho, and the other by six German and Bntish instrtutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the Bntish Columbia investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivend: on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Panis
appointed a “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alleged holding of the secunties
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California State Teachers Retirement System and al against Vivend) and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apnil 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investars filed a complaint against Vivend and Jean-Marie Meassier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly mcurred as a result of the financial cammunications made by Vivendi and 1ts former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appomted a “third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them ta evidence their alleged holding
of the secunties

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , its Board of Directors, and Vivend:

In August 2013, a dervative action was initiated in the Los Angeles Supernior Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Biizzard,
Inc ("Activision Blizzard” or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivend: The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend's share ownership
(n the Company The ptaintiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors fed by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend:

On September 11, 2013, a second derivative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minority shareholder of Activision Bhizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minanity shareholder, Douglas Hayes, imtiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overtumed this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the ments

On Novemnber 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Re
Activision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was initiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a muinonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the In Ae Actiision Blizzard Ine Securities Litigation proceeding currently underway

In November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced The Court 1s expected to approve the settiement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee issued by Anjou Patrimoine to Unibail

Unibail has called 1ts indemnification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnimotne {a former subsidiary of Vivends) in connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1999 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patrimoine to indemnify Unibait for a tax hiability anising
from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On October 31, 2008, the Versailles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court's
ruling, deried all of Unibai¥'s claims and ordered 1t to reimburse Anjou Patrimoine for all sums paid under the first ruling On November 27,
2008, Unibail appealed against this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Panis Court of Appeal The hearing will take place on April 2, 2015

Vivend: Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivend)} against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained. on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On April 23, 2009, the Regional Berhin Court issued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2008, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in April 2009, which decided in
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for additionat damages in the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of €3 9 milhion together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision
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Telefonica agamst Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP {now Telefonica Brazil}, filed a claim aganst Vivend: before the Civil Court of Sao Paulo (3° Vara Civel do Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S3o Paulo) The company 1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquiring control of
GVT and damages n the amount of 15 milhon Brazilian reals {currently approximately €4 9 millen) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Telefanica Brazil i connection with 1ts offer for GVT At the begqinmng of September 2011, Vivend: filad an objection to jurisdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of Sdo Paulo to hear a case invelving parties from Cuntiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on April 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefon:ca’s claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivend's responsibility for
Telefomca’s failing to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the inherently nisky nature of eperations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendi's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carnied out aganst it by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the 5th
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of S3¢ Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivend: and Telefonica concerning the sale of GYT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction (which 13 to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT), the case has been suspended

Dynamo against Vivend:

On August 24, 2611, the Dynamo mnvestment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivend before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(S&o Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majonty of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 (the date on which Vivend took control of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws prov:iding for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed (the “poison pill provision™) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivends
Vivend:, nating that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Sharsholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo's allegations The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a heaning before the Bovespa Arbitration
Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, on February 6, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janeiro to tompel CYM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral trbunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivendi This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tnbunal eould make such an
apphication On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision and autharnzed the prevision of
the above-mentionad information solely to the artutral tnbunal, denying Dynamo access to the information

Hedging-Gnifo against Vivendi

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gnffo funds filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {Sao Paulo
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the
acquisition of GVT 1n 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tnbunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The
Hedging-Gnffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold therr GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pili* provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivendi believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Griffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stack market
battle that opposed Vivend: against Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend! It also denies any application of the bylaw provisian mentioned above, as it was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi or Teiefonica

Litigation involving Vivendi subsidiaries

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the Group Parabole Réunion filed a legat action before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayette, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Paris Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content of the
channels 1n question On September 18, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2008, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Reunion In the context of this dispute, varous junisdictions have taken the
opportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channe!, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion &
channel of similar attractiveness Noncompliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion fited a
claim aganst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnibution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre {Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enforcement having been previausly
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rejected by the enforcement mag:strate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) (n November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnl 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
{egal abligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabaole
Réunion filed an appeal against this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réunion inadmissible Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on points of faw and filed a second appeal agamst the Apri 9, 2013 decision

in parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of Fisst Instance,
requesting that the Tnbunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness simifar to that of TPS Foot :n 2006
and to pay damages

On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Paris Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action On Apnl 29, 2014, the Pans Trnbunal of First Instance recogrized the
contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion The Tnibunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Reunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Paris Tribunal of First Instance

BelN Sports against the National Bughy League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Compet:tion authonity against Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting rights to the “TOP 14” for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authorty imposed interim measures suspending Canal+ Group’s agreement with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be organized Canah Group and the Nationaf
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Pans Court of Appeal

On October 9, 2014, the Paris Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for rights to the “TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision

Action brought by the French Competition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2008, further to 1ts voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivend) and
Canal+ Group a not/fication of allegations [t alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position i certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and M8, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which 1t dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group’s exclusive distribution rights on channels broadcast by the Group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed 2 complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, MB and France
Télévision groups n the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of mserting pre-emption rights into co-production
contracts, n such a way as to discourage competition  The French Competition Authority is examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authonty against the practicas of TF1
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-prometion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a clam was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) by Copre France
who 1s sesking compensation in respect of external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
external drive used by Canal+ 1s “dedicated" ta the set-top boxes and therefore it should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation is €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7
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Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authonty about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satellite
subscrniption called “cards only* {enabhng the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled sateilite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, mcluding Aston) In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive rel ef
against Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Paris, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of sate!lite subscriptions called “cards only® On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston's requests On Navember 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Fans
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonty renders its decision on the merits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Majors 1n the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Caurts in New York and Californta against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged ant-competitive practices i the context of sales of CDs and Intemet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 8, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was demed They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
pracess 1s underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music mndustry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royatties for on line sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 8, 2007, Capitol Records and EM! Music Publishing filed a joint complaint against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copynght infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The trial was held in March 2014 and, on March
19, 2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants liable for knawingly allowing the
unauthorized content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages (n the amount of $41 million On October 39, 2014 the
Court confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of $122 milion The defendants have appealed against the
judgment

Mireille Porte against interscope Records, Inc , Stefam Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireitle Porte {AKA "Orlan”} filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta {AKA “Lady
Gaga") and Universal Music France with the Pans Trnbunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged copynght
nfringement of severat of Orlan’s artistic works

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Umiversal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande Instance de Panis) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation involving GVT (discontimued operation)

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, like all other telecommunications operators, 1s party in several Braziian States to various proceedings concerning the application of the
“ICMS” tax {Imposto Sober Circufagdo de Mercadonas & Prestagdo de Servigus), whuch is a tax on operations relating to the circutation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electricity services

GVT 1s notably a party to Iiigation in various Braziian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on vorce telecommunication
senvices GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings initiated by GVT, all have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes 1n Brazil

The Brazilian tax authonties argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST" {fundo da Umversalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomuricagfes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilian termtory, including 1n
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" {Funde para Desenvolvimento Tecnoldgioco das Telecomumcagdes), a federal tax to
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finance technological investments in Brazilian telecommunications services, should be based on the company’s gress revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 15 challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authority from the
federal judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommumcations Operators in Brazil Regarding the Apphication of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were mitiated against all the telecommumications operators in Brazl, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” {Programa de Integragio Social) and “COFINS” {Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Seguridade
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of tefecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows 1t to
set 1ts own tariffs

7 Forward looking statements

Cauticnary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section Z 3, contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outlook of Vivends, including the impact of certain transactions and the payment of dwidends and
distributions as well as share repurchases Although Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of nsks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi's control, including, but not limited to, the nisks
related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals as well as any other approvals which may be required in connection with certain transactions
and the risks descnibed in the documents of the group filed with the Autonté des Marchés Financiers (the “AMF”) (the French securities
reguiator), which are also available in English on Vivendh's website {www vivendi com) Accordingly, we caution you against relying on forward
locking statements These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivend disclaims any intention or
obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new iformation, future events or otherwise

8 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does not sponsor an American Depositary Receipt {ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 1s
"unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend Vivend: disclaims any hability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of the report and 1s provided for informational purposes enly This transiation
1s qualfied In its entirety by the French version, which 1s available on the company’s website {www vivendi com} In the event of any
inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the Engiish translation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1 Non-GAAP measures in Statement of Eamings

Income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income, non-GAAP measures, should be considered i addition to, and not as a substitute
far, other GAAP measures of aperating and financial perfarmance, as presented in the Consclidated Financial Statements and the related
notes or as described n the Financial Report, and Vivend considers that they are relevant dicators to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management, and
planning purposes because they better illustrate the underlying performance of continuing operations by excluding most non-recurning and
non-gperating items Each of these indicators ars defined in Section 4 of this report or in Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014

Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) 2014 203
EBIT (a) 736 637
Adjustments

Amortization of mtangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
Impairment {osses on intangible assets acquired through busimess combinations (a) 92 B
Other income [a} (203) (88)
Other charges {a} 30 50
EBITA 999 955
Adjustments

Charges related to

equity-settled share-based compensation plans 9 23
Special items excluded from imcome from operations 100 153
(including transition/integration costs and restructuring costs)

Income from operations 1,108 111

Reconcihiation of earnings attributable to Vivendi $A shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,

{sn mithons of euros) 2014 2013
Eamings attnbutahle to Vivends SA shareowners (a) 4,744 1,967
Adjustments
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 92 B
Other income {a} (203} (88
Qther charges (a) 30 50
Other financial income {a) (19} (13)
Other financral charges (a) ™ 300
Earnings from discontinued operations (a) (5 262) 12633
of which capital gain on the divestiture of SFR {2,378} -
impatrment of SFA's goodwill - 2431
capital gam on the divestiture of Maror Telecom group {786) -
capital gain on Activision Blizzard shares {84) {2 915)
Change m deferred tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the Consolidated
Global Profit Tax Systems 37 (108}
Non-recurning items related to provision for income taxes 5 28
Provision for income taxes on adjustments {12} {108)
Non-controlling interests on adjustments 219 0z
Adjusted net iIncome 626 454

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings
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Year ended Cecember 31,

2014 2013
Bastc Diluted Basic Dituted

Adjusted net income (in millions of euros} 626 626 454 454
Number of shares {in millions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (a) 13458 13458 1,3306 13308
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 55 47
Ad)usted wesghted average number of shares 1.345.8 13513 13306 13353
Adjusted net income per share (sn euros) 046 046 034 034

a  Net of treasury shares {50,033 shares as of December 31, 2014}

2 Adjustment of comparative information

In compliance with IFRS 5, GVT {as fram the third quarter of 2014}, SFR {as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom group
and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported In Vivend's Conselidated Financial Statements as
discentinued operations Vivend deconsohdated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14,

2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows
- their contribution yntil the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivend/'s Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the ine “Earnings from discontinued operations”,

ther share of net income has been excluded from Vivend)'s adjusted net income, and

in accordance with [FAS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information

The adjustments to published data for the first guarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

{(in millons of euros except per share amounts) ended March 31

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (as
previously pubhshed)
Reclassifications related to the application of (FRS 5 for GVT

Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (restated)

Adjusted net income (as previously pubhished}
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT

Adjusted net income {restated)

Adjusted net income per share (as proviously pubhshed)
Adjusted net income per share (restated)

2014
Three months Three moaths Six months ended
ended June 30, June 30

268 358 626
-83 - B8 <171
185 270 455
161 194 355
-52 -50 -102
109 123 753
012 013 026
008 on 019
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The adjustments to data published :n the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and relate to GVT and SFR

{in muthons of ewos except per share amounts)

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) {as
pubhished (a))
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT
Reclass)fications related to the apptication of [FRS 5 for SFR

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (restated)

Adjusted net income (as published {a)}
Reclassifications related tg the application of IFRS 5 for GVT
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS S for SFR

Adjusted net incoms (restated)

Adjusted net income per share {as published {a}}
Adjusted net income per share {restated)

{in milhons of euros except per share amaunts}

Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {as
published {al}
Recfassifications related ta the applicaton of IFAS 5 for GVT
Rectassifications related to the application of IFRS & for SFR

Adjusted earnings before intarest and income taxes (EBITA} (restated)

Adjusted net income (as published (a}}
feclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT
feclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR

Adjusted net income {restated}

Adjusted net income per share (as puhiished (a)}
Adjusted net income per share (restated}

a  Aspublished in the 2013 Annual Report
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2013
Three months Three months Six months ended
ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30
629 162 1.3
~99 98 - 197
-328 -377 - 705
202 87 489
366 479 845 '
- 70 67 =137
-232 254 - 486
64 158 f7]
028 036 064 !
005 012 017 :
2013
Three months Nine months Three months
Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended December 0
ecember 31
30, 30, 3,
730 21 312 2433
-1 298 - 107 405
-334 -1,039 -34 -1073
295 TH4 (Fil 955
403 1,248 292 1.540
-75 -212 - 52 274
-249 -135 - 77 81z
" m 153 454
030 094 0.2 116
006 023 on 034
\
|
|
\
i
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3. Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2014 and 2013 quarterly data

{in millions of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

Elrmination of intersegment transactions

Total Vivend:

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendr Village
Corporate

Total Vivendi

[ mitlons of euros)

Revenues

Canah Group

Umiversal Music Gsoup

Vivends Viilage

Elmination of intersegment transactions

Total Vivendi

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend Village
Corporate

Total Vivend

014
1st Quarter ended  2nd Uuarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Guarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

1.317 1350 1300 1,489

984 1.019 1,004 1,460

21 25 23 27
{5) {5} (5} (o}

2317 2389 2412 M
175 245 206 {43)

56 97 121 281

(20} (67) - 8
(26) {5) (37) (22}

185 270 310 234

2013
1st Quarter ended  Znd Quarterended  3rd Quarterended  4th Quarter ended
March June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

1286 1,314 1,257 1454

1.091 1,145 1,162 1488

18 17 18 20

(5} {3} (9) {3}

2388 2413 2432 2,959

183 M7 217 {36]

55 38 12 256

{14} {23) {20} {23)

(22) {25) (14} (26)

202 287 295 n
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Il - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annuai General Shareholders’ Meetings, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2014 on

» the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vivendi, hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,

= the justification of our assessments,

« the specific venfications required by law
These conselidated financial statements have been approved by your management board Our role 1s to express an opinian on the financial
statements, based on our audst

| Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of matenial misstatement An audsit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techmiques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit ewdence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financ+al statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reascnableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opimon

In our opimion, the consolidated financiat statements give a true and fair view of the assets and habihues and of the results of its operations
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurapean Union

Il Justification of our Assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de commeice) relating to the yustification of our
assessments, we draw your attention to the following matters

« Note 1358 to the financial statements describes the accounting principles applicable to financial assets, includ:ng non-consolidated
investments We examined the accounting treatment applied to the group’s investment in Numencable — SFR We ensured that Note
3 1 to the consolidated financial statements gives appropnate disclosures thereon

« Note 1 36 to the consolidated financial statements describes the applicable criteria for classification and accounting for discontinued
operations or assets held for sale :n accordance with IFAS 5 We venified the correct application of this accounting principle and we
ensured that Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements provides appropriate disclosures with respect to management’s position
as of December 31, 2014

«  Ateach financia! year end, your Company systematically performs impairment tests on goodwill and assets with indefinite useful lives,
and also assesses whether there 1s any indicatian of impairment of other tangible and intangtble assets, according to the methods
described in Note 1357 to the consolidated financial statements We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests,
as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1 357 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements provide
appropriate disclosures thereon

= Note 1389 10 the consolidated financtal statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 138
describes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We verfied the correct application of these accounting principles and
also examined the assumptions underlying the the positions as of December 31, 2014 We ensured that Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropnate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company’s tax positions

o Notes 138 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
{itigation We examined the methods used within the group to 1dentify, calculate, and deterrmine the accounting for such litigation We
also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated in Note 13 1 to the consolidated
financiat statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumptions which could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the
opinion we formed which s expressed in the first part of this report
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_ M Specific venfications _

We have also verified, in accordance with professional standard applicable in France, the information provided i the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to report as 1ts fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated financial statements

Paris-La Défense, February 27, 2015

The statutory auditors
French oniginal signed by

KPMG AUDIT ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Département de KPMG S A
Baudouin Gritan Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

Note 2014 2013 (a}
Revenues 4 10,083 10,252
Cost of revenues 4 {6,121} {6.097)
Selling, general and administrative expenses {3,155} {3,358
Restructuring charges and other aperating charges and income {158} (192}
Impairment losses an intangible assets acguired through business combinations 4 {92} {6}
Other income 4 203 88
Other charges 4 {30} (50)
Earnings hefore interest and sncome taxes (EBIT) ? 736 637
Income from equity affiliates 13 (18) (21)
Interest 5 {96} (266}
Income from investments 3 66
Other financial income 5 19 13
Other financial charges 5 {751) (300)
Earmings from continuing operations before provision for Income taxes (107) 129
Provision for income taxes 62 {130) 17
Earnings from continuing operations (237) 146
Earnings from discontinued operations 3 5,262 2,633
Earnings 5,025 2,719
OFf whicl
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners 4,744 1,967
of which earmings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners {290) 43
earnings from discontinued operations attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 5,034 1924
Nen-controlling interests 281 812
of which sarmings from continuing operations 53 103
earnings from discontinued operations 228 709
Earnings from continuing operations attr:putable w Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic 7 {0 22) 003
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - difuted 7 (022) 603
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic 7 374 145
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted 7 313 144
Earnngs attributahbla to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic 7 352 148
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted 7 3 147

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, In euros

a  Incomphance with IFRS & - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
(as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom and Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013} have been
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings as discontinued operations {please refer to Note 3) Vivend: deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively The
ad;ustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31

The accompanying notes are an sntegral part of the Consohidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

(in mullions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Earnings 5,025 2,779
Actuanal gainsf{losses) related to employee defined henefit plans, net {68} {23}
Items not reclassified to profit or loss {68} {23)
Foreign currency transtation adjustments 778 {1,429)
Unrealized gains/{losses), net 936 58
Other impacts, net {94) 15
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or toss 1,620 (1.356)
Charges and income directly recogmzed in equity 8 1,552 (1,379)
Total comprehensive income 6,577 1,400
of which

Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners 6312 189
Total comprehensive Income attributable to non-controlling interests 265 B1t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwill

Non-current content assets
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in equity affiliates
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Nan-current assets

Inventories

Current tax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts receivable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Assets of discontinued businesses
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current pravisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial iabilities
Deferred tax lrabihities

Other non-current Labilies

Non-current liabilities

Current provisions

Short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other

Current tax payables

Liabilittes associated with assets held for sale

Liabilittes associated with assets of discontinued businesses

Current tiabilittes
Total habilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABIUITIES

10
"
12
13
14

15

10
15
14
16

18
21

15

18
2
15

Friday, february 27, 2015

Note  December 31, 2014 December 31,2013
9,329 17147
2,580 2,623

229 4,306
717 7,541
306 446
6,144 634
710 733
19,985 33450
14 330
234 627
1,135 1.148
1,983 4,838
49 45
6,845 1.041
10,360 8.090
- 1,078
5,393 6,562
15,753 15,730
35,738 49,180
7.434 7,368
5,160 8,381
m (1}
10,013 1,709
22,606 17,457
382 1,573
22,988 19,030
2,888 2,804
2,074 8,737
857 680
121 757
5,740 13,078
290 619
273 3,529
5.306 10,416
47 79
5916 14,643
1,094 2,429
7.010 11,072
12,750 36,150
35,738 49,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consclidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013 {a}

Operating activities
E£BIT 4 736 637
Adjustments 23 447 557
Content Investments net 19 {148}
Grass cash provided by oparating sctivitios before mncome tax pad 1202 1.046
Other changes In nes working capital 15 {123) 36
Net cash provided by opersting activities before incoma tax pad 1078 1.082
Income tax pard net 63 281 205
Net cash provided by operating activitras of comtinuing operations 1359 1287
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 3 2234 3,953
Net cash provided by opersting activities 3593 5240

Investing activities
Capital expenditures 2 (249) [278)
Purchases of consohdated companies after acquirad cash [100) (42)
Investments in equity affillates 13 {87} -
Increase in financial assets 14 (1057} {65)
Investments (1,493) 1385/
Proceeds from sales of property plant equpment and intangible assets 2 6 3
Proceeds from sales of consolidated compenies, after divested cash 3 16929 2739
Disposal of equity affiliates 13 - 8
Decrease n financial assets 113 878 J24
Divestitures 17.813 3504
Dividends recewved from equity affiliates 4 3
Drvidends received from unconsolidated companies 2 il
Nst cash provided by/Tused for} investing activitres of continuing operations 16,326 2176
Net cash provided by/{used for} investing actrvities of discentinued aperations 3 {2034) {4 363)
Net cash provided hyAused for) investing activities 14,292 {1187}

Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivend SA's share based

compensation plans 20 197 195
Sales/{purchases) of Vivendt SA's treasury shares 132) -
Distribution to Vivend) SA's shareowners 17 {1348) 113%5)
Other transactions with shareowners {2) {1 048]
Dwidends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests 134} {33)
Transactions with shareowners {1.219) {2,209)
Setting up of long-term borrowings and increase in ather long-term financial habilities 21 3 2405
Principal payment on long-term borrowsngs and decrease in other lang term financial habilities 21 {1670 {1910}
Principal payment on short term horrowings 21 (7 680} {5161}
Dther changes 1n short term borrowings and ather financial lizbhities 21 140 36
Interest paid, net 5 196} (266}
Othes cash items related to financial actvities {606} {330}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilitres {3.909) {5,226)
Net cash providad byflused for} financing activities of continuing operations 11,128) 17.435)
Net cash provided byfused for} financing actrvities of discontinued operations 3 (756) 1,017
Net cash provided byfused for) financing activities {11,684} 16.418)
Foreign curency transtation adjustments of continuing operations 10 {20}
Foreign cemency translation adjustments of dscantinued operations 3 {4) {72}
Chenge in cash and cash equivalents 6,007 {2.457)
Reclassification of discontinued operations’ cash and cash equevalents 3 203) 396)

Cash and cash equivelents
At beginning of the penod 16 1,041= 3,894
At end of the peniod 16 65845 101

a Incomphance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFR
{as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Marac Telecom and Actvision Blizzard (as from the second quarier of 2013) have been
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations (please refer to Note 3) Vivend: deconsolidated SFR,
Marac Telecom group, and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively These
adjustments are presented in Note 31 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consalidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of tha Consolidated Financiat Statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend) 15 a hmited liability company {société anonyme} incorporated under French law and subyect to French commercial company law
including the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce} Vivendi was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expinng
on December 17, 2086, except In the event of an early dissolution or unless its term 1s extended Its registered office 1s located at 42 avenus
de Friedland - 75008 Paris (France) Vivendi is listed on Euronext Pans {Compartment A)

Vivend: operates a number of companies that are leaders in content and media Canal+ Group 1s the French teader in pay-TV and 15 also
present m African countries, Poland, and Vietnam, its subsidiary Studiocanal, is a leading European player in the praduction, acquisition,
distribution and sale of films and TV sernes Universal Music Group 1s the world's leader in music Vivend: Village brings together Vivend
Ticketing, Wengo (expert counseling), Watchever {subscription video-on-demand) In addiion, Vivend: controls GVT, the leading Braziian
alternative operator

Viwvendr deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as fram November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014 and October 11, 2013,
respectively, each date being the date of their effective sale by Vivend) Moreover, as a result of the plan to selt GVT, this business has been
reported in Vivend!'s Consolidated Statement of Earmings as a discontinued operation, in accordance with IFRS 5

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries (the “group”} together
with interests 1n equity affiiates Amounts are reported in euros and all vaiues are rounded to the nearast million

On February 11, 2015, at a meeting hefd at the headquarters of the cempany, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consohidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 They were examined by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on
February 20, 2015 and the Supervisory Board, at its megting held on February 27, 2015

On Aprit 17, 2015, the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 will be submitted for approval at Vivend's
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2014 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2014

Vivend: applied from the first quarter of 2014 IFRIC 21 interpretation — Lewies, issued by the IFRS interpretation Commttee {IFRS IC) on May
20, 2013, endorsed by the EU on June 13, 2014 and published in the EU Official Journal on June 14, 2014 IFRIC 21 clanfies the treatment of
certain levies, in accordance with 1AS 37 — Prowisions, Contingent Liabiiities and Contingent Assets

IFRIC 21 specifically addresses the accounting of a liability to pay a levy imposed by public authonties on entities in accordance with
legislation {1 e, laws or regulations), except for income tax and value-added taxes Applying this interpretation has led to the modification,
where necessary, of the analysis of the obligating event triggering recognition of the liability This interpretation, which mandatonily applies to
accounting penods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 (and retrospectively as from January 1, 2013), had no matenal impact on Vivend's
Financial Statements

In addition and as a reminder, as from the Condensed Financial Statements for the first quarter of 2013, Vivend: veluntanly opted for the earty
apphication, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, of the standards relating to the principles of consolidation IFRS 10 —
Consolidated Financial Statements, 1FRS 11 — Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitigs, \AS 27 — Separate
Financial Statements, and IAS 28 —~ Investments in Associates and Jomt Ventures {refer 10 Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013 — pages 220 to 235 of the Annual Report} The application of these standards had no material impact
on Vivend!'s Financial Statements
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1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121 Consohidated Statement of Earnings

The main ling items presented in Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Eamings are revenues, income from equity afftliates, interest, prowision
for \ncomes taxes. earmings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Eamings presents a
subtotal for Carnings Before Interest and Tax {EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income (excluding those financing activities,
equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and Income taxes}

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 1 2 3 and presented in Note 5

122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 15 calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT 1s adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided by operating acuwities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affihates) tt also mcludes any cash flows ansing from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
denvative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases in ownership interests}

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivend: considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), Adjusted net income {ANI)}, and Cash Flow Fram Operations (CFFD), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group's operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend: considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data The method used In calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amartization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations, impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether thew performance 1s driven by the operating segment s
organic growth or by acquisitions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, impaimment
losses on goodw:lt and other intangibles acquwred through busmness combinations, as well as other financial income and charges related to
financiat investing transact:ons and transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financial
investing transactions include gains and losses recognized in business combinations, capial gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affilates and other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gan or loss of control 1n a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group's operating and ftnancial
performance Vivend: Management uses ad;usted net income because 1t better illustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurring and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items

e EBITA{**)

¢ income from equity affiliates (*} {**),

s nterest {*) (**), equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,
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s jncome from investments {*) {**}, including dividends and interest recesved from unconsolidated companies, and
* taxes and non-contralling interests related to these tems

It does not include the following items

e amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations {**} as well as impairment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations {*) {**),
other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and ta transactions with shareowners {*), as defined above,
other financial charges and income (*} (**), equa! to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change i value of financial habiities, which pnimanly include changes in the fair value of dernvative mstruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of issuing or canceliing
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
eamings from discontinued operations {*}{**), and

s provisions for income taxes and adjustments attnbutable to non-controlling interests and non-recurring tax items {notably the
changes n deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivend: SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Globat Proht Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liab:lities relating to nsks extinguished aver the period)

{*} Items as presentad in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings, {**) items as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Operations {CFFO)

Vivend considers cash flow fram operations (CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented n the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends recewved from equity affibiates and unconsolidated companies It alse includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operatng activities, before income tax, consists of dividends received from equity
affilates and uncansolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are mcluded :n net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFQ

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and liabibiies that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycle
(generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or habiltties If their matunty exceeds this penod, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabilities Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements

13  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Pursuant to IFRS principles, notably IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures, the Consclidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on a historical cast basis, with the exception of certain assets and Iabilities detailed below

The Consohdated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivend and its subsidianies after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions Vivendi has a December 31 yearend Subsidianies that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare interim financiat
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financtal Statements in comphance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistc Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivendi
Management based, in particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, hiabilities, equaty or eamings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

e revenue estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees (please refer to Note 13 4},
« provisions rsk estmates, performed on an individual basis, noung that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead to a nisk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1 3 8 and 18),
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= employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group untl
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 1 3 8 and 19),

» share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
vield {please refer to Notes 1 3 10 and 20),
certam financial instruments fair value estimates {please refer to Notes 1358, 1 37 and 22},
deferred taxes estimates conceming the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1.3 9 and 6),

« goodwll and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations (please refer to Notes 135 2),

= goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impaiment tests performed an each of the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
to Notes 1357,9, 11, and 12), and

« UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who were granted advances are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 13 5 3 and 10}

132 Principles of consolidation
A list of Vivendi’s major subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities is presented in Note 27

Consohdation

All companies in which Vivend: has a controlling interest, namely those in which 1t has the power to govem financial and operational pohicies
in order to obtam benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated

The new model of control, introduced by IFRS 10 which supersedes the revised 1AS 27 - Consolidated and Separate financial Statements, and
interpretat:on SIC 12 - Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities, 15 based on the following three critera to be fulfilled simuftaneousty to
conclude that the parent company exercises control

= aparent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existng rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, 1 €, the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns Power may anse from
existing or potential voting nghts, or contractual agreements Voting rights must be substantial, 1 e, they shall be exercisable at any
time without hmitation, particutarly during decision making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of power
depends on the nature of the subsidiary's relevant activities, the internal decision making process, and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,

+ the parent company I1s expased, or has nghts, to vanable returns from 1its involvement wath the subsidiary which may vary as a resutt
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns 15 broadly defined and includes, among other things, dvidends and other
economic benefit distributions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business
synergies, and

« the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns Exercising power without having any 'mpact on retums
toes not qualify as control

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as if the group was a single economic entity with two categonies of owners (1)
the owners of the parent company {Vivendr SA shareowners) and {11} the owners of non-controiling interests A non-controlling interest 1§
defined as the snterest in a subsid:ary that 1s not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result, changes to a parent company's
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control only impact equity, as control does not change within the economic
entity Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivendi recogrizes the
difference between the acquisitian price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to
Vivendi SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved in stages or a loss of control gives nise to profit or loss in the
statement of eamings

Accounting for joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which supersedes IAS 31 — Ffinancial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, and interpretation SIC 13 - Jasntly Controlfed Entities -

Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers, establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to 2 joint arrangement

In a joint arrangement, parties are hound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that 1s
a paity to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives ali the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once it has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectwely control the arrangement, jomt
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unamimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement
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Joint arrangements are classified into two categories

= |oint operations these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nights to the
assets, and obligations for the labilites, relating to the arrangement Those parties are cafled joint aperators A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabihities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and ts share of any of those items
held jointly, and

e |oint ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have jaint control of the arrangement have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 {please refer below)

The elimination of proportionate consolidation for joint ventures has no impact on Vivendi, which already accounted for companies that were,
directly or indirectly, jointly controlled by Vivend under the equity method, and a Imited number of other shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivend: exercises significant influence as weil as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when Vivendi holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting nights in an entity unless it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivend) does not exercise a significant influence Significant :nfluence can be evidenced through other critena,
such as representation on the board of directors or the entity’s equivalent governing body, participation 1n policy-making of financial and
operational processes, matenal transactions with the entity or the interchange of managenal personnel

133 Forewgn curency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivend! SA and the presentation currency
of the group 1s the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initiatly recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity’s functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exceptron of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net snvestment

Financial statements denominated in a forergn currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 15 not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Ftnancial Position s
transiated at the exchange rate at the end of the peniod, and the Consolidated Statement of Eamings and the Consohidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the penod The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as foreign
currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences aganst retaned earnings as of January 1, 2004 These fore:gn currency transiation
differences resulted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidianies that use foreign currencies as therr functional
currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to eamings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianes, joint ventures or
associates whose functional currency 1s not the euro

134 Revenues from operations and associated costs
Revenues from operations are recorded when 1t 1s probable that future econcmic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reporied net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestrial, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service penod,
net of gratwities granted Revenues from adverusing are recognized over the pened during the advertising commercrals are broadcast
Revenues from ancillary services (such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition: costs, as well as television distribution costs, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses
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Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a nght of use 1s granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized an a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatnical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distribution and from video and telewision or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other condittons of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1 3 4 3) and rebates, are recogmzed upon
shipment and availability of the product for retail sale Amortzation of film and telev:sion capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home video inventory costs and televiston and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues

1342 Unwersal Music Group {UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 134 3) and rebates, are
recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB) and on delivery for products sold free on
destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distribution platform {on-line or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Mustc publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copynghts on musical compositions owned or adrministered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are raceved and collectatility 15 assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufactuning and distribution costs, royalty and copynght expenses, artists’ costs, recorthng costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and admimstrative expenses pnmarily include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, pravisions for
doubtful recervables and (ndirect overheads

1343 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers

Selling, general and administrative expenses primarnly include salanes and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
Insurance costs, travel and entertanment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Sletting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
Is treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s idividualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitahized financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivend) did not capitalize financial nterest incurred during the construction and acquisition penod of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended 1AS 23 - Borrowing Costs this interest is included in
the cost of qualifying assets Vivend: applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs ts January 1, 2009 cnwards
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1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from Jaruary 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upen the initial consalidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

¢ the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
« non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-controliing interest’s propertionate share of the acquiree’s
net dentifiable assets This option 1s available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisstion date, goodwill 1s initially measured as the difference between
(1) the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interssts in the acquiree and, In a business
combination achieved in stages, the acqursition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
{u) the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase in goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby ieading to the recognition of a “full goodwill” The purchase price allocation shali be performed within 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwill I1s negative, 1t 1s recognized 1n the Statement of Earnings Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwill 1s measured at its
initsal amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (please refer to Note 1 35 7 below)

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

« on the acquisition date, to the extent posstble, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit Iikely to benefit from the business
combination,

« contingent cons:deration In a business combination 1$ recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurning after the purchase price allocation period 1s recognized in the Statements of Eamings,

* acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,

+ (n the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attnbutable to Vivend! SA shareowners, and

e goodwilt 1s not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFAS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, its provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respact of the
main following items
» mnonty interests were measured at therr proportionate share of the acquiree’s net wentifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value,
« contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only (f the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
e  transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs, and
* inthe event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
velue of mimonty interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 {ontent assets

Canal+ Group
Fiim, television or sports broadcasting nghts

When entering into contracts for the acquisit:ion of film, television or sports broadcasting nights, the rights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
« film and television broadcasting rights are recognized at thewr acquisition cost when the program 1s avallable for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period,
+ sports broadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost at the opeming of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
«  expensing of fitm, television or sports breadcasting nghts 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatrical film and tefevision nghts produced or acquired to be sold

Theatrical film and television nghts produced or acquired before ther initial extubition to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitahzed cost {mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cost Theatrical film and television nghts are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue methed {1 e, based on the ratio of the current perod’s gross
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revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis} Vivendi considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue methad reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 1s, for this actity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization method If, however, the accumulated amortization would be lower than this charge, a minimum straight-line amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year pernod, which corresponds to the typical screening perod of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against eamings for the period in which the losses are estrmated, on an
mdividual product basis

Fifm and television nghts catalogs

Catalogs compnise film nights acquired for a second television extubition, or produced or acquired film and television nghts that are sotd after
thewr first television screening {r e , after their first broadcast on a free terrestnat channel} They are recognized as an asset at their acquisition
or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method

UMG

Music publishing nghts and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and publishing nghts, acquired through business combinatrons,
amortized in selling, general and administrative expenses over a period not exceeding 15 years

Royalty advances to artists, sengwriters, and co-pubhishers are capitalized as an asset when their current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable to
them s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalt:es are earned by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties 15 expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes ewident These expenses are recorded in ¢ost of revenues

Royalties eamed by artists, songwniters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the penod during which the sale of the product
oceurs, fess a provision for estimated retums

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when mcurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitabihity of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for iIntemal use, including website development costs,
are capitahzed dunng the application development stage Applicat:on development stage costs generally include software configuration,
cotng, installation and testing Costs of sigmficant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are afso capitalized
These capitahized costs are amortized over 5 1o 10 years Maintenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement costs are expensed as incurred

1355 Other mtangiblo assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and mtangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acqwsition date The historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful |ife are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with a
fintte useful hfe Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting penod

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscnibers’ bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangble assets
1356 Propeny, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Historical cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attnbutable to transporting an asset to its physical location and preparing 1t for its
operationa!l use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the cellection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of
the physical location resulting from the incurred obligation
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When property, plant and equipment include sigmificant components with different usefu! lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization s calculated using the strawght-ine method based on the estimated useful Iife of the assets Useful lives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows
« buildings 5 to 40 years,
* equipment and machinery 3 to 8 years,
set-top boxes 5to 7 years, and
other 210 10 years

Assets financed by fmance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future mimimum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt 1s recorded as “Borrowings and other financial habilities™ In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over therr estimated usefu! l:fe, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After imtial recognition, the cost model s apphied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend) has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equrpment at
therr fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, which currently mainly applies to commereial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group (and GVT) satellite capacity, which
are commercial service agreements that do not convey a night to use a specific asset, contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as operational costs for the penod

1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate  current nsk of impairment of goodwall, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets n progress, Vivendr re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets 1n progress are all subject to an annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year This test s performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGL) or, if necessary, groups of CGU o
the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including goodwll) A Cash Generating Unit 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets The Vivend: group operates
through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are marketed through different
channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments Vivendi CGUs and groups
of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of (1) the value in use, or {u} the fair value (less costs to sell) as described hereafter, for
each individual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amaunt 1s determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill 1s performed by Vivend: for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivend) Management measures return on operations

The value 1n use of each asset or group of assets s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows {discountad cash flow method
{DCF)) by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial mstitutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time value of money and nisks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consisient with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapofating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-tenm average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value (less costs to seil} s the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data {stack
market prices or compansan with similar [isted companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) or
on discontinued future cash flows in the absence of reliable data

If the recoverable amount 1s lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impaiment loss equal to the difference s
recogmized 1n EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 1s first recorded against goodwill

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodw!ll} may be reversed In
a later penod if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the imit of impairment losses pravicusly recognized
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date
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1358 Financial assets

Financiat assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
initially recognized at fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, which 1s best evidenced by the acquisition cost {including
associated acquisition costs, if any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include available-for-sale secunties, denvative financial instruments with a positive value [please refer to
Note 137) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
organized public markets, their fair value being calculated by reference to the published market price at period end Fair value 15 estimated for
financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market As a last resort, when a reliable estimate of farr value
cannot be made using valuation techriques n the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at historical cost, less any
impairment losses

Available-for-sale secunties consist of unconsolidated interests and other secunties that cannot be classified in the other financial asset
categories described below Unrealized gams and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized 1n charges and income directly
recogrized 1n equity until the financial asset is sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there 15 objective evidence that the investment 1s impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 1 expensed in other financial charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivend: intends to sell in
the near future {pnmarily marketable securities) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recervables (pnmanly loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances o
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, securitized loans and recevables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors)
and held-to-maturity investments {financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity) At the end of each penod, these
assets are measured a1 amortized cost using the effective interest method If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount (equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s initial effective interest ratel, is recognized in profit or
loss mpairment losses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases In the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the fower of cost or net realizable value Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable valug is the estimated selhing price in
the normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

13510 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which ts generally equal to their nomenal value Provisions for the impairment
of receivables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference period For the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscreption {Canal+ Group). the depreciation rate of trade
account recevables 1s assessed on the basis of historical account receivables from former customers, pnmarnily on a statistical basis In
addition, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or customers with whom Vivend: s invalved in litigation or a
dispute are generalty impaired m full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents™ cateqory consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
ighly lquid iInvestments with imitial maturities of generally three months or less Investments in secunittes, investments with initial matunities
of more than three months without the posstbility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions (blocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regulations specific to @ country or activity sector (e g, exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the histoncal performance of the investments 1s monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification
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136 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A nan-current asset or 8 group of assets and lrabilities 1s held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture must
be hughly probable These assets and habilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of divestiture
fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and are no longer depreciated

An operation 1s qualified as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major ine of business and the critena for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivendi has sold the asset Discentinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earmings for the periods reported, comprising the eamings after tax of discontinued operations until diveststure and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabihties of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operat:ons are reported on a separate Iine of the Statement of Consohdated Cash Flows for the relevant peniods

Accounting principles and valuation methods specific to tefecommunications activities, divested in 2014 (SFR, Maroc Telecom
Group) or currently in the process of heing divested (GVT)

Revenues from gperations and associated costs
Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales n accordance with 1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment (mobile phones and other equipment), net of discounts granted to customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscription
contract period Revenues from thcoming and outgoing traffic are recognized when the service 1s rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distributors, are recogrized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commissions paid ta distributors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed on behalf of content providers {mamly premium rate numbers) are either accounted for
gross, or net of the content providers’ fees when the provider is respons:ble for the content and for setting the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and installation costs nvoiced primanly to the operator's clients on the installation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructure 1s provided to clients pursuant to various types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements IRU agreements, witch are specific to the telecommunication sectar, confer an
exclusive and irevocable night to use an asset {cables, fiber optic or bandwidth) during a {generally lengthy) defined period without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agreements 1s recognized over the
duration of the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 1s considered as a sale on credit

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues comprise purchasing costs {including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Seliing, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses

Other intangible assets

Licenses to operate telecom networks are recorded at historical cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from their effective service start date over their estmated useful life until matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recognized in the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The variable fee, which cannot be rehably determined
(equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity in the case of the telecommunication licenses i France), 1s recorded as an expense
when incurred
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Property, plant and equipment

These mainly consist of the network equipment for telecommunications activities, each part of which 1s amortized generally over 1 to 50 years
for fiber optic equipment
In respect of commercial supply agreements for telecommunications capacities
+ Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU} agreements confer an exclusive and irrevocable right to use an asset duning a defined period 1RU
agreements are Jeases which convey a specific nght of use for a defined portion of the underlying asset :n the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths [RU agreements are capitalized if the agreement peniod covers the major part of the useful Iife of the
underlying asset 1RU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
« some IRU contracts are commerctal service agreements that do not convey a right to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operational costs for the penod

Accounting principles and valuation methods applicable specifically to Activision Blizzard (video games), a business divested
in 2013

Revenue and related costs

The major portion of Activision Blizzard revenue 1s generated by the sale of boxes for video games, net of a provision for estimated retums and
price guarantees as well as rebates, if any Regarding video games with significant online functionality or Massively Multiplayer Online Role
Playing Games, revenues are recorded ratably over the esumated relationship period with the customer, usually and respectively beginning in
the month following the shipment or upen activation of the subscription The estimated relationship period with the customer over which
revenues are recogmized currently ranges fraom a minimum of five months to a maximum of less than a year Costs of sales associated with
revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method as for
revenues

Content assets

Licensing activities and intemally developed franchises are recognized as contents assets at their acquisition cost or development cost and
are amortized over their estimated useful life on the basis of the rate at which the related economic benefits are consumed This generally
leads to an amortization persod of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

Cost of software for remtal, sale or commercialization

Software development costs (video games) are capitalized when, notably the technical feasibihity of the software 1s esteblished and they are
deemed recoverable These costs are manly generated by Activision Bhzzard as part of the games development process and are amortized
using the estimated revenue method {1 e, based on the ratio of the current period’s gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues} for a
given product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maxsimum period of & months commencing on a praduct’s release
date Non-capitahized software development costs are immedately recorded as research and development costs

137 Financial liabihties

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial lizbilities include
« bonds and credit facilities, as well as vanous other borrowangs {including commerciat paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest,
obhgations ansing out of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negative value of other dervatve fimancial instruments Denvatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
Interest are subsequentty valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1s the intemnal yield rate
that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded denvative (e g, an
exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt component only, after
separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption 1s earlier
than imitially expected), the amortized cost 15 adjusted agamst earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted at the
inihial effective interest rate
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Commitments o purchase non-controlling interests

Vivend: has granted commitments to purchase non-controlling interests to certain shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidianies These
purchase commitments may be optional (e g , put options) or mandatory (e g , forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted in respect of commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

+ upon instial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-contralling :nterssts 1s recognized as a financial liability for the presant
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through the book value of non-
controlling Interests and the remaining balance through equity attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareownaers,

= subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial hiability by an adjustment to equity attnibutable to
Vivend: SA shareowners, and

s upon maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed,
if the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial hiawlities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Derivative financial instruments

Vivend: vses denvative financial mstruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either l:sted on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these derivatie financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses arising on these contracts are offset in eamings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged item When the denvative financial instrument hedges exposures to fiuctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a hability recognized in the Staternent of Financial Position or of & firm commitment which 1s not recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position, 1t 15 a fair value hedge The instrument 1s remeasured at fair value in earnings, with the gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged 1tem offset on the same line of the Statement of Earmings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a nen-financial asset or Liab:lity, at the imitial cost of the asset or liability When the derivative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, it 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 1s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or loss that 13
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized In equity, whereas its ineffective portion 1s
recognized 1n earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or habiity, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset ar liabihty When the hedged item s realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same hine as the hedged item When the dernvative financial instrument hedges a net investment i a foreign
operation, 1t 1§ recognized 1n the same way as a cash flow hedge Denvative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in earmings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content nghts {including sports, audiovisual and film nghts) are recognized in
EBIT In all ather cases, gains and losses arising on the fair value remeasurement of insttuments are recognized in other financial charges and
income

138 Other habilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivend: has a legal obligation {legal, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it 18 probable that an outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits will be
required to settle the abligation and the cbhgation can be relably estimated Where the effect of the tme value of money 1s matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money 1f the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated, no provision 1s recorded and a disclosure 1s made in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benefit plans

in accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates n, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement heafth care, Iife insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficiaries who meet the reguired conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social secunty and muiti-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group 1s consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations
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Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contrnibution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defingd benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by nvestments in vanous instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and deht investment
securities, excluding Vivendi shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit cbligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method This method
15 based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend) until retirement, expected
changes in future compensation and an apprepnate discount rate for each country in which Vivendi maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted in 2013 and 2014, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 19 A provision is recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuanal value of the related benefits (actuanal hability} and the fair
value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuanal ga:ns and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows

* the service cost 1s included in selling, general and administrative expenses |t comprises cument service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized n profit and loss, and gains and losses on setilement,

+ the financial component, recorded 1n other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obhigation, less the
gxpected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation, and

¢ the remeasurements of the net defined benefit iabiity {asset), recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified
to profit and loss, mainly consist of actuanal gains and Iosses, 1 e, changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and plan assets resulting from changes in actuanal assumptions and experience adjustments {representing the differences between
the expected effact of some actuarial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective effect)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset 15 recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contnbutions

Some other post-employment bensfits, such as life nsurance and medical coverage (mamnly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuanal calculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend) decided to record unrecogrized actuarial gams and losses against consohidated equity

139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabdities and their carrying value in the Conschidated Statement of
Financial Position give rise to temporary differences Pursuant to the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of
o deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 1s greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving), and
o defemred tax labilities, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value {expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and Yabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the liabihity
settled, based on tax rates (and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in hine with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as 1t 15
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liabdity exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 1s
generated by initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or loss

For deductible temporary differsnces resulting from investments In subsicdiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utifized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utihzed When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
baing available, account is taken, pnimarily, of priar years’ results, forecasted future results, nan-recurning items unhkely to occur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carrted forward (s to a large extent judgment-based if
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expacted, the group would be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earnings
of the group
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Deferred tax habilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liahility results from goodwili or
imitial recognition of an asset or hiability in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
Impact eamings, tax income or |0ss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, jont ventures and other associated entities, defered tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, investar ar venturer 15 ablg to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 15 probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, If the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders” interests by providing them with an
addstional iIncentive to improve the company’s performance and increase 1ts share price on a long-term basis, Vivend: maintains several share-
based compensat:on plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivend share price {stock options), which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares 1s
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Managemant Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upen active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Universal Music Group maintains Equity Lang-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
units, which are settled in cash These equity units are phantom stock units whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer to Note 20 for deta!ls of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation 1s recognized as a personne! cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense is spread over
the vesting period, 1 e, three years for stock option plans and two years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivendi, other than
In specific cases

Vivend use a binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nsk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group untii the exerctse of their nights

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settled instruments
« the expected term of the option granted 15 deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
« the value of the instruments granted is estimated and fixed at grant date, and
« the expense 1s recognized with a correspanding increase in equity

Cash-sattled instruments

» the expected term of the instruments granted 1s deemed to be egual to one-half of the residual contractual term of the mstrument
for vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of
the instrument for unvested rights,

« the value of instruments granted 15 initially estimated at grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense is adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such report:ng date,

= the expense I recognized as a provision, and

* moreover, as plans settled in cash are prmanly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 1s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equrty instruments or equivalent
nstruments granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the 1ssuance of Vivend shares which are in the process
of vesting 1s reflected in the calculatien of diluted eamings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to retraspectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which nights remasned to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
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14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, jomnt control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group jont ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidianies, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exermise exclusive control, joint control,
or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidianies over which the group exerctses control are not included in the intersegment operations (a list of
the pnncipal consolidated subsidianes s presented in Note 27) Moreover, commercial relationships among subsicianies of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s length basts on terms and conditions simular to those which would be offered
by third parties The operating costs of Vivendi SA’s headquarters, after the alfocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s
businesses, are mcluded in the Corporate operating segment {Please refer to Note 2 for a detailed description of the transactions between the
parent company and the subsidianes of the group, aggregated by operating segments)

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend: and 1ts subsidiaries prepare detalled reports on all matenal contractual oblgations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are jointly and severatly liable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are carmed out, including (but not imited to) the review of

s minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authonzation of asset acguisitions or divestitures,

+ pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

« pending litigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
intenal and/or external legal counsels,

« tax examiner's reports and, if appltcable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,

= Insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the nsk management department and insurance agents and brakers with
whom the group contracted,

+ related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or recewed commitments, and more generally

«  major contracts and agreements

16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

The IFRS standards and IFRIC wnterpretations that have been published by the IASB and endorsed in the European Union, which are not yet
effective but which have been applied in anticipation are detailed in Note 11

Among IFRS standards and [FRIC interpretations i1ssued by the IASB/IFRS IC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend has not elected for an earlier application, the main standard which may
have an impact on Vivend: s IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 1ssued by 1ASB on May 28, 2014, which applies mandatornly
from January 1, 2017, and stll being endorsed in the EU Vivendi 1s currently assessing the potential tmpact on the Statement of Earnings, the
aggregate comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Hows, and the content of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in applying this standard
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Note 2 Segment data

21 Operating segment data

The Vivend: group comprises several businesses that are leaders in content and media Each business offers different products and services
that are marketed through different channels Given the unique customer base, technology, marketing and distnbution requirements of each of
these businesses, each business 1s managed separately and represents the base of the internal reporting of the group The Vivendi group has
the following main businesses

+  Canal+ Group publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels in France,
Poland, Afnica and Vietnam as weli as production and distrnibution of cinema film and TV series tn Europe In 2014 and 2013, Canal+
Group notably acquired Red Production Company (November 22, 2013), Mediaserv (February 13, 2014) and Thema {October 28,
2014), and

+  Universal Music Group sale of recorded music (physical and digital media), exploitat:on of music publishing rights as well as
artist services and merchandising In 2014, UMG notably acquired Eagle Rock Entertainment Limited (April 8, 2014)

Vivend: Managemsnt evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certan
operating indicators (segment eamings and cash flow from operations) Segment eamings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data Is prepared in accordance with the following principles

s  the operating segment “Vivendi Village” includes other operations, notably Vivend: Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick),
Wengo (expert advisary services), and Watchever (platform in broadcasting of audiovisual works),

«  the operating segment "Carporate” includes the headquarter’s costs, net of the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the
businesses,

« intersegment commercial relations are conducted on an arm's length basts on terms and conditions stmilar to those which would be
offered by third parties, and

+  the operating segments presented hereunder are strictly rdentical to the information given to Vivendi's Management Board

In addition, Vivendr's interests in SFR and GVT, discontinued businesses as of December 31, 2014 (please refer to Note 3}, are no longer
reported In segment data as a result of the application of IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
the 2013 Consolidated Statement of Eamings and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows were adjusted to ensure consistency
of information, and
- GVT's assets and habilities were reclassified as unallocated assets as of December 31, 2014

For a detailed description of the adjustments made to the previously published Financial Statements, please refer to Note 31

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi also presented data categorized according to four geographic regions, including France and the United
States

Financial Report and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Vivend) /68



Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Year onded December 31 2014

{in malions of euros}

Extarnal revenues
Intarsagment revenues
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding amertization and depreciation
EBITDA
Restructuring charges
Gains/(lossas) an sales of tangible and ntangible assets
Other non-recummng iems
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amertization of intangible assets exchuding those acquired through business
combinations
Adjusted earnmgs before interest end income taxes (EBITA)
Amgrtization of intangible assats acquired through business combinations
Impairmant losses on intangible assets acquired threugh business combinations
Other income:
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT}
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Incorne from vestments
Other financial income
Other finangial charges
Prawision for income taxes
Earmings from diseontinued operations
Ezarmings
Of which
Earmings atinbutable to Vivendi SA sharecwners
eamngs from continuing operahions atnbutable to Vivend: SA
shareowners
eamings from discontinued oparations atmbutable to Vevand: SA shareownars

Non controlling interests

Year ended December 31, 2013

{in millians of euros}

Externaf revenues
[ntarsegment revenues
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding amortization and depreciation
EBITDA
RAastructuning chargas
GainsAlosses} an sales of tangible and intangible assets
Other nan recurnng items
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets excludmg those acquired through business
combanations
Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Amortization of intangibla assats acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses on intangible assats acquired through business combinatians
(rther income
Other chargas
Esm:ngs before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income from equity affihates
intenast
Income from investments
Drher financial Income
Other financial charges
Prowision for income $axes
Earnings from discontinued operations
Eamnings
Of which
Earnings attnbutable to Vivends SA sharecwners
eamings from continusng operations attnbutabla to Vivends SA
shareowners
earnngs from discontinued operancas attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners

Non-controlling interests
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Friday, February 27, 2015

Canal+ Group Mﬂz::eéigl Vivend) Village Corporate GVT SFR Total Vivendh
{in millions of euros) P
December 31, 2014
Segment assets {a) 7.829 8677 1™ 5,896 - - 22,556
Unallocated assets (o) 13182
Total Assets 35,138
Segment labtliues {¢) 2609 3.463 129 2404 - - 8,605
Unallocated hiabilities (d} 4,145
Total Lishulities 12,750
Increase in tangible and intangible assets 205 47 7 - - - 759
Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) (e) 190 48 7 - - 243
December 31, 2013
Segment assets (a) 7500 B 256 251 154 4674 18304 39,139
Unallocated assets (b} 10041
Total Agsets 49,180
Segment labilties {c) 2542 3462 78 2213 548 5813 14,696
Unallocated habilities {d} 15,454
Total Liabilties 30,150
Increase In tangible and intangible assets 213 54 8 1 776 1665 2
Capital expendrtures, net [capex net}{e) n 26 g - 769 1610 2,624

Additional operating segment data is presented in Note 9 “Goodwill”, and Note 10 "Content assets and commitments”

a Segment assets Iinclude goodwiil, content assets, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment. investments In equity
affibates, financial assets, inventores and trade accounts receivable, and ather

b Unallocated assets include deferred tax assets, current tax recervables and cash and cash equivalents As of December 31, 2014, they
also included GVT's assets of discontinued businesses for €5,393 million As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom
group’s assets of discontinued businesses for €6,562 million and the remaining 83 million Activision Blizzard shares held by Vivend:,
valued at £1,078 millign {please refer to Note 3}

¢ Segment habiities include provisions, other non-current habilities, and trade accounts payable

d Unallocated liabilities include borrowings and other financial labilities, deferred tax liabiliies and current tax payables As of
December 31, 2014, they also :ncluded GVT's liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses for €1,094 million {excluding
financial liabilities to Vivendi SA} As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom group's habilities associated with
assets of discontinued businesses for €2,429 million (please refer to Note 3)

e Relates to cash used for capital expend:tures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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22 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by customer location

Year ended December 31,

{in milhiens of guras) 2014 2013
Revenues
France 4,482 44% 4,491 44%
Rest of Europe 2,505 25% 2,462 24%
United States 1,748 17% 1,883 8%
Rest of the World 1,354 14% 1,416 14%
10,089 100% 10,252 100%
{in milltons of euros) December 31, 2014 December 31,2013
Segment assets
‘ France 1714 52% 24,950 64%
! Rest of Ewrope 2,519 1% 2483 6%
| United States 7 660 34% 6549 17%
Brazl K} 0% 4,725 12%
Rest of the World 572 3% 432 1%
22,55 100% 39,139 100%

In 2014 and 2013, acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets were mainly realized in France by Canal+ Group

|
‘ Note 3

Discontinued operations

Friday February 27 2015

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non<urrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision

terms

| Statement of Earmings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31

Financial Repart and Acdited Consohdated Financiat Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014

Blizzard have been reported tn Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the following

+  Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
! GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each {ine of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the knes “"Assets of discontinued businesses”™ and “Liabilities associated with assets of
discontinued businesses”

= Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Vivend deconsohdated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actvision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
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31 Saleof SFR

On November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Competition Authority
on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions {see below), Vivend! announced the closing of the combmation between SFR and Numericable
The main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €13 5 billion, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend) receved
€13 366 bithon in cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivendi made a contnbutign of
€200 million to the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numericable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated 1s based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes in the net working capital, SFR’s net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and 1s subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis tn accordance with the contract

Vivend!'s interest in the combined entity | 20% of Numericable - SFR {publicly-hsted)

Altice's interest in the combined entity Approximately 60% of Numenicable - SFR (approximately 20% free float)

Eam-out Earn-out of €750 million 1f the EBITDA Capex aggregate of the combined entity is equal to
or tugher than €2 liliien during any fiscal year, end:ng not later than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Governance - Minonty representation for Vivend: an the Board of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivend retaining a 20% interest in Numencable - SFR {1 director if Vivend;

holds an interest between 10% and 20%)

Veto nghts on certain exceptional matters subject to Vivendi retaiming a 20% interest in

Numericable - SFR

Numericable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Authonity an undertaking

not to disclose any strategic tnformation on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV

services, or uttramanne telecommunications markets to Vivend:

Standard 180-day lock-up periad, including restrictions on any disposal or transfer of

shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the rights

1ssug of Numericable Group {on November 20, 2014}, at the request of the underwnting

banks

- Lock-up period until the end of November 2015, after which Vivend may sell or distribute

its Numericable - SFR shares, without restrictions, with a right of prionty granted to

Altice (pre-emption right or right of first offer)

Vivend! has agreed not to acquire any Numericable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,

until June 30, 2018

- Subject to Vivend: retaining 1ts shares, Altice will have a call option at market value
(subject to a floor'} on Vivendr's interest, exercisable 1n three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%) over
one-month window periods starting on June 1, 2016, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018

- Tag-along rights for Vivend: if Altice sells its shares

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the

Statement of Financial Position of Vivends as a discontinued operation The data presented below relates to the contribution of the operating

segment "SFR™ until the effective divestiture date, which includes SFR S A and its subsidianss, as well as the interest held by Vivends,

through 1ts subsidiary, SIG 50, in the telecommunication products and services distribution operations

1

Liquidity - Lock-up period

Recognition of 20% interast in Numericable - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 106% of its interest in SFR to Numericable and received €13 166 billion 1n cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts Since that date,
Vivendi deconsolidated SFR Given the significant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivendi and Numencable - SFR to the
French Competition Authonity with respect to all Numenicable - SFR's operations, Vivendi’s minority representation on Numenicable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nights granted to Vivendi by Numericable - SFR’s govemnance (see above) helps Vivend:
adequately protect its proprietary interests as a mnenty shareholder Vivend: considers that it does not have the nght to participate m
Numericable - SFR’s financial and operational policy-making processes, according to tAS 28 Without having a sigmificant influence, the 20%
interest in Numericable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sale secunties” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, in accordance with IAS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 million as of December 31, 2014) as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recogmized in equity From MNovember 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivend!'s interest \n Numericable - SFR resulted in an unrealized gamn of €743 million (before taxes)

! Volume Werghted Average Price (VWAF) of Numericable Group s share price over the 20 business days before the closing date fwhich occurred on November 27 2014)
€29 46 grossed-up at an annual rate of 5% dunng the period ranging from the closing date unt! the date of exercise of the call option

Frmancial Report and Audited Consoldated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /72




Friday, February 27, 2015

Capital gan on the sale of SFR

In accordance with IFRS, the capital gam on the sale of SFR was caiculated as the difference between the sale price of 100% of SFR and the
value of SFR’s net assets, as recorded in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements on the date of the sale The components of the sale
price are {1} the €13 166 bililon cash proceeds, and (i) the value of a 20% interest in the new combined entity Numericable-SFR, valued at
the stock market's price on November 27, 2014 {€33 315 per share), or €3 244 billion The eam-out {£750 million) was excluded from the
calculation at this stage, due to its contingent nature On this basis, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 million {after
taxes), recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings under the line "Earmings from discontinued operations” Excluding the
discontinuation” of amortization since April 1, 2014, In accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €3,459
mtllion

Guarantees refated to the sale of Maroc Telecom group

Vivend: has agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amgunt that may be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in relation
with the sale of its interest in Maroc Telecom
« with respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment will expire at the expiry of Etisalat's right to make
a claim against Vivend: and SFR, 1 e, on May 14, 2018, and
e this commitmant, which will also cover any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, will
expire i the absence of any request from Numericable Group within the applicable statutes of limitations

3.2 Plantosell GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivendi's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefonica to sell GVT After recewving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 1t authorized the execution of an agreement with Telgfonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are descnbed below, represents a total enterprise value of €7 45 billion (based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negatiations were entered into with Telefonica), correspending to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction 1s subject to certain conditions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authonties, and is expected to occur during the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completion date £4 66 illion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt {approximately €480 million), as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actuat numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 million The net sale price 13 estimated at
approximatefy £3 75 hillion

Consideration shares 74% interest in Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% interest (8 3% voting rights) in
Telecom ltalia

Financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction is subject to obtaming approvals from ANATEL {Ag8ncia

Nacional de Telecomunicagdes) and CADE {Consetho Administrativo de Defesa EconBmica) in

Braz/l, and other conditions custemary i this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Liquichty With respect to Vivendi's interest in the combined VIVD/GVT entity

- maximum 180 day fock-up penod starting as from the compfetion date of the
transaction, and

- tag-along nghts

Governance Na specific governance nights in VIVQ/GVT and Telecom italia

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and i Statement of Financial Position of Vivend: as a discontinued operation

2 When an activity 1s discontinved IFAS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the oparation s tangible and intangible sssets Therefore for SFR, reported as a
discontinued operation since March 31 2014 Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resufting in a positive
mpact, attrbutable to Viverd: SA shareholders of €1 081 millon on earmings from discontinued operations from Apnl 1 to November 27 2014
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33 Sale of Maroc Telecom group

0On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered inte on November 4, 2013, Vivend: sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom to Etisalat
and receved €4,138 million in total cash praceeds from sale, after a contractual price adjustment {-€49 milfion) On the same date, Vivend
deconsohdated Marog Telecom and recorded a capital gain of €786 million (before taxes and net of costs related to the sale), which s
presented under “Earnings from discontinued operations” in 2014 The agreements contained representations and warranties customary to
this type of transaction The main terms of the sale were the following

s Vivendi provided certain customary representations and warranties to Etisalat relating to SPT (the holding company of Maroc
Tetecom group), Maroc Telecom and its subsidiaries Vivend: also granted a number of specific guarantess,

e the amount of compensation to be paid by Vivends 1n respect of indemnifiable losses mcurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its
subsidianes was determined in proportion to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivend in the relevant company on
the closing date {: &, 53% for Maroc Telecom),

s Vivend's overall obligation to indemnify was capped at 50% of the initial sale price, and this threshold was ncreased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT,

e the commitments to indemnify provided by Vivend:, other than those in respect of taxes and SPT, will remain in effect for a
24 month perod following completion of the transaction {May 2016) Claims for tax-related indemnities must be made by January
15, 2018 The indemnity related to SPT remains in effect until the end of a four-year penod following the clesing (May 14, 2018},
and

« to guarantee the payment of any specific ndemnity amounts referenced above, Vivend: delivered a bank guarantee to Etisalat in
the amount of €247 million, expinng on February 15, 2018 On July 8, 2014, Vivend: received a discharge of this guarantee for the
amount of €229 million

3.4 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered into on October 11, 2013, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivendi were
subject to a two-tiered lock-up provision

e from October 11, 2013 until Apnl 9, 2014, Vivendi cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizzard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apnl 10, untif July 9, 2014, Vivend: can sell Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of {1} 50% of Vivend's B3 million remaining shares and {11} 9% of the outstanding shares of Activision
Blizzard, and

e from July 10, 2014 until January 7, 2015, Vivend) was subject to another lock-up proviston, as from January 7, 2015, Vivend: may
sell its remamning Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Considering the initial intention of Vivendi Management to sell these shares at the end of the lock-up perods i market conditions were
favorable, the 83 million Activision Bhizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivend sold a first tranche of 41 5 mithon Activision Bhizzard shares for $852 million (€623 m:llion) The €84 million capital
gan (s presented in “Earnings from discontinued operations” Taking into account the capitat gain of €123 million recorded n 2013, the
capital gain realized by Vivend: with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 million

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining interest of 415 million Activision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million {€689 million} was
reclassified in “available-for-sale secunties” as Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interest m the immediate future As of
December 33, 2014, the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 million (before taxes), directly recognized in

equity

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivendi /74




Fnday February 27, 2015

35 Earmings from discontinued operations

In compliance with IFRS 5, the line “Earmngs from discontinued operations” presented :n Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings
includes the operations of GVT {for the years 2014 and 2013), SFR tfor the year 2013 and until the date of the sale on November 27, 2014},
Maroc Telecom group (for the year 2013 and untit the date of the sale on May 14, 2014}, and Activision Blrzzard {until the date of the sale on
October 11, 2013) as well as the capital gam on completed divestiture with respect to discontinued operations

2014 contributions
GVT SFR Ma“’é Telecom Other Total
{in muthon of euros} roup
Revenues 1,765 8981 969 - 11,715
EBITDA 702 2128 530 - 3361
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) 367 683 360 - 1,416
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a) 478 1732 51 - 2,74
Earnings before interest and income taxes {EBIT) 457 1,676 531 . 2664
Earnings befere provision for income taxes 393 1,487 527 - 2407
Provision for income taxes {89) {188) {120 - 1397)
Earnings 304 1,299 407 - 2010
Capital gain on completed divestiture na 2,378 786 84 {b) 3248
Qther {2) - :} 4
Earnings from discontinued operations 302 3677 1,193 90 5262
—
0f which attributable to Vivend SA shareowners 302 3663 979 90 5,034
non controlling Interests 14 214 228

2013 contrtbutions

Maroc Telecom Activision

GVT SFR g Blizzard Total
{in millions of euros) oup tzat
Revenues 1709 10,189 2,559 2328 16 795
EBITDA 707 2,766 1453 989 5915
Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 405 1073 984 871 33313
EBITA after discantinuation of amortization (a) 405 1,073 1215 895 3,588
Earmings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 355 {1,427} (c) 1,202 891 1.021
Earnings before provision for income taxes 121 [1,689) {c) 1169 846 447
Provision for income taxes (32) {315) {473} {154} (974)
Earmings 89 (2,004} {c) 696 692 (527}
Capitat gain on completed divestiture na na na 2915 2915
Gain in value of the remaining interest na na na 245 245
Earmings from discontinued operations 89 (2,004} {c} 696 3852 2533
Of which attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 89 (2,010) {c} 261 3,584 1924
non-controlling interests - 6 435 268 708
na not applicable
a In comphance with IFRS 5, Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangibie and intangible assets of
GVT as from September 1, 2014,
SFR as from April 1, 2014,
Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013, and
Activision Bhzzard as from July 1, 2013
b Includes the capital gain on the divestiture of 41 5 million Activiston Blizzard shares, completed on May 22, 2014
C Includes the impairment of SFR’s goodwill for €2,431 mdlion
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3.6 Assets and liabilities of discontinued businesses

In compliance with IFRS 5, the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabiiities associated with assets of discontinued businesses”
presented wn Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position report the contribution of discontinued aperations at the closing date

- GVT as of December 31, 2014, and
- Maroc Telecom group as of December 31, 2013

December 31, 2014

{in millions of euros) o
Goodwill 1,678
Intangible assets 1M
Praperty plant and equiprnent 2,694
Trade accounts receivable and other 657
Cash and cash equivalents 179
Other 16
Assets of discontinued businesses 5393
Provisions 67
Borrowings and other financial liabilites 1,506
of which Borrowings from Vivend: (a) 1,110
Trade accounts payable and other 510
Other 121
Liabilities 2204
Barrgwings from Vivendi (a) {1,110}
Liahihties associated with assets of discontinued businesses 1,094
4,299

a  This borrowing from Vivend will be redeemed on the date of GVT's sale completion

December 31, 2013

Maroc Telecom

{in mdlions of euros) Group
Goodwill 2,392
Intangible assets 386
Praperty plant and equipment 2,456
Trade accounts receivable and other 845
Cash and cash equivalents 3%
Other 77
Assets of discontinued businesses 6,562
Provisions 78
Borrowings and other financial liabilities Nno
Trade accounts payable and other 1,541
Other 100
Liahilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses 2,429

4133
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In accordance with [FRS 5, the hine “Cash Flows of discontinued operations” of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows takes into
account GVT {for the years 2014 and 2013), SER (for the year 2013 and unt/ its effective sale in 2014), Maroc Telecom group {for the year
2013 and until its effective sale in 2014), and Activision Blizzard {untif its effactive sale in 2013)

2014 coninbutions
VT SFR Marog Telecom Tatal

{&n millions of evros) roup

Operating activities

Gross cash provided by operating actwities before incame tax paid no 1846 345 2901
Other changes I net working capital (40) (328 27 {333)
Net cash prowided by operating actwities 593 1339 302 2,234
Investing activities

Capital expenditures net 617) {1238} (146} {2 001}
Change in financial assets net 2 {35} - (33}
Net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities {615) (1273} {146} (2.039)
Financing activifies

Diidends paid t non controthing nterests 7 (20} [27)
Other transactions with nan controlling nterests - (1) t
Inerest paxd net on financings 22) (8) (28)
Interest paid on borrewings from Vivend) {13) (141) (154)
Other transactions on borrowings and other financial ligbilities {25) 410 {101) {536)
Net cash provided byfused for) financing activittes excluding intersegment transacttons {60} (564) (132) (756)
Transactions with Vivendi on borrowings and other financial habilities 110 237 347
Net cash provided byAused for) financing activities [7] (327) (132) {409)
Foreign currency translaticn adjustments [vi] - {2) 4
Change in cash and cash equivalents % (261) 2 213
Cash and cash equivalents

Atbegmning of the perod 154 394 39 944
At end of the period 180 133 418 3

2013 contributions
T SFR Maroc Telecom A[;:lllwsmn Total

{in miflzons of euros) Group 2z

Opersting activitios

Gross cash provided by operating actvities before income tax paid ni 2565 1448 a07 5637
Other changes in net working capital 39 {308) 9 {524} 1839
Net cash provided by operating activities 575 1,961 1110 307 3953
Investing activities

Capital expenditures net {769) 11610 (434) [44) {2 857}
Change in financial assets net (4) {28 5 11 479) {1 5061
Net cash provided by/{usad for) investing sctivibigs (113) {1638) (429) {t,523) (4,363}
Financing sctivities

Diidends pard to non controliing interests (] (328) (66) (397)
Interest paid net on financings 23) 16} {28) 1 (67)
Interest paid on borrowings from Vivendi (0 (212) (222
Other transactions on borrowings and other financial habilities 43 {46) 13 1719 1703
Net cash provided by/{used for} inancing sctivities excluding intersegmant transactions 10 2 (379) 1,654 1,017
Dividends paid to Vivend: (982) (98} {1 080
Transactions with Yivendi an borrowings and other financial labiliies 184 1063 1247
Net cash provided byf{used for) inancing activitias 194 1196} (370} 1 556 1184
Foreign currency translation adiustments (28} 1) {43} (72}
Change in cash and cash equivalents {32} 127 310 297 02
Cash and cash equivalenty

At beginning of the period 186 267 85 2 983 3528
At end of the period 154 394 396 3285 4230
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Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenuss and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013

Product sales, net 4701 5,028
Services revenues 5322 5,196
Other 66 28
Revenues 10,089 10,252
Cost of preducts sold net (2 365) {2514)
Cost of service revenues {3,748) 13,576}
Other {8) 7
Cost of revenues {6,121) (6,097)

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

{tn millons of euros except number of employees} Note 2014 2013
Annual sverage eumhber of full-tme equivalent employees {in thousands) 150 146
Salanes 1015 1043
Social securnity and other employment charges 251 241
Capitahzed personnel costs {3) (3)
Wages and expenses 1263 1281
Share-based compensation plans 201 {8 29
Employee benefit plans 191 10 17
Qther 42 34
Personnel costs 1,307 1,361

Additional information on operating expenses
Advertising costs amounted to €407 million 1n 2014 (compared to €442 m:llion in 2013)

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transpenders amounted to £115 million
in 2014 {compared to €108 midlion in 2013}

Net expense recorded i the Statement of Earmings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €104 mullion 1n 2014 (compared to
€97 million n 2013}

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euras) Note 2014 2013
Amortization {excluding intangible assets acquired through business combinations) 307 310
of which property plant and equipment 12 232 228
content assets 10 14 a2
ather intangible assets 1 61 60
Amortization of intangiblie assets acquired through business combirations 344 350
of which content assets 10 334 339
other intangible assets 1 10 11
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combnaticns N 92 (a) 6
Amortizatron and depreciation of intangible and tangible assats 743 666

a  Primarly relates to full impairment lgsses of goodwill related to Digitick for €43 million and Wenge for €48 millien (please refer to
Note 9}
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Other income and other charges

{in mithons of euras)

Capital gain on financial investments
Capital gain on the divestiture of businesses
Other

Other income

Downside adjustment on financial investments
Other
Other charges

Net total

Fnday, February 27, 2015

Year ended December 31,

a Includes the capital gain of the sale of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million)

Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest

{in mellions of euros)
{Charge}/Income
Interest expense on borrowings
Interest income on SFR's loans
Interest income on GVT's lpans
Interest expense net of borrowings
Interest income from cash and cash equivatents
Interest from continuing operations

Prem:um paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds (a)

Other financial income and charges

{in mihons of eures)

Expected return on plan assets related to employea benefit plans
Foreign exchange gain
Other financial income

Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds {a)
Effect of undiscounting liabilities (b}
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans
Foreign exchange loss
Change n value of dervative mstryments
Other
Other financial charges

Nettotal

a Includes net premium paid related to the early redemption of bonds

a net amount of €642 million 1n 2014, following the completion of the sale of SFR, and

Note

21

Note
192

192

2014 2013
194 {a) 37
3
g 43
203 ]
{7 {28)
03 (22)
(30 {50
113 38
Year ended Dacember 31
2014 2013
{2683} {494)
153 212
i3 10
(111} (272}
15 6
(96) {266)
(648} (202)
(799 {468}
Year ended December 31,
014 2013
12 13
7
19 13
{698} {202
(8) 12)
{an i31)
{8 (45)
(1
{6} 19)
(751} (300)
(732) (287)

a net amount of €182 million 1n 2013, following the sale of 88% of Vivend!'s interest in Activision Blizzard

b In accordance with applicable accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s maten:al, assets and habilities are
imtially recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and Labihties 15 adjusted to account for the passage
of ume As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, these adjustments only applied to liabihities {manly trade accounts payable and

provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1 French Tax Group and Consolidated Giobal Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2017 inclusive, from the
Consclidated Global Profit Tax System, as authonzed under Article 209 quinquies of the French Tax Code Since January 1, 2012, Vivend
only benefits from the French Tax Group System

»  Under the French Tax Group System, Vivend: 1s entitled to consofidate 1ts own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidianes that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by 1it, and that are located in France for 2014, this mainly applied
to Universal Music in France and Canal+ Group In 2014, SFR s no longer part of Vivendi's tax group foliowing its sale to
Numericable Group at the end of November 2014

s  Until December 31, 2011, the Consol:dated Global Profit Tax System entitted Vivendi to consolidate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and located 1 France or
abroad, 1 e, other than the French companies that were at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi Activision Bhzzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidianes, as well as Société d’Edition de Canal Plus
(SECP) As a reminder, on May 19, 2008, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance in refation to the renewal of
its authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authonzation was granted by an order dated
March 13, 20089, for a three-year period beginning with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

= inaddition, as a reminder, on July §, 2011, Vivend lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance 1n relation to the renewal
of its authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year peniod, from January 1, 2012 to December 31,
2014

* The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 terminated the Consohidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carmed forward at 60% of taxable mcome Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carned forward 1s
capped at 50% of taxable tncome and the deductibility of interest is limited to 85% of financial charges, net {75% as from January
1,2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Giobal Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend's tax attributes {tax losses and
tax credits carned forward) are as follows

= as Vivend considers that its entitlement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, including fisca! year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivend: filed for a refund of €366 million with respect to the tax sawing for the fisca! year ended December 31,2011 As this
request was denied by the tax authorities, in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivend: accrued a
€366 mill:ion prowision for the associated nisk, unchanged as of December 31, 2013 On October 8, 2014, the Administrative Court
of Montreuil ruled in favor of Vivendi Pursuant to this ruling, on December 23, 2014, Vivend: receved a €366 million refund and
moratorium interests of £43 million which were received on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authonties appealed
this ruling As a result, in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivend: maintained the prowision related
to the €366 mill:on principal refund increased by €43 million with respect to moratorium interests {please refer to Note 6 6),

= moreover, considerng that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carried forward upon the end of
the authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivend) requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31 2012, or €208 mill:an, brought to €220 milion, in 2013 when filing the tax return with respect to fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012 This position was challenged by the tax authorities as part of an (n-process control procedure and
Vivend accrued the associated nisk for a principal amount of €208 million in provision m 1ts Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012, brought to €220 million as of December 31, 2013 In its Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014, Vivend: maintained the €220 million principal refund, increased by an additional default iterest of €11 million
{please refer to Note 6 B},

s n the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, the 2014 tax results of the subsidiaries within the scope of
Vivend: SA's French Tax Group System were estimated, and as a result, the amount of tax attnbutes as of December 31, 2014
could not be reliably determined Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2014 tax results and before the effects of the
ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6} on the amount of tax attributes, Vivendi SA may achieve €1,400 million in tax savings
from tax attnibutes {undiscounted value based on the current mncome tax rate of 38 00%]), and

o as of December 31, 2014, Vivendi SA valued its tax attnbutes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of ong year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivendi would achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System in an amount of €126 millien {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%)
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62 Provision for income taxes

Year ended December 31,
{in mithions of euros) Note 2014 2013
{Charge)/Income
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and to the Consolidated
Global Profit Tax System 61 147 415
Related 10 the US tax group 66 25
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense {21} {22)
Consideration of risks related to previous years' Income taxes (3 133
Other income taxes items {283} {375}
(94 176
Deferred
Impact of Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Glabal
Profit Tax System 61 {37} (161)
Impact of the US tax group - -
Other changes in deferred tax assets 21 2
Impact of the change(s) in tax rates - 34
Reversal of tax liabilities . 12
Other deferred tax income/{expenses) {20} {46)
{36) (159)
Provision for income taxes {130) 17
63 Provision for Income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area
Year ended December 31,
{in miilions of euros) 2014 2013
(Charge}/Income
Current
France {44) 199
United States 5 ]
Other countries {55} (31)
{94} 176
Deferred
france 61 {163)
United States (58) {46)
Other countries 83 50
{36} {159)
Provision for income taxes (130) 17
Income tax (paid}/collected
France 320 277
United States (5 (8)
Other countries (35) {64)
Income tax (paid}/collected 280 205
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6.4 Effective tax rate

Friday,
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Year ended December 1,

{in mithons of euros, except %) 2014 2013
Earnings {before non-controlling interests) 5,025 27119
Eltmination

Income from equity affiliates 8 21

Earnings from discontinued operations (5262} (2 633)
Provision for income taxes 130 {17)
Earmings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes (89) 150
French statutory tax rate 38 00% 38 00%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate kT (57}
Recancihiation of the theoretical and effective prowvision for income taxes

Permanent differences (L] {28}

of which  other differences from tax rates on earmings 12 4
impacts of the changes in 1ax rates 34

Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System

and to the Consolidated Global Profrt Tax System (3n (161}

Other tax losses and tax credits (175) (205)

of which  use of unracognized losses and tax credits 46 -
uvnrecognized losses {221) {205}
Other temporary differences 42 317
of which  reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation itigation i the Umited States 341
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense {33} 130
of which consideration of nsks related to previous years' incoma taxes {3 145
Capital gan or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial
investments or businesses {35} (2
of which imparment of Digitick goodwill (17} -
impairment of Wengo goodwill (18)

Other - 23
Provision for income taxes (130} 17
Effective tax rate <146 1% -11 3%

65 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes in deferred tax assets/(habilities), net
Year ended December 31,
{in millions of eures) 2014 2013
Opening halance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 53 454

Provision for income taxes {a} {53) (437)

Charges and income directly recorded in equity 54 - {b)

Bustness combinations g 163

Dwvestitures in pragress or completed (20 (206)

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 10 79
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabihities) 53 53

a Includes income/icharges) related to taxes from discontinued operations 1n accordance with IFRS 5, these amounts were reclassified
to the line “Eamings from discontinued operations” in the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Eamings

b Includes -€43 millon recognized n other items of charges and income directly recognized n equity for the year ended

December 31, 2013 {please refer to Note 8}
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Components of deferred tax assets and habilities
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{in millions of euros} December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Deferred tax assets

Recognizable deferred taxes

Tax attributes {a) 2437 2,599
of which Vivend: SA (b} 1,400 1,527
US tax group () 413 364
Temporary differences (d) 704 1,105
Netting {124) (501}
Recognizable deferred taxes 3,017 3.195
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax attributes (a) {2,155} (2,262}
of which Vivendr SA (b} {1,274} {1,364)
US tax group (c} {419 {364)
Temparary differences {d} {182) (200}
Deferred taxes, unrecognized {2,307) (2,462)
Recorded deferred tax assets 710 733
Deferred tax habilities
Asset revaluations (e} 484 531
Other 287 590
Netting {124 (501}
Recorded deferred tax habilities 657 680
Deferred tax assets/{lialnltties), net 53 53
8  The amounts of tax attnbutes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years in jurisdictions which
are significant for Vivend, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1% and September 15 of the following
year at the latest, respectively The amounts of tax attnbutes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may therefore d/ffer, and if necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the following year in the above table
b Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivend: SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€1,400 million as of Decembear 31, 2014 (please refer to Note 6 1), of which £1,115 million related to tax losses and £285 mullion
selated to tax credits, taking nto account the estimated impact (-€110 mullion) of 2014 transactions (taxable income and use or
expiration of tax credits), but before taking into account the effects of engoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6)
In France, tax losses can be carmed forward indefinitely and Vivend! considers that tax credits can be carrred forward for a minimum
perniod of five years upon exit from the Consohdated Global Profit Tax System In 2014, £265 milion tax credits matured as of
December 31, 2014
¢ Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group, Inc 1n the United States as head of
the US tax group, representing $509 million as of December 31, 2014, taking into account the estimated impact {-$68 mithon) of the
2014 transactions (taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before
taking into account the final outcome of ongoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6 6}
As a reminder, with respect to the divestiture of 88% of the interest in Actwision Blizzard and in accordance with U S tax rules,
Vivend allocated to Activision Blizzard, the acquirer of the majonty of the Activision Blizzard shares transferred m the transaction, a
fraction of 1ts tax losses estimated at more than $700 million In addition, Universal Music Group Inc replaced Vivend) Holding | LLC
(formerly, Vivendi Holding | Corp ) as head of the Tax Group Systerm in the United States
In the United States, tax losses can be carried forward for a period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carmed forward for a perniod
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2021 and na tax credit had matured in 2014
d  Manly relates to the deferred tax assets assoctated with non-deducted provisions upon recognstion, including provisions relating to
employee benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans
e  These tax labilities, generated by asset revaluations following purchase allocations are terminated upon the amortization or

divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge
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6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended on December 31, 2014 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorties in the junsdictions i
which Vivend) has or had operations Vanous tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the taxable mcome reported for prior years Itis
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of these
audits Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits should not have a matenal unfavorable impact on the financial position or
liquidity of the group

Regarding Vivends SA, in respect of the Conschidated Global Profit Tax System, the consolidated income reported for fiscal years 2008, 2007,
and 2008 1s under audit by the French tax authonties This tax audit began in January 2010 In addition, in January 2011, the French tax
authorities began a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authorities
expanded the audit to include the consolidated income reported for fiscal year 2010 Finally, the audit of Vivend: SA's tax group System for
the years 2011 and 2012 began in July 2013 As of December 31, 2014, all of these audits were ongoing Vivend: Management believes that
it has sohd legal grounds to detend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit In any event, a provision
for the impact of the Consclidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 has been accrued {€409 millon), notwithstanding the decision of the
Administrative Court of Montreu:l on October 8, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authonities (please refer to Note 6 1}, as well as
a provision for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits in 2012 (€231 million}

In respect of the US tax group, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were under a tax audt The final cutcome of this
tax audit did not materaily impact the amount of tax attributes Vivendi's US tax group was also under audit for the fisca! years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax aud:t has now been completed and its final outcome dtd not matenally impact the amount of
tax attnbutes In June 2014, the US tax authorities began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and 1n December 2014, stated that they
undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013 As of December 31, 2014, the audit with respect to these fiscal years was ongoing Vivend
Management believes that it has solid legal grounds te defend its positions for determiming the taxable income for the fiscal years under
audit

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31

014 2013
Basic Diluted Basic Dituted

Earnings {in milhions of euros}

Earnings from cortininng operations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners (290) {290) 43 43
Earnings from discortinued operations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners 5,034 5034 1944 1.92%
Earnings attributable 1o Vivend: SA shareowners 4,744 4,744 1,967 1,964
Number of sharas {in millions}

Weighted average number of shaves outstandsng {a) 13458 13458 13306 13306
Potential dilutrve effects related to share-based compensation (b) - 55 - 47
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13358 13513 13306 13353
Earmings per share (i euros)

Earnings from continuing eperatians attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share [022) {022) 003 003
Earmings fram discontinued operations atinbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share 374 373 145 144
Earnings attributable to Vivend SA shareowners per share 352 351 148 147

a  Net of treasury shares (please refer to Note 17)

b Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, which could be potentially ditutive The balance of common
shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share-based compensation plans s presented (n Note 20 2 1
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in milhions of euros) Note

Actuanal gains/{losses) related 1o employee defined benefit plans 18
Items not reclassified to profit or loss

Fereign currency translation adjustments {a)

Unrealized gams/{losses)
Change i fair value [b)
Transferred to profit or loss of the pened {c)
Other {d)
Assets avallable for sale 14

Cash fkow hedge instruments
Change m fair value
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Net investment hedge instruments
Change m fair value
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Hedging instruments 22

Other impacts
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized 1n equity

{in rmifhans of euros) Note

Actuanial gains/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans 19
Items not reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency transiation adjustments {e)

Unrealized gains/(losses)
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Assels avallable for sale 14

Cash flow hedge instruments
Change in fair vaiue
Trangferred to profit or foss of the penod
Net investment hedge instruments
Change m fair value
Trangferred to profit or loss of the period
Hedging instruments 22

Other impacts
ltems to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and tncome directly recognized 161 equity

Frday, February 27 2015

Year ended Gecember 33, 2014

Gross Tax Net
(93) 25 {68)
{03) 25 (68)
778 178
907 29 936
920 {5 g15
{95) 36 {59)
123 123
948 k]| 979
15 {1} 14
& {1} 5
9 g
(56} (56)
{56) - {56)
(41) (1 (42)
{94} - {94)
1.591 29 1,620
1,488 54 1,552
Year ended December 31, 2013
Gross Tax Net
(22] (1) i23)
(22} {1) (23)
{1,429} - {1,429)
99 {41} 58
120 {42} 78
! - !
121 42) 78
Z 1 3
16 - 16
{14) 7 {13}
24} - {24)
15 15
{39} {35
(22} 1 {21)
16 {1) 15
(1,314} {42) {1,356)
(1,336) {43) (1.379)

a  Mamly relates to foreign currency translation adiustments due to fluctuations m exchange rates at UMG (€730 mitlion)

b Pnmarly includes unrealized capital gains related to 97 4 mthon shares in Numericable - SFR from November 27 to December 31, 2014
for €743 millon (please refer to Note 3 1) and 41 5 million shares in Actwvision Blizzard in 2014 for £150 millian (please refer to Note
3 4) In accordance with IAS 39, these available-for-sale secunties were valued on stock market prige at each reporting date, relevant
unrealized gains and losses were directly recognized in equity and will be reclassified to profit or loss upon their sale, if any

¢ Relates to the reclassification to profit or loss of the gain realized on the sale of the interest 1n Beats by UMG in August 2014

d Relates to the unreal:zed gain generated from October 11 to December 31, 2013 with respect to 41 5 million Activision Bhzzard shares
held by Vivendi as of Dacember 31, 2014 following their reclassification from assets held for sale to available-for-sale securities as
Vivend! Management has decided not to sell this interest in the immediate future As of December 31, 2014, this interest amounted to
$836 million {€689 mullion} and the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to £273 million

e Includes the changes m fareign currency translation adjustments relating to discontinued operations for €685 million and the
reclassiication in earnings for €555 million as part of the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard
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Note 9 Goodwill

{in multions of euros}

Goodwill, gross

Impairment losses
Goodwill

Changes in goodwill

{tn milons of euros}

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendh Village

GVT

SFR

Total

{in millions of euros)

Canak+ Group
Unwersal Music Group
Vivend) Village

GVT

SFR

Maroc Telecom Group
Activision Blizzard

Total

December 31, 2014

Friday February 27, 2015

December 31,2013

22622 31,538
{13 293) {14,382)
9,329 12,147

Changes in foreign

December 31 Impairment losses Buginess combinations Drvestiures in progress currency translation December 31
mi3 or completed 2014
adustments and other
4484 - 110 (3 1 4573
4100 - 5 550 (bl 4656
185 (91}Hc) B 100
1676 - {1676) -
6722 - 71 {(6799)
17,147 {91} 193 (8.475) 555 9329
December 31 Drvestitures in progri Changes in foreign December 31
eo;m; Impairment losses Business combinatians © or l;:s l;e;g ess currency translation 20 3' '
th adjustments and other
4513 146) - 3 4464
4138 (5 64 {d 5 {102) 4100
184 2z - (1 185
2006 - {330 1 676
9153 {2431) - . 6722
2407 - {2 392} (15)
2255 {2 208} (47)
2455% 12.435) 0 {4,595) {4%8) 17,147

a Notably includes goodwill attributable to Mediaserv and Thema acquired by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and October 28,

2014, respectively

b Includes €549 million related to foreign currency translation {EUR/USD)

c Relates to full impairment losses on the goodwill of Digitick and Wengo (€43 million and €48 million, respectively)

d Mainly relates to a €57 million adjustment to goedwill attributable to EMI Recorded Music, recorded within the 12-month penod for
the purchase price allocation as required by IFRS 3 The final goodwill of EMI Recorded Music amounts to €358 million
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Goodwill impairment test

In 2014, Vvend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to its cash-generating units (CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation metheds
consistent with previous years Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded therr carmying value
{ncluding goodwill} The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determned by the discounted valug of future
cash flows {discounted cash flow method (DCF)) and the fair vatue (less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable isted companies, comparnison with the value attributed to simifar assets or companies in recent transactions) For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, piease refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
221:: g‘vglrl:g::?:) France Pay-TV and free-to-ar TV In
f V
Canat+ Group p—Y France, Africa and Vitetnam (b)
nc+ (Poland) nc+
Studipcanal Studiocanal

Becorded music
Artist services and merchandising
Music publishing

Umversal Music Group Universal Music Group

See Tickets See Tickets
Vivend Village Digitick Digitick
Wengo Wengo

a Relates to pay-TV n France overseas, Africa and Vietnam

b The process of integrating free-to-air TV operations {DB/D17 channels acquired on September 27, 2012) with pay-TV operations in
mantand France, as well as the development of pay-TV in Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-arr TV
operatiens in French-speaking countries i which Canal+ Group operates As a result, as of Decembsr 31, 2014, Vivend: performed a
goodwill impairment test refated to pay-TV and free-te-air TV operations in France, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-
TV in Mainland France, Canal+ Overseas and free-to-air TV, which corresponds to the level of monitoring the return on such
Investments

During the fourth quarter of 2014, Vivend: performed a goodwill impairment test on each cash generating unit {CGU) or groups of CGU, an
the basis of valuations of recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-to-air TV in
France, Africa and Vietnam as well as Umiversal Music Group and internal valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal, See Tickets, Digrtick
and Wengo As a result, Vivend: Management conciuded that, as of December 31, 2014, except for the cases of Digitick and Wengo (see
above}, the recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their cairying value

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2013, Vivendi examined the value of goodwill of pay-TV in Mainland France and Canal+ Overseas
{previously Canal+ France), using the isual valuation methods and coneluded that its recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, using
the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, exceeded its carrying value at that date Since November 5,
2013, Vivend: holds a 100% nterest in pay-TV operations of Canal+ in France and Africa pursuant to the acquisition of Lagardare Group's
20% nterest in Canal+ France for €1,020 mithion, in cash In accordance with IFRS 10, this transaction was recognized as the acquisition of a
non-controlling interest and the difference betwsen the consideration paid and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling interast
was recorded as a deduction from equity attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners

As a reminder, n respect of SFR as of December 31, 2013, Vivend) examined the value of SFR’s goodwill SFR’s recoverable amount was
determined upon the basis of the usual valuation methods, in particular the valus in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash
flow forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated to take into account the
strong impact on revenues of the new pricing policies decided by SFR 1n a competitive environment, partially offset by cost savings which
were consistent with expectations under SFR's transformation plan, while maintaining high capital expenditures, notably due to SFR's
acceleration of very-high speed mobile network investments As a result, Vivendi’'s Management concluded that SFR’s recoverable amount
was below 1ts carrying value as of December 31, 2013 and decided to record a goodwill impairment loss of £€2,431 million
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Prasentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

Fnday, February 27 2015

The value n use of each CGU or groups of CGU 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2015 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 12 3, capital expenditures, the competitive and regulatory environments, technological developments and level of
commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on s value 1 use in accordance with
the main key assumptions set out below

Vatastion Method Discount Rate jl) Pl!EIII!l Growth Rate

Op gasg CGU or groups of CGU tested 2014 2013 04 2013 2004 2013
z \T,‘I';:r':’“"""’a" TV Framca AMIC3 | por g comparaties mode! i} w ul ol n
Ganaks Group et oeF o £75% w 200% il
Studrcanal OCF OCF 975% 900% 1 00% 0 00%
Unnersal Musxc Group Unrvgrsal Music Group DCF & comparables mode) | DCF & les model B 9% 9 15% 1 00% 1 00%
San Tickets DCF DCF 1 50% 11 50% 200% 700%
Vivendi Village Digatick ocrF OCF 11 560% 11 50% 200% 200%
W@o OCF OCF 13 20% 15 00% 2 00% thi
GVT GVT li DCF ] 11 26% 1} 400%
SFA SH (]} OCF & comparables model [} 730% ol 0 50%

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determmnation of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows prowides recoverable amounts
conststent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Pay-TVin Manland France and Canal+ Overseas DCF & comparables model

Free-to-air TV DCF

¢ Pay-TV-Mainland France B 04%, France overseas 904%, Afnca 10 04%, Vietnam 10 88%

Free-to-ar v 95%

d  Pay-TV-Manland France 8 3%, France overseas 93%, Africa 103%
Free-to-ar TV 95%

e Pay-TV-Manland France 1 5%, France overseas 15%, Africa 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%

free-to-ar V. 2%

f  Pay-TV-Mainland France 1 5%, France overseas 2 2%, Afnica 317%
Free-to-ar TV 2%

g  As of December 31, 2013, no goodwill impaiment test in respect of nc+ (pay-TV in Poland) was undertaken given that the completion date of
the goodwill of "n", acquired on November 30, 2012 was close to the closing date, and considering that no tnggenng event had occurred
between those dates

h  Asof December 31, 2013, the terminal value was determined by using an EBITDA multiple

i Considenng the current plan to sell GVT, and in accordance with IFRS 5, GVT has been classified as a discontinued operation since the third

quarter of 2014

1 SFRwas sold on November 27, 2014 {please refer to Note 3 1)
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Sansitivity of recoverable amounts
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December 31 2014

Discourt rate

Perpetual growth rate

Discounted cash flows

Increase n the discount rate

Decrease in the perpetual growth rate

Decrease in the discounted cash flows

Appked I arder far the recoverable amouni Applied 1n order for the recoverable amount (n order for the recoverable amount
ate to be equal to the camying amount 1ate tobe equal to the camying amount to be equal to the carying amount
{in %)} {in number of paints} fin %) {in number of paints) {in %}
Canal+ Group
Pay TV and Free to-aw TV in France: Africa
and Vietam la) 028 pt {b} 039pts 4%
1% 975% +53i pts 300% 1025pts -49%
Studiocanal 975% +166pt 100% 257 pts 18%
Universal Music Group 890% 162 pt 100% 077 pt 4%
Decernber 31 2013
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase: in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growthrate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Appled nordex for the recoverable amount Appled n ordes for the recovesable amount 1n order for the recoverable ampunt
rate 1o be equal to the carmying armount rate to be equal {o the carying amount to be equal to the carmng amount
{in %) {in number of points) {in %) {in number of points) {in %)
Canal+ Group
Pay-TV in Mawntard France and Canal+
Overseas {cl 023p {d} 032p %
Free-to-anr TV 950% +1 84pt 200% 214pts 21%
Studiscanal 900% +2 19pts 000% 353pts %
Unwersal Music Group 915% +225pts 100% 298pts 22%
GyT 1124% +128 pt 400% 257 pts 20%
SFR 130% {e} 050% {e} (e}
a Pay-TV- Manland France 804%, France overseas 904%., Afrca 10 04%, Vietnam 10 88%
Fres-to-ar TV 95%
b Pay-TV-Mainland France 1 5%, France overseas 1 5%, Africa 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%
Free-to-air TV 2%
¢ Pay-TV-Manland France 8 3%, France overseas 9 3%, Africa 10 3%
Free-to-air TV 2%
d Pay-TV-Manland France 1 5%, France overseas 2 2%, Africa 3 17%
Free-to-air TV 2%
e SFRwas sold on November 27, 20114 (please refer to Note 3 1)
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Note 10 Content assets and commitments

101 Content assets

December 31, 2014

Accumulated amortization
Content assets gross Coment assets
and impairment losses
{in millions of ewros)

Film and television costs 6,003 {5 244) 758
Sports nghts an - an
Music catalogs and pubhishing nghts 7.897 {6,031} 1,866
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 642 - 642
Merchandising contracts and artists services 27 120} 7
Contant assets 14,980 (11,295} 3,685
Deduction of current content assets {1,155) 20 {1,135}
Non-current content assets 13,825 {11,275} 2,550

December 31 2013

Accumulated amortization
Content assets, gross Content assets
and impairment losses
{in millions of euros)

Film and telewision costs 5678 {4 875} 803
Sports nights 380 - 380
Music catalogs and pubhishing nights 6992 {5032) 1960
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 621 - 621
Merchandising contracis and artists services 5 {17} 8
Contant assets 13,696 (9,924} 3m
Deduction of current content assets {1 176} 27 {1,149)
Non-current content assets 12,520 (9,897} 2,623

Changes in main content assets

Year ended December 31,
{in mulltgns of euros) 2014 2013
Opening balance am 43n
Amortizauon of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations {14) {81)
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations {334} [344)
Increase 2319 2495
Decrease {2352) (2332}
Business combinations 27 3
Dwvestitures in progress or completed - (347}
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 247 7
Closing halance 3685 3712

10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Positton content liabilities

Content liabilities are mainly part of "Trade accounts payable and other” or part of “Other non-current hiabihies” whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable {please rafer to Note 15}

Mimimum future payments as of December 31, 2014 Total mimmuym future

Totat Duen payments as of
{inmillions of euros) 2015 016-2019 After 2019 Decernber 31, 2013
Film and television rights {a) 193 193 208
Sports nghts 400 40 402
Music royalties 1o artists and repertoire owners 1721 1699 22 1614
Creatwve talent employment agreements and gthers 119 47 75 111
Content Lisbilsties 2433 234 1] 2335
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Minimum future payments as of December 31 2014

Totai muimmum future

Total Dus i payments as of

{in millions of euros) 205 2016-2019 After 2019 December 31 2013
FRim and telewsion nghts {a) 2443 882 1446 45 2383
Sperts nghts {b) 2087 635 2452 - 1350
Creative talent employment agreements and athers {c} 807 367 401 39 4
Given commitments 6,337 1,884 4,269 B4 4,487
Film and telewistan nghts (a) {189) (85} {89) {75) (i79)
Sports nghts 3 {3) (1B
Creauve t1alent employment agreements and others {c) not available

Received commitments {202) {83} (89) (25) {189)
Total net 6.135 1,89 4180 59 4238

Manly includes contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of film and TV preductions (mainly exclusivity contracts with major
US studios, as well as the license agreement entered into on March 29, 2013 in respect of the entire HBO new seres, for 5 years, as
of May 2013) and pre-purchase contracts relattng to the French movie industry, Studiocanal fiim production and co-praduction
commitments (given and received) and broadcasting nghts of Canalsat and nc+ multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadcast 1s available for imitial release or after the initial significant payment As of December 31, 2014,
provisions recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €73 million, compared to €71 muilion as of December 31, 2013

In addition, this amount does not include commitments n relation to channel nght contracts, ISP {Internet Service Provider) royalties
and non-exclusive distnbution of channels, under which Canal+ Group has not granted or received mimimumn guarantees The vaniable
amount of these commitments cannot be reliably determined and is not reported in the Statement of Financial Position or in
commitments and 1$ instead recorded as an expense for the penod 1n which ;t was incurred Based on the estimation of the future
subscriber number at Canal+ Group, commitments in relation to channel night contracts would have increased by a net amount of
€342 million as of December 31, 2014, compared to £354 million as of December 31, 2013

Moreover, according to the agreement entered Into with organizations of cinema professionals on December 18, 2009, Société
d’'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP) 1s required to invest, every year for & five-year penod {2010-2014), 12 5% of its annual revenues in the
financing of European films Whth respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements entered into with producers and authors’
organizations, Canal+ Group 15 required to invest, in France, a percentage of its revenues in the financng of hentage work every year
Agreaments with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ organizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

Notably includes broadcasting nights of Canal+ Group for the following sport events

- the French professional Soccer League 1, for the 2015/2016 season (€427 mullion) and the four seasons {2016/2017 to 2018/2020)
awarded on Apnl 4, 2014 for the two premium lots {€2,160 million), compared to €854 million as of December 31, 2013 with
respect to the two seasons 2014/2015 and 2015/2016,
the Soccer Champions League for three seasans (2015/2016 to 2017/2018) awarded on April 11, 2014 for one lot,

- the Soccer English Premier League for the 2015/2016 season, renewed in January 2013 for three seasons, and

- the Formula 1 World Championship awarded in February 2013

These commitments will be recognized 1n the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or upon a
significant imitial payment

Moreover, on January 19, 2015, following to a call for tenders carned out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive nghts retated to all of the MNationat French Rugby Championshup's “TOP 14" matches These nghts, which include all seven

games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

Primarly relates to UMG which routinely commuits to pay agreed amounts to artists and other parties upon delivery of content or ather
products {“Creative talent and employment agreements”} Until the arust or the other party has delvered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses 1ts obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
(s obligated to dehver a content or other product to UMG {these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannet be
reliably determined and, thus, is not reported in received commitments
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Note 11

{in millions of euros)

Software
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

{in millions of euros)

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

Changes :n other intangible assets

{an mullions of euros)

Opening balance
Depreciation
Acquisitions

increase related to internal developments

Dwvestitures/Decrease
Business combinations

Oivestitures in progress or completed

Other intangible assets

December 31, 2014

Other intangibie assets,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

gross and impairment losses
242 {204} 38
230 {178} 52
44 {25} 19
337 1217} 120
853 {624} 29

December 31, 2013

Other intang:ble assets,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

Changes in forergn currancy translation adjustments and othes

Closing balance

qross and impainment losses
5158 (3,806) 1,252
2,505 {620) 1,685
956 {811) 145
167 (51) 116
1,825 (917) 908
10,611 {6.305) 4,306
Year ended Dgcember 31
2014 2013
4,306 5190
(278) {924) {a)
275 477
169 264
(m {4)
80 33
(43100 {678)
18 152}
229 4,306

Friday, February 27 2015

a Relates to the depreciation of other :ntangible assets as published in the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted to take
into account the impact of the application of IFRS 5 to Marec Telecom group

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to continuing operations {primarily Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and i selling, general and administrative expenses {-€61 million in 2014 and -€60 millien in 2013)

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to discontinued businesses was recognized in the line “Earmings from discontinued
operations” for -€207 mulkion 1n 2014 and -€853 mullion 1n 2013 {of which -€729 muflion related ta SFR)
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Note12  Property, plant and-equipment - -

December 31, 2014

Accumutated
depractation and Property plant and equipment
impairment losses

Praperty plant and

{in millions of euras) equipment gross

Land 4 - 4
Buildings 133 {101} 32
Equipment and machinery 488 {402) 86
Set top boxes 876 (584) 392
Construction-1n-progress 36 - 36
Qther 597 {430) 187
2234 {1,512} M7
December 31 2013
Actumulated
Property plant and depreciation and Property plantand equipment
{in mulltons of euros} EquIpment Gross imparment losses
Land a2 (2) 80
Buildings 3,052 {1718) 1334
Equipment and machinery 8764 {4704) 4 064
Set top boxes 2197 {1224) 973
Canstruction-tn-progress 353 - 353
Other 2109 {1372) 737
16,561 9,020 7.5M1
Changes in property, plant and equipment
Year ended December 31,
(in milhions of euros) 204 2013
Opening balance 1541 9,926
Depreciation {643) {1,851} {a}
Acquisitions/Increase 1,404 2,448
Divestitures/Decrease {42} {115)
Business combinations 25 {40)
Divesutures in progress or completed {7 .542) (2,381}
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other {2B) {446)
Closing balance 17 7,541

a  Relates to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as published n the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted
for the wnpact on the Consclidated Income Statement of the application of IFRS 5 te Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as
well as SFR and GVT {please see below)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to continuing aperations {primarly Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in selling, general and admimstrative expenses for -€232 million 1n 2014 and -€228 million 1n 2013 It mainly consists of set top
boxes {-€123 mill:on 1n 2014, compared to -€125 million in 2013}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to discontinued operations was recognized as earnings from discontinued operations
It amounted to -€411 mithon in 2014 and -€1,624 milhon n 2013 and pumanly pertains to SFR and GVT for -€212 million and -€199 mifiion,
respectively i 2014 (compared to -€932 mullion and -€281 mullion, respectively, in 2013}
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Note 13  Investments in equity affiliates

Voting mterest Value of equity affiliates
{in milions of euras) December 31, 2014 Decernber 31 2013 December 31, 2014 December 31,2013
N-Vision (a) 49% 49% 213 215
VEVO 48% 47% I 58
Numergy 47% - 95
QOther na na 72 78
306 A6

na not applicable

a  As of December 31, 2014, N-Vision, which indirectly owns a 51% nterest in TVN (FTA broadcaster in Poland), was held by Canal+

Group (49% nterest) and IT! {51% interest} On October 16, 2014 Canal+ Group and IT| announced that they were jointly considering
strategic options in respect of their interest in TVN

Note 14  Financial assets

{in millions of eurps}

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Available-for-sale securities {a) 4 881 360
QOther lpans and recewvables 1,160 (b} 206
Dervative financial instruments 139 126
Cash deposits back:ng borrowings - 2
Qther financial assets 13 5
Financial assets 6,193 699
Deduction of current financial assets {49) (45)
Non-current financial assets 6,144 654

a  Asof December 31, 2014, available-for-sale securities notably included

- 97,387,845 Numericable - SFR shares valued at stock market price on the closing date, or €40 94/share, for an aggregate value of
£3,987 million {please refer to Note 3 1), and

- 41,499,688 Activision Blizzard shares valued at stock market price on the closing date, or USD$20 15/share, for an aggregate value
of $836 million (€689 million} (please refer to Note 3 4)

As of December 31, 2013, available-for-sale securities included secunties held by UMG 1n Beats for €161 milllon On August 1, 2014,
these securities were sold for a net amount of £250 million resulting in a €179 million net gain on sale

Avallable-for-sale securities did not include any other publicly quoted securities as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and
were not subject to any impairment with respect to fiscal years 2014 and 2013

Relates to the cash depos:ts of €975 million as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment and €45 million ($55 million} as
part of the securities class action in the United States Please refer to Note 26
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Note 15

Changes in net workang capital

{in millrons of euros)

Inventones

Trada accounts recervable and other
Working capital assets

Trada accounts payable and other (¢}
Qthar non-current habihties
Working capitat iabilires

Nat working capital

{in millions of euros)

Inventones

Trade accounts recervable and other
Workimng capital assets

Trada accaunts payable and other i)
Other non current habilities
Working capital lrabilities

Net working capital

Net working capital

Friday, February 27 2015

Changas in
Decambar 31 o e(r:a'?:u?:ol:un Busingss Uw:?st:‘;uresrm forign currancy Other (b) December 31
2013 P y 9 combinstions progress o translation 2004
capital (a) completed
adjustmants
330 16 19 {257) [ 114
4p98 135 107 13 2@ 42 19 1983
Sz 15 126 {3.475) ] 19 2097
10416 Yl 138 5422} 156 2) 5306
757 8 {B} {576} 13 73 121
11,173 130 (5.938) 169 79) 5427
5585 18 ) 7583 ) = [3.330)
Changes in Dwvestitures in Changes in
December 31 Business fereign currency December 31
operating working progress or Other {b}
2012 combinations translaton 2013
capial (a) completed
—adjustments
73 120} (3 (a76) 19} - 330
6597 18} 1192} {1419} {79) 9 4898
135 {28) {195) {1,795) (8) 9 5228
14196 (252} {8} {3506 211) 197 10416
1002 (84} 17 {12} {23 {143} 757
15,138 (336} 9 (3,518} (234) 54 Hni3
[iZ1E] 308 {204] 173 136 (5] 15.945)

a  Excludes content investments mads by Canal+ Group and UMG In 2013, related to amounts as published in the 2013 Annual Report,
does not include the adjustments from the impact of the application of IFRS 5 to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as well
as GVT and SFR on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

b Manlyincludes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments

c Includes trade accounts payable for €2,215 mill:on (€5,454 million as of December 31, 2013) as well as music royalties to artists and
repertoire owners of UMG whose matunty 1s lesser than one year for £1,699 million as of December 31, 2014 (€1,598 milion as of
December 31, 2013} Please refer to Note 10 2

Note 16

{in millons of eurcs}

Cash
Cash equivalents
of which UCITS

Term deposits and nterest-bearng current accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

2490 525
6,605 518
4,754 46
1,851 470
6.845 1.041

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivalents of Vivend: amounted to €6,845 miliion, of which €6,524 million is held by

Vivendi SA and invested in the following financial institutions wath at least an AZ/A rating

e 4754 miflion in ten UCTIS monetary funds, managed by five management companies, and

e £1,770 mull:on in term deposits and interest-bearning current accounts within eight banks Term deposits with imitial maturities
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any time and present an insignificant nisk of changing in value
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Note 17  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

(in thousands)

Common shares outstanding {nominal value €55 per share)
Treasury shares

Voting rights

Friday, February 27 2015

December 31, 2014

December 31 2013

1351601 1,339,610
(50) {51)
1,351,551 1,339,559

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: held 50 thousand treasury shares, representing a non-significant portion of its share capital These shares
are backed to the paruial hedging of performance share plans As of December, 31, 2014, the market value of the portfolio amounted to

approximatety €1 million

In addition, as of December 31, 2014, approximately 42 7 million stock options were outstanding, representing a potential maximum nominal

share capital increase of €235 million {1e, 3 16%)

Non-controlling interests

{in mitlans of euros)

December 31 24 December 31 2013

Canah Group 369 368
Maroc Telecom Group (a) - 1176
Other 13 79
Total 382 1,573

a On May 14, 2014, Vivend: sold «ts 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group (please refer to Note 3 3)

Distributions to shareowners of Vivend: SA

On June 30, 2014, Vivend: SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of

€1,348 million, considered as a return of capital distribution to shareholders

On February 11, 2015, the date of Vivendi’'s Management Board's meeting which approved the Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2014 and the appropriation of earnings for the fisca! year then ended, Vivendi's Management Board decided to propose to
shareholders an ordinary dividend of €1 per share, compnsing €0 20 relative to the Group's business performance and a €0 80 return to
shareholders as a result of the disposals of assets Based on Vivendi's share capital outstanding shares as of December 31, 2014, this
diwvidend would represent a total distnibution estimated at approximately €1 4 billion, to be pad in cash on April 23, 2015, following the
coupon detachment on Apnl 21, 2015 This proposal was presented to, and approved by, Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on

February 27, 2015

Share repurchase program

In addrtion to this distnbution, a share repurchase pregram will be submitted to shareholders’ approval, within the legal hmit of 10% of the
share capital, for approximately €2 7 bullion in accordance with the market reguiations on share repurchases The program will run over a

period of 18 months
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Note 18 Provisions

{nmilkons of suras}

Employae benefits {a)

Restructuning costs (b}

Utigations (¢)

Losses an oneraus contracts
Contingent liabihties due to disposal {d)
Cost of dismantiing and restoring sites
Other [e)

Provisicns

Deduction of current provisions
Nor-current provisions

(in milhigns of gurosh

Empiayae bensfits (a)

Restructuring costs (b)

Litggatians (¢}

Losses on onarcus contracts
Contiagent habslites dus to disposat (6}
Cost of dismanthng and restonng sites
Other (o)

Provisions

Deduction of curent prowisions
Non-current provisions

Friday February 27 2015

Divesttures changes in

Dacembar 31, Business foregn currency December 31
Nota M3 Add:tion Utibzation Reversal combinations translation ad;ustments 2014
and other

574 % (83) 51 4 54 654

156 il na - [42) 7

Yl 1379 276 [118) (49) k| (291) 1206
128 40 (43) m 124

24 7 n (13) 17

75 m . (74)
1097 110 {52) (53) 1 14 1105
3523 538 |387) {163} [] {341} 317
——— — -
(619) [325) 165 565 ] 427 [290)
2004 3 22 ] 0 [ 2650
Divestitures changes in
Decembar 31 Business foreigh currency December 31
Nota w2 Addition Utihzation Raversal combinations transtation adjustments 203
and other

N5 23 156) 118) 0 12} 674

258 199 1258) n 15) 139 156

% 1357 143 158] an x| {351 1379
143 1 162) i k-1 128

24 3 31 K]

83 {4 - (4) 75

1389 39 1111) 1245) 34 79) 1087
3969 50 1547) 1307} 1] 1159) 35D
el E——

(711} (277) 237 130 {7} E] 6191

3258 W [E} i W 1150] 2,901

a Includes deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (E608 million as of December
31,2014 and €619 miliion as of December 31, 2013, please refer to Note 19 2}, but excludes emplayee termination reserves recorded

under restructuring costs

b Asof December 31, 2014, maly relates to provisions for restructuring at UMG (€38 million) As of December 31, 2013, mainly relates
to prowisions for restructuning at SFR (€85 muilion) and UMG (€67 mithon)

o Notably includes the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation and secunties class action in the United
States for €945 million and €100 million, respectively

d  Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of prowisions These provisions are not significant and the

amount 1s not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejud:cial to Vivend)

e  Notably includes Ittigation provisions for which the amount 1s not detarled because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend)

Financial Repart and Audited Cansolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivendi /7




Friday February 27, 2015

Note 19 Employee benefits

191 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The table befow provides snformation about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial component The total cost of defined
benefit plans is set forth in Note 19 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,
{in mullions of euros} Note 2014 2013
Employee defined contribution plans 20 t6
Employee defined benefit plans 1922 (10) 1
Employee benefit plans 10 17

19.2 Employee defined benefit plans

1921 Assumphions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on pian assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined banefit plans were made 1n compliance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 138 and have been applied consistently for several years Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
increase} are company specific Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent adwisors and reviewed by Viendi's Finance Department The discount rate 1s therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields on notes 1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties identical to that of the valued
plans, generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are therefore used at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendi’s Finance Department of expected trends i future payments from the first benefit payments

In accordance with amended IAS 19, the expected return on plan assets 1s estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted average

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate (a) 29% 38% 38% 45%
Rate of compensation increase 20% 20% 30% 29%
Duration of the benefit abligation (in years) 147 142 108 100

a A 50 basts point increase {or a 50 basis pont decrease, respectively) to the 2014 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 mithon in pre-tax expense {or an increase of €1 mithon, respectively} and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retrement benefits of €66 million {or an increase of €73 million, respectively)

Assumptions used n accounting for pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 375% 450% 375% 450% 200% 300% 200% 300%
Rate of compensation increase {weighted average) na na 500% 500% 2 00% 200% 343% 336%

na not applcable

Assumptions used 1o accounting for post-retirement bensfits, by country

United States Canada
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 375% 4 50% 375% 450%
Rate of compensation increase 350% 350% na na

na not applicable
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2014 (a)

December 31, 2013 (a)

Equity secuntres 3% 4%
Debt secunties 45% 48%
Diversified funds 36% 31%
Insurance contracts 4% 5%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Fnday, February 27 2015

a Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets

Penston plan assets which were not transferred have a limited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Vivendi nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retvement benefits, Vivends assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 6 7% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and older categones n 2014, to 4 5% in 2022 for
these categonies In 2014, a one-percentage-pomnt ncrease in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement
benefit obligations by €13 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease i the assumed cost
evolution rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €3 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million

1922 Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of henefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retrement benefits Total

{in mitiens of euros) 7014 2013 2014 2013 204 2013
Curzent senvice cost 14 12 - 14 12
Past service cost (a) {25} 13]] - {25) {5
{Gains)/losses on settlements - 7} - {7}
Other 1 ) - 1 1
Impact an selling, admimistrative and general expenses (10} 1 - - 10 1
Ivterest cost 25 5 6 & kil K}l
Expected return on plan assets 12 {13) - 12) {13}
Impact on other financial charges srd itncoms 13 12 [ ] 19 18
Nst benefit cost recopmzed in profit and loss 3 13 6 6 )] ‘Lg‘

a  The recorded past service cost relates to the change of part of the group’s management team since June 2012

In 2014, benefits paid amounted to () €45 mullion {compared to €35 mill:on 1n 2013) with respect to pensions, of which €18 million {compared
to €9 million in 2013) was paid by pension funds, and {1t} €3 million {compared to €10 million in 2013) was paid with respect to post-

retirement benefits
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1923  Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Changes in value of benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

{in millians of euros) Note

Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service cost
{Gans)/losses on settlements
Other
Impact on seliing, adnunistrative and general expenses
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Impact on other hnancial charges end mncome
Net benefit cost recognized in profit and loss
Experience gainsflosses} (a}
Actuanal gains/(losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuanial gains/{losses) related to changes in finangial assumptions
Adjustrment related to asset celling
Actuanial gains/{losses) recogmzed in other comprehensive income
Contributions by plan participants
Contributions by employers
Benefits paid by the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinations
Divestitures of businesses (bj
Transfers
Other {of which fereign currency translation adjustments)
Reclasssfication to assets held for sale
Closing balance
of which whally or partly funded benefits
wholly unfunded benefits ic)
of which assets related to employea benefit plans
provisions for employee benefit plans {d) 18

Friday, February 27 2015

Employee defined henefit plans

Year ended December 31,2014

|
Benefit ebhigation  Fair value of plan Net \
assets {provision)/asset |
recorded in the ‘
statement of ‘
financial postuon |
1A) {8) (BHAI ‘
966 56 (610) |
20 {20}
(26) 26
(1} i1l
5
33 (33)
12 12
{21}
{16)
24 24
n 7
122 nz3)
{s1)
1 1
43 43
8) (18} ‘
{36) (36) - |
] {1 i
{102) 102 ‘
|
51 23 (28} ‘
- |
1,005 [ {601) *
550
247 1
7 |
{608) !
|
\
|
|
|
|
I
|
|
|
|
|
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Employee defined benefit plans

Year ended December 31 2013

Benefit obhigauon  Fair value of plan

Net

assets {provision)/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position
{m mllions of euros} Note 1Al {8) {BHA)
Opening balance 1020 367 {653)
Current service cost 2 {21)
Past service cost (e} {18} 18
{Gains)/losses on settlements {29} (22} 7
Other 1 (1)
fmpact on selling, admimstrative and general expenses 3
interest cost 35 {35)
Expected return on plan assets 13 13
Impact on other financial charges and incoma 22)
Nethenefit cost recognized in profit and loss (19}
Experience gamns/(losses) (a) 12 ] 3
Actuanal gans/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions 2 {2)
Actuanal gams/losses) related to changes in financial assumptions 5 {5)
Adjustment related to asset ceiling -
Actuanal gains/{losses} recogmized 1n other comprehensive income (20}
Contributians by plan participants 1 1 -
Contnbutions by employers L 46
Benefiis pard by the fund 9} {9} -
Benefits paid by the emplayer (36} 136} -
Business combinattong (f) 12 9 {3
Dwestriures of businesses -
Transfers - -
Other {of which foreign currenty translatron adjustments) {20 {12) 8
Reclassification to asseis held for sale {g} B 3
Closing balance 966 356 {610)
of winch whally or partly funded benefits 467
whofly unfunded benefits fc) 479
of which assets related to employee benefit plans g
provisions for employee benefit plans {d} 18 619}

a Includes the impact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between actuanal assumptions at the previous year-end

and effective benefits duning the year, and the difference between the expected return an plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets dunng the year

Relates to the impact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014

in accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, such plans principally compnise supplementary pension plans i the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-
retirement benefit plans 1n the United States

Includes a current lrability of €48 mithion as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €55 milkion as of December 31, 2013}

In 2013, past service costs manly related to the effect of decreases related to restructuring at SFR, as well as the renewal of some
members of the group’s management team since the end of June 2012

Relates to the adjustment in 2013 to account for the impact of the acquisition on September 28, 2012 of EMI Recorded Music on the
value of the obhgations, plan assets, and underfunded obligation

Relates to the impact of the reclassification of Maroc Telecom group as a discontinued operation, n accordance with {FRS 5
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Friday February 27 2015

Pension benefits {a) Post-retirement benefits (b) Total
{in militons of euros) December 31 December 31 Decermber 31
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Benefit abhigation
US comparies 125 107 136 120 261 7
UK companies 9% 33 i 1 297 x|
German companies 209 190 08 190
French companies 157 233 157 13
Other i) 57 16 15 8 82
852 230 153 136 1,005 %5

Fair value of plan assets
US companies 57 48 57 48
UK companies 252 201 152 201
German companies 3 3 k| 3
French companies 54 65 54 65
Other 38 39 38 2

o »s 04 356
Underfunded obligation
US companies 681 {59) {136) (120) {z04) 179)
UK companies (44) 132 n [} (45) 133
German companies (206} {187) {206} (87
French comparies 103} f168) - 103} {168)
Other {zi} {28) {16) {15} {43} (43)

(348) (474) {153) (136) (601} (610)

a No employee defined benefit plan indwidually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligatons and of the underfunded

obligation of these plans

b Primanly relates to medical coverage {hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and lfe insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation in refation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan is not funded The main risks for the group relate to changes n discount rates as well as the

increase in the cost of benefits {please refer to the sensitivity analysis described i Note 192 1)

1924 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2015, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivendi to retirees are estimated to be €40 million in respect of pensions, of
which €22 million relates to pension funds and €8 million relates to post-retirement benefits
Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficianes by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi {in nominal value for the following

10 years) are as follows

Post retirement
Pension benefits

{in millions of euros) benefits

2015 43 9
2016 32 9
07 32 9
2018 29 8
2019 29 9
2020-2024 162 44
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Note 20  Share-based compensation plans

20.t Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in millors of eurps) Year ended December 31
Charge/{Income) Note 2014 2013
Stock options performance shares and bonus shares 9 15
Emplayes stock purchase plans - 8
Stock Appreciahien Rights (SAR) - 7
Vivendr stock snstruments 202 9 24
UMG equity unit plan 203 7 5
Chargefiincome) related to share-based compensation plans {8) 29
Equity settled mstruments g 23
Cash settled nstruments {17} [

20.2 Plans granted by Vivendi

Vivend grants several share-based compensation plans each year based on Vivend: shares to officers and employess of the group stock
option plans {without discount}, parformance share plans, as well as a capital increase reserved for employees and retirees {classic and
leveraged plans}

In 2013, the Supervisory Board decided, upon the recommendation of the Management Board and after the advice of the Human Resources
Committee, to stop granting stock option plans In addition, i 2013, Vivend: put into place a capital increase reserved for emplayees and
retirees (employee stock purchase and leveraged plans)

in 2014, due to the changes n the scope already completed or in progress, Vivend) did not grant any annual plan to i1ts empioyees and anly
granted 380,000 performance shares 10 a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianes

The accounting methods applied to value and recagnize these granted plans are described in Note 1 3 10 Mare specifically, the rnisk-free
interest rate applied 1s the rate of French fungible treasury bonds or "Obligations Assimilables du Trésor” (OAT) with a matunty
corresponding to the expected term of the instrument at the valuation date, and the expected dwidend yield at grant date 1s based on
Vivendi's dvidend distribution policy

2021 Equity-settled instruments

Transactions on outstanding instruments, which have occurred since January 1, 2013

Stock options Performance shares
Nurmber of outstanding Werghted average strke o of outstanding
price of ouistanding stock
stock options performance shares
options
{in thousands} {in euros} {in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 53,406 205 3884
Granted - na 2782
Exercised 3362} (a) 133 {1 40}
Forfeited (354) 129 na
Cancelled (194} 159 {199)
Adjusted {b) 3339 194 286
Balance as of December 31,2013 52.83% 197 5344
Granted - na 380
Exercised {11 264 {a} 175 (1 600)
Forferted {717} 175 na
Cancelled {c) {5M) 137 1440)
Adjusted (b} 2439 191 183
Balance as of December 31, 2014 42,122 {d 193 3,867 (s)
Exarcisable as of Decamber 31, 214 40,268 198 -
Acquired as of Dacember 31, 2014 40413 19.8 345

na not applicable

a  Asof the dates of exercise of the stock options, the weighted average share price for Vivend: shares was €19 68 [compared to €16 21
for stock options exercised in 2013)
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b In accordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as welk as the number of performance shares
were adjusted te take into account the impact for the beneficianies of the following distributions (please refer to Note 17}
« onMay 17, 2013 advidend distribution of €1 per share from reserves with respect to fiscal year 2012, and
+ on.June 30, 2014 an ordiary distribution of €1 per share from additronal paid-in capital
These adjustments have no impact on share-based compensation expenses related to the relevant stock option and performance share
plans

c  Atits meeting on February 21, 2014, after review by the Human Resources Commuttee, the Supervisory Board approved the level of
satisfaction of abjectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2012 and 2013 for the performance share plans and the last stock option plan
granted 1n 2012 It confirmed that not all the cntena that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2013 The final grant of the 2012
performance share and stock option plans represents 88% of the oniginal grant Consequently, among the instruments cancelled in
2014 were 335,784 stock options and 239,207 performance shares granted n 2012

d  The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €98 milhion

e  The weighted-average rema:ning period before delivering performance shares was 0 8 year

Please refer to Note 17 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivend: SA of the outstanding stock options, the perfermance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2014

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Weighted average Weighted averags Weighted average
Range of strike prices Number remaning Number
stnike price strike price
contractual ife

{in thousands) {in euros) {in years) {in thousangs) {in euros)
Under €15 2,45 19 73 145 g
E15 €17 10,980 159 43 10980 159
€17 £19 9286 185 20 9,236 185
€19 €21 7012 202 33 102 62
€21 €23 6,413 229 13 6413 229
€23 €25 6,577 247 23 6577 247
€25 and more - - - - -
42,7122 193 32 40,213 198

Performance share plans

In 2014, due to the changes in the scope already completed or in progeess, Vivendi did not grant any annual plan to its employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certan executive officers of its subsidianes

On February 22, 2013, 2,573 thousand performance shares were granted The share price was €14 91

After taking inta account a discount for non-transferability of 8 3% of the share price on February 22, 2013 and an expected dividend yield of
6 71%, the fair value of each granted performance share was €11 79, correspending to an aggregate fair value of €30 milion This value 1s
estimated and 15 set at grant date

These nghts vest at the end of a two-year penod, the compensation cost 1S therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period Granted performance shares are then avadlable at the end of a two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares
of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend: SA, employee shareholders are entitled to the dividends and
voting rights attached to these shares from the end of the two-year vesting period The recognized compensation cost corresponds to the
value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 15 equal to the difference hetween the fair value of the shares to be received
and the discounted value of dividends that were not received over the vesting period

The definitive grant of performance shares s subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions Such performance conditions include an
external indicator, therefore following the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code The objectives relating to the performance
conditions are determined by the Supervisory Board upoen proposal by the Governance, Naminating and Human Resources Committee

The objectives relating to the performance conditions are assessed on a two-year penod (three-year penod for plans granted since June 24,
2014) The defimitive grant 1s effective upon the satisfaction of the following performance conditions
e nternal indicators {with a weighting of 70%) for corporate head office, the group’s EBITA margin and for each subsidiary, its
EBITA marg:n, as a function of the cumulative income from fiscal years 2013 and 2014, and
+ external indicators {with a weighting of 30%) performance of Vivendi's share price over two coensecutive trading years,
compared to a basket of indices, the STOXX® Europe 600 Media and the STOXX® Europe 600 Telecommunications
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At the meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee, the Supervisory
Board approved the level of satisfactian of objectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for the performance share plans granted
in 2013 It confirmed that not all the critena that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2014 The final grant of the 2013 performance
share plans represents, depending on the subsidiaries of the group, between 62% and 80% of the oniginal grant Consequently, a portion of
performance shares granted in 2013 will be cancelled

50 bonus share plan

On July 18, 2012, Vivendi granted a 50 bonus share per employee plan for all the group's French subsidraries 727 thousand shares were
1ssued on July 17, 2014 at the end of a two-year vesting period The compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period These shares will anly be available at the end of another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary
shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend: SA, employee shareholders have been entitied to the
dividend and voting rights refating to these shares since July, 17, 2014

2022 Employee stack purchase and leveraged plans

In 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group companies that have j0ined an employee stock purchase and
leveraged plans, was put into place by Vivendi

In 2013, Vivend: made a capital increase reserved for employees {stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allowed substantially all of its
employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivend shares These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restnetrons, may be
subscribed by employees for a maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivend: shares during the 20 trading days
preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board and the subscription price of new shares to 1ssue
The difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the
beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivend applied a discount for non-transferability in respect of the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the
shares during a five-year penod, which 15 deducted from the benefit granted to the employees The value of the subscribed shares s
estimated and fixed at the date of the subseription price for new shares to issue

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2013, the applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2013
Grant date June 28
Subscrigtion price {In euras) 1210
Data at grant date
Share price [in euros) 1455
Discount to face value 16 82%
Expected dividend yield 687%
Risk free imerest rate 119%
S-year interest ratg in fing 608%
Repo rate 036%

Under the employee stock purchase plans, 2,055 thousand shares were subscribed in 2013 at €12 10 per share After taking into account
a 152% discount to the share price on the grant date for non-transferability, the fair value per subscribed share was €0 24 on June 28,
2013

Under the leveraged plans, 9,758 thousand shares were subscribed 1in 2013 After taking into account a discount for non-transferability
measured after the leveraged impact, the fair value per subscribed share on June 28, 2013 was €2 23

The leveraged plans entitles virtually all employees and retirees of Vivend and 1ts French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivend
shares through a reserved share capital increase, whife obtaning a discounted subscription price, and to ultimately recewve the capital gain
{calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan} corresponding to 10 shares for one subscribed share A financial institution
mandated by Vivend: hedges this transaction

In 2013, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €8 million

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted in a capital increase (including 1ssue premium) with an aggregate value of €149 millien on July
25,2013
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2023 Cash-settled instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specific instruments to its US resident managers and employees, with economic features similar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settled in cash onty The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 1s initially estimated as of the grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested nights at each such reporting date All of the rnights for these plans were
definstively vested as of Apnl 2010

Stock appreciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficiaries thereof ta receive the appreciation in the value of the Vivend share price, they are known as
“stock appreciation nights” {SAR) which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the beneficiaries will receive a
cash payment upon exercise of therr nghts based on the Vivend: share price equal to the difference between the Vivend: share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their stnike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year penod

As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding SAR was 4,427 thousand (compared to 2,980 thousand as of December 31, 2013} All rights
retated to SAR were vested and their aggregate intninsic value amounted to $6 million As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amount
accrued for these instruments was non-significant

203 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are
awarded phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation nights whose value s intended to reftect the value of UMG These units are
simply account units and do not represent an actual ownership interest in either UMG or Vivend The equity units are notionat grants of
equity that will be payable in cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or earlier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation rights
are essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the term

Payouts under the plan generally coincide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upen third party valuations While the participants’ rights vest at the end of a fixed vesting period,
compensation expense (s recognized over the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense Is recognized based
on the portign of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropriate grant date model in
accordance with [FAS 2

Duning the third quarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the plan, ended his employment contract The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation rights that were awarded to him were therefore cancelled Consequently, the amount previously accrued for
these nghts was reversed (€19 mulhon)

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining amount accrued under these arrangements was €12 milben {€26 million as of December 31,
2013} No payments have been made to date
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Note21  Borrowings and other financial liabilities
Note December 31 2014 December 31,2013
{in muthions of euros} Total Long term Shart-term Total Long term Short term
Bonds ni 1950 1950 7827 6,633 1194
Bank credit facilties (drawn confirmed) N2 - - 2075 2,04 61
Commercial paper tssued - 1906 - 1,906
Bank overdrafts 168 168 143 - 143
Accrued interest to be paid 7 - 7 186 - 186
Other 54 5 49 13 53 20
Nominal value of borrowings 2,199 1,955 244 12210 8.700 3510
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting 28 28 - 8 8
Commitments to puschase non-controting interests 87 79 8 22 22 -
Derivatve financial instruments 2 33 12 21 26 7 19
Borrowings and other financial habiliies 2347 2,014 13 12,266 8.737 3529
211 Bonds
Intarest rate (%) December Maturing during the following penods December
Matury k1] After 3
i multions of euros) norwnal - effectve i 2014 05 2016 2017 2018 2019 8 2013
€750 enithon (March 2010} 4 000% 415% Mar 17 750 750 - 750
€700 mullion (December 2009) 4875%  495% Dec 193 00 - - - 700 - 700
€500 million {December Z003) 4250%  439% Dec-16 500 500 500
€300emillion  SFR {July 2009} 5000% 505% Jul 14 - - 300
€1 120 muliion (January 2009} 7750% 7 69% Jan 14 - {a) - - 894
Bonds without make-whole option 1950 500 750 - 700 . 3144
€750 eitlion (July 2013) 2315%  251% Jan 19 - 750
£700 million December 2012) 2 500% 265% Jan 20 - 700
$650 million {April 2012) 3450%  356% Jan 18 - 69
$300 mitlson Lapri| 2082) 4750% 491% Apr 22 - 189
€1 250 muthion {January 2412} 4125% 43% Jul 17 - 1250
€500 million (Nevember 2011) 4875%  500% Nov 18 - - 500
£1 050 million {July 2011) 4 750% 467% Jul 21 - - 1050
$700 milhan (April 2008} 6629%  635% Apr-18 - - 175
Bonds with make-whole option (b} - - - - 4,683
Nominal valze of bonds 1,950 - 500 750 - 700 - 1827

a  Redemption at matunty in January 2014 of the 7 75% bond 1ssued in January 2009 for €894 mill:on

b Vwendi aliecated a portion of the SFR sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its ewro and US dollar
denominated bonds with 8 make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4,250 million and $595 million
(€420 mulbon} This transaction, completed in December 2014, resulted in a premium payment of €642 million (net of gains on interest
rate nisk hedging) in addition to the principal amount of €4,670 million

The bonds denominated in euros are histed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Bonds 'ssued by the group contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment {pari-passu
ranking} In addition, bonds 1ssued by Vivend: SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a charge n control tnigger if, as a result of
any such event, the fong-term rating of Vivendi SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BB8B-)

21.2 Bank credit facilities

On November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vwendi cancelled all of its existing bank credit facilities
for €7 1 bulhon and set up a new €2 billhon bank credit facility, matuning in five years {2019) and with two one year renewal options As of

December 31, 2014, this credst factlity was undrawn

The €2 billion bank credit faciity contains customary provisions refating to events of default and covenants relating to negative pledge,
divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivend: SA 1s required to comply with a Proportionate Financ:al
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Net Debt® to EBITDA® financiat covenant over a 12 month rolling period not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loan Non-compliance with
this covenant could result 1 the early redemption of the facility (f 1t were drawn, or its cancellation As of Decemnber 31, 2014, Vivendi SA
was in compliance with its financial covenant

The renewal of Vivendi SA’s confirmed bank credit facility when 1t 1s drawn 1S contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain representations
regarding 1ts abihity to comply with its inancial ebligations with respect to loan contracts

In addition, on March 4, 2013, a fetter of credit for €975 million, maturing in March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Note 26} This letter of credit 1s guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 intemational banks with
which Vivend! signed a Re:mbursement Agreement that inciudes an undertaking by Vivend: to retmburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €975 millron in an escrow account This cash deposit could be used in prionty against a claim made
against Vivendi, If any, and If the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which sigmificantly reduced the letter of
credit's financing cost, resulted in a €975 mitlion decrease in the group’s Net Cash Positien Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-balance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivendi's Financial Net Debt

213 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by maturity
{in millions of euros) December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
Maturity
<1vyear{a) 244 1% 3510 29%
Between 1 and 2 years 505 23% 588 5%
Between 2 and 3 years 750 34% 1562 13%
Between 3 and 4 years - - 2 065 17%
Between 4 and 5 years 700 2% 1005 8%
> S years - - 3,480 28%
Nominal value of borrowings 219 100% 12210 100%
1 ————

a  Asof December 31, 2014, short-term borrowings {with a matunty of less than one year) primarly included bank overdrafts for €168 miliion As
of December 31, 2013, they manly included commercia! paper issued for €1,906 million {with a 17-day average remaming period), Vivend: SA’s
€894 miton bond, maturing in January 2074, SFR's €300 million bond, maturing in July 2014, and bank overdrafts for €143 million

As of December 31, 2014, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on avaitable medium
term credit lines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was 4 9 years (compared to 4 2 years at year-end 2013}

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in millions of euros) Note December 31 2014 December 31 2013
Fixed interest rate 1,995 81% 7830 64%
Floating interest rate 204 9% 4380 %

Nonwna! value of borrowings before hedging 2,199 100% 12,210 100%

[— E —— 3

Pay-fixed mterest rate swaps 450 450

Fayfloating interest rate swaps {1,450) {2 600)

Net position at fixed intarest rate 222 {1.060) {2.150)

Fixed interest rate 935 45% 5680 7%

Floating interest rate 1,204 55% 6530 53%

Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 219 100% 12210 100%
a—m———t

3 Relates to Ainancial Net Debt as defined by Vivend:
* Refates to EBITDA as defined by Vivend, plus thvidends recewved from unconseiidated compames
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Breakdown by currency

{in mithans of euros}

Euro - EUR
US doflar - USD
Qther {of which BAL and PLN}
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging

Currency swaps USD
Other currency swaps
Nel total of hedging instruments

Euro - EUR
US dollar - USD
Other {of which BRL and PLN)
Nominal value of barrowings efter hedging

214 Credit ratings

As of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December

31, 2014, Vivendr's credit ratings were as follows

Note

222

Fnday February 27 2015

December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
2,162 98% 11396 93%
- 433 4%
37 2% 3 3%
2,199 100% 12210 100%
e  — ———— |
748 1,468
{52) {199)
696 1,269
2,858 130% 12,665 104%
{748} H% {1035) 9%
89 4% 580 5%
2199 100% 12210 100%
—— | e ——

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Outlook
Standard & Poar's Long-term corporate debt B8B
Short-term corporate debt A2 Positive
Senior unsecured debt Bes
Moody's Long-term senior unsecured debt Baaz Stable
Fitch Ratings Long-term senigr unsecured debt BBB Stable
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Note 22  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
22.1 Fair value of financial instruments
Financial instruments, as assets under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position, include financial assets measured at fair value and at
historical cost, trade accounts receivable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents As liabilities, they include bonds and bank credit
facilities, other financial iabilities (including commvtments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and

other non-current habulires In addition, financial instruments include dervative instruments (assets or habilities)

Accounting category and fair value of financial instruments

December 31 2014 December 31, 2013
Carryin Carryin
(in milions of euros) Note varl‘lfjeg Fairvalue varltljeg Fair value
Assets
Available-for-sale securities 4681 4,881 360 350
Derwvative financial instruments 139 133 126 126
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 13 5 )
Financial assets at amortized cost 1160 1160 208 208
Financial assets 14 6193 6,193 699 699
Trade accounts receivable and other at amortized cost 15 1983 1983 4898 4898
Cash 240 na 525 na
Term depostts and mterest-bearing current accounts 1,651 na 470 na
uerrs 4754 4754 45 46
Cash and cash equivalents 16 5845 4,754 1041 [t
Liabilies
Borrowngs, at amortrzed cost 2227 2483 12218 12721
Derivative financial instruments 33 33 26 26
Commutments to purchase non-controlling interests 87 a7 22 27
Borrowings and other financial liabihtues 21 2347 2603 12,266 12769
QOther non-current kiabihities, at amoruzed cost 2 121 757 757
Trade accounts payable and other at amortized cost 15 5306 5306 10,416 10,415

na not applicable

Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables show the fair value method of financial instruments according to the three following levels
Leve! 1 far value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
Level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data (other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and
Level 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included in the following tables

December 31 2014

{1n milkons of euros) Note Total Level t Leval 2 Lavel 3
Assets

Avallable-for-sale secunities (a) 14 4881 4,676 162 43
Desrvative financial snstruments 222 13% . 139 -
Other financial assets at fai value through profit or loss 13 g - 8
ucits 16 4754 4,754

Liabitities

Commutments to purchase non-controlling interests 87 - - 87
Denvative financial instruments 222 33 - 3 -
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December 31 2013

{in millions of euros) Note Total Level { Level 2 " Level 3
Assets

Available-for-sale secunties 14 360 - 304 56
Derwative financial instruments 222 126 - 126 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 5 -

UCITS 16 48 45

Liabilities

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 22 - - 22
Derrvative financial instruments 222 26 - Vi)

a  Asof December 31, 2014, avallable-for-sale securities pnmarily included securities held by Vivendh, valued on stock market price at that
date an interest in SFR - Numericable for €3,987 million and an interest in Activision Blizzard for €689 million

In 2014 and 2013, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2014 and Becember 31, 2013, financial instruments measured at level 3 fair value did not include any significant amount

222 Management of financial risks

As part of 1ts business, Vivend: 1s exposed to several types of financial risks market risks, credit nisks, counterparty nsks, as well as hguidity
risks Market risks notably mclude interest rate risks, foreign currency risks and equity market value risks Vivendi's Financing and Treasury
Department centrally manages financial risks for the group and its subsidiaries, reperting directly to Vivend:'s Chief Financial Officer The
Department has the necessary expertise, resources {notably technical resources), and information systems for this purpose The Treasury
Committee monitors, on a bi-monthly basis, the liquidity positions in all busingss units and the exposure to main financial nisks, in particular
counterparty nsk, equity market value nsks as well as foreign currency risks and interest rate nsks Finally, short- and long-term financing
activities are performed at the group’s headguarters and are subject to the prior approval of the Management Board and Supervisory Board,
In accordance with the provisions of their Internal Regulations

As of December 31, 2014, the financial position of Vivendi may be summed up as follows

- due to the sale of B8% of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard i October 2013, the sale of Maroc Telecom i May 2014 and
mainly the sale of SFR in November 2014, Vivend has a Net Cash Position of €4 6 billion, of which €6 8 billion in cash and cash
equivalents and €2 2 billion in gross financial debt, pnmanly in bonds for €2 0 billion Vivend: has a bank credit facility available
for €2 0 bilhon, undrawn as of December 31, 2014,

- Vivendi held a portfolio of quoted and unquoted minority interests, notably Numericable — SFR, Activision Blizzard and TVN in
Poland, as well as at UMG (Spotify, Vevo, Deezer), which represented an aggregate market value of approximately €5 1 billion
(before taxes) as of December 31, 2014, and

- as part of the current appeals in connection with Liberty Media Corporation and securities class action htigations i the United
States, Vivendi put into place cash guarantee deposits for an aggregate amount of approximately €1 bilhion

In addition and as a reminder, once the sale of GVT has been completed (expected during the second quarter of 2015}, Vivendi's portfoho of
secunties will increase with the minonty interests it will recesve in Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT} and Telecom Htalia, which represented an
aggregate market value of approximately €2 8 hillion {before taxes) as of August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with
Telefonica)

Derwvative financial instrument vaiues on the Statement of Financiat Position

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

{in miltions of euros} Note  Assets Liabities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate nsk management 2223 75 (12} 88 il

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps - {i2) 7l

Pay-floating interest rate swaps 75 - 88 -
Foresgn currency risk management 224 43 (21 17 {19)
QOther 21 - 21 -
Denvative hinaneial instruments 139 (33) 126 (26}
Deduction of current derivative financial tnstruments {40) 21 {17 19
Non-current denvative finencial instruments 99 {12) 109 [§]]
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2221  Investment nisk and counterparty nsk management

Vivend:'s policy for investments mainly aims to minimize 1ts exposure to counterparty sk Cansequently, Vivendi 1s mainly committed within
highly rated mutual funds and commercial barks, and allocates investments ameng selected banks and limits the amount of each such
Investment

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivalents of Vivendi amounted to £6,845 mitlion, of which €6,524 million 1s held by
Vivendi SA and invested in the following financial institutions with at least an A2/A rating
e €4,754 million in ten UCTIS monetary funds, managed by five management compantes, and
¢ €1,770 million in term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts within eight banks Term depesits with initial maturities
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any time and present an insignificant risk of changing i value

As of December 31, 2014, the average interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0 49%

In addition, Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant nsk of non-recovery of trade accounts recewvable for its business operations
the large Indwidual customer base, the broad vanety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business
operations {manly Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group) enable to minimize the nisk of credit concentration related to trade accounts
receivable

2222 Equity market vatue risk management

Vivendi's cash investment policy prohibits equity investments However, following divestiture or acquisition, Vivend: may hold non-
consolidated nterests as part of an opporturust strategy in more or less long term As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: held shares n the
following listed companies, recognized as "Avarlable-for-sale securities” in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, for an
aggregate amount of €4,676 million

e 97 4million Numericable - SFR shares, 1 e . a 20% interest held following the sale of SFR to Numericable Group on Novernber 27,
2014, valued at €3,987 million as of December 31, 2014 These shares are notably subject to a lock-up provision please refer to
Note 3 1, and

¢ 415 million Activision Blizzard shares valued at €689 million as of December 31, 2014 These shares were subject 10 a lock-up
provision, which matured on January 7, 2015 please refer to Note 3 4

Vivendr 1$ thus exposed to the nsk of fluctuation in the value of these shares As of December 31, 2014, the ynrealized gain with respect to
these shares amounted to €1,015 mullion, directly recogrized in equity An unfavorable and umiform change of 10% i all of these shares
would have a negative impact of €468 million on Vivendi's equity

In addition, Canal+ Group holds 95 milhion shares in TVN (free-to-air TV in Poland) indirectly held by N-Vision and consolidated under the
equity method by Canal+ Group On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and [Tl Group anrounced they were jaintly considenng strategic options
in respect of their interest in TVN {please refer to Note 13}

Finally, as part of the plan to sell GVT, which 1s expected to be completed dunng the second quarter of 2015 (please refer to Note 3 2),
Vivend should receive Telefonica Brasil {VIVO/GVT} and Telecom Itaha shares, valued at £1,830 million and €980 million, respectively, based
on the stock market price and currency exchange rate on August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with Telefonica),
representing an aggregate amount of €2 8 billion

2223 Interestrate nsk management

Vivend:'s interest rate rsk management seeks to reduce (ts net exposure to interest rate increases Therefore, Vivend: uses pay-floating and
pay-fixed interest rate swaps These instruments enable thus the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows related to
interest payments on borrowings

In December 2014, concomitantly with the redemption of the bonds with make-whole option, Vivend: early settled pay-floating interest rate
swaps with a notional amount of £750 million and €400 million As of December 31, 2014, the portfolio of Vivendi's mnterest rate hedging
mstruments included the following swaps

+  pay-fixed interest rate swaps with a notional amount of £450 mullion, maturing in 2017, set up in 2012,

* pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of €450 mill:on, maturing 1n 2017, set up in 2010, and

+  pay-floating nterest rate swaps with a notional amount of €1,000 millien, matuning in 2016, set up in 2011
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December 31 2014

Notional amounts Fair value
After

{in millions of euros} Total 205 2006 2017 ms 208 2019 Assets Liabilities
Pay-fixed Interest rate swaps 450 450 - {12)
Pay flpating interest rate swaps 1 450) {1,000} {450) b -
Net position at fixed interest rate 1,000 (1,000) - {a} ] __12)

kdgwn ning cat f rate hedqing ingtru s

Cash Flow Hedge - )

Fair Value Hedge {1,000 {1 000} 35 -

Economic Hedgng (b} - {a) a4 {12)

December 31 2013

Notional amounts Fair value

Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 After Assets  Liabilities

{in mithions of eurgs) 2018
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 45) 450 - {7
Pay-floating intesess rate swaps (2 600} {1400} (450) {750) a8 -
Net position et fixed nterestrate  (2,150) 1,400 - {a) __ (750} B8 Kt

reakdown nting gategary of rate hedqing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - -
Fair Value Hedge {2,150 {1 400} [750) 46 -
Economic Hedging {b) - (a) 42 {7

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notienal amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed nterest rate swaps for a notional
amount of €450 million, matuning i 2017, qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedging instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39

2224  Foreign currency risk management

Excluding GVT, the group's foreign currency nsk management 1s centralized by Vivendi SA’s Financing and Treasury Department and
primarly seeks to hedge budget exposures {at an 80% level) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities performed in currencies
other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments {at a 100% level), pnmary relating to the acquisition of editonal content
(including sports, audiovisual and film nights) and certain capital expenditures {e g, set-top boxes), realized in currencies other than the euro
Most of the hetging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunty of less than one year Considering the
foreign currency hedging instruments established, an unfavorable and umiform euro change of 1% against all fareign currencies in position
as of December 31, 2014, would have a non signtficant cumulative impact on net eamings {below €1 million} In addition, the group may
hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financia! assets and liabilities Moreover, due to their non-
significant nature, net exposures related to subsidianes’ net working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are
generally not hedged The relevant risks are settled at the end of each month by transiating the amounts into the functional currency of the
relevant operating entities

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars {USD) and British pounds {(GBP) In 2014 and 2013, to hedge agamst a possible
deprecration of its net investment in certain subsidianes in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change i GBP, Vivendi set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notional amount of £832 miltion, or €1,046 milion From an accounting perspective, these hedge mstruments
were considered as net investment hedges
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The following tables present the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered

December 31 20t4

Notional armounts Far vatue
{(m millons of euros) Total UsD PLN GBP Other Assets Liailtigs
Sales against the euro {1233} 152} 156} {1 062) 163} 2 {19}
Purchases against the eura 1.808 7 51 1020 120 40 {2)
Other 59 1 {60) 1 .
675 724 (5} {a1) {3) 43 21)
reakdgwn by accounting ¢ate, of foreign currengy hedging instrumen
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro {&7) {9 {45) {2) m 2 {1}
Purchases against the euro Kicd 33 - - 2 -
Dther - - - - -
{34) 24 (45} (2) {1} 4 {1
Fair Vatue Hedge
Sales against the euro (B8) 143) (1R H {14} - [
Purchases aganst the euro 275 275 - - 14 -
Other 3 - 1 4]
20 235 {11} {13} 4) L] 1]
Net Investment Hedge
Salas agamst the euro {1 046) - {1046) {a} - (17}
Puechases against the eura - -
COther - - _ -
11,046} - - {1.046) - - an
Economsic Hedging (b}
Sales aganst the eura (52} - {52 -
Puschases aganst the euro 1600 4019 5t 1020 120 4 12}
Other - 56 - {56} 1
1548 465 1| 1020 12 25 2}
December 31 2013
Notianal amounts Fair value
[in milfions of euros) Total 1JSD PLN GBP Qther Assats Liabehtres
Sales aganst the euro (1060} {49) (1085} (834) 72} 2 {10
Purchases agamst the eusd 2329 1330 4l 868 90 1 7
Other - 187 81} {4 {102} 4 (2)
1268 1,468 {165) 50 {84) [ [iE]

Breakdown by acgounting categary of forgign currency hedging instrument

Cash Flow Hedge
Sales aganst the ewro {713} 11 [L¥4) o (13) - -
Puschases against the euro 85 85 1 {1
Other - 169 75 {93) 4 (2)
12 242 {1 (] (106) 5 {3)
Fair Valve Hedge
Sales against tha eurg {93} (38) 54 1) 1 2
Purchases against the eurc 450 432 18 - (6}
Other 8 {6) i4) 2 -
352 40 51 10 2 1 (8)
Net Investment Hedge
Sales aganst the euro {823} {823) {a) - . 2]}
Purchases against the euro - -
Other - - -
(823} - - (823) - - L)
Economic Hedging (b}
Sales against the euro {71} (12) - {59] 1 -
Purchases aganst the euro 1794 813 2 870 90 10 -
Other - 1 - - {11} -
1,13 B24 9 870 20 1 .

a  Relates to the hedge of the net mvestment i certain subsidianies w the Umited Kingdom for a notional amount of £832 mullion as of
December 31, 2014 {F692 mullion as of December 31, 2013)

b The economic hedging instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39
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Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses (cash pooling) of all contralled entities {a} that are not subject to local regutations restricting the

transfer of financial assets or {b) that are not subject to other contractual agreements

As of December 31, 2014, the future undiscontinued cash flows related to borrowings and other financial habihities amounted to
€2.623 million {compared to a carrying value of €2,347 million) and are presented in Note 25 1 within the group’s contractual mimmum

future payments

As of February 11, 2015, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its ¢ash and cash equivalents, as well as
the amounts available through its current bank credit facility will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital expenditures,
service its debt, pay its income taxes, dvidends and share repurchases, If any, as well as to fund :ts iInvestment projects, if any. for the next

12 months

Note23 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

231 Adjustments

Year ended December 31,
[in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Items related to operating actities with no cash impact
Amortzation and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 4 M 666
Change i provision net {125) (72}
Other non-cash rtems from EBIT i 2
Other
Other income from EBIT 4 (203 (88}
Other charges from EBIT 4 0 50
Proceeds from sales of property, plant equipment and intangible assets 2 3 3
Adjustments wr 557

232 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of its interest in SFR to Numencable and recewed €13 166 bilhon in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts This 20% interest 1n
Numericable - SFR was valued at the stock market's price on November 27, 2014 (€33 315 per share), or £3,244 million As of December 31,
2014, the value of this interest in Vivendt's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position amounted to €3,987 midlion {please refer to Note

31
In 2014, there was no significant financing activity with no cash impact

In 2013, there was no significant investing or financing activity with no ¢cash impact
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Note 24  Transactions with related parties

241 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Shareholders” Meeting notably appomted three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivendr's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Belloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachs as Vice-Chatman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, as Henorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Daniel Camus as Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr
Phulippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committee

{On June 24, 2014, the Supervisory Board also appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s compnsed of Messrs Arnaud de
Puyfontaine, whao serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe, and Stéphane Roussel

The Supervisory Beard 1s currently compnised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative

Compensation of corporate officers

* The current members of the Management Board received, n respect of their position as Corporate officers in 2014, a fixed
compensation of €16 mllion and, except for «ts Chairman, extraordinary compensation of €06 million hnked to the proper
mplementation of the divestiture of SFA, previously granted in respect of their position as Corporate officers and paid in respect of
their current position The vanabte compensation with respect to 2014 will be paid in 2015 for an aggregate amount of
€2 2 millton, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2016

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr Amaud de Puyfontaine, renounced his employment contract At the General
Shareholders” Meeting to be held on April 17, 2015, a proposal will be made 10 grant him a contractual severance package in the
event of forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions

In addttion, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board in office untit June 24, 2014 received a fixed and
var:able compensation in 2014 for an aggregate amount of €2 1 million, and the vanable compensation of £1 0 million with respect
to 2013, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 21, 2014

In 2013, the members of the Management Board in office recewved a fixed and vanable compensation with respect to 2012 for an
aggregate amount of €2 3 million In addition, the members of the Management Board n office until June 28, 2012 received in
2013 the prorated vanable compensation component with respect to 2012, as approved by the Supenvisory Board on February 22,
2013, for an aggregate amaount of €4 & million {excluding any severance payments)

+ The aggregate charge recorded by the group with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans (performance shares,
stock options, and employee stock purchase plan} granted to the members of the Management Board, in office on the grant date,
amounted to €2 million in 2014 {compared to €2 million i 2013)

» The amount of net pension obhigations toward the current members of the Management Board amounted to €5 2 mullion as of
December 31, 2014 On June 24, 2014, the former Chairman of the Management Board exercised right pension benefits after
23 years of service within the group and a debit on plan assets was recorded for €3 4 million

« The amount of the current Chaiman of the Supervisory Board's compensation s €400,000 per year, subject to the same
performance conditions as the members of the Management Board On February 27, 2015, the Supervisory Board approved the
lsvel of satisfaction of objectives and decided to set the compensation of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board at
€207,778 for the per:od from June 24 to December 31, 2014

+ The fixed compensation paid to the Chaiman of the Supervisory Board in office until June 24, 2014 amounted to €338,333 n pro-
rata temponis {compared to €700,000 paid in 2013}

« The aggregate amount of directors’ fees paid to the members of the Supervisory Board with respect to 2014 was €1 1 milhon
(€1 Z million wath respect to 2013) In addition, at its meeting held on Aprit 4 and 5, 2014, the Supervisory Board decided to award
additional compensation of £130,000 to members of the ad hoc Commuttee, owing to the workload due to its mandate and the high
quakty of the work they had contributed

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detailed description of the compensation policy and the cempensation and benefits of corporate
officers of Vivendi SA, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code, as amended n June 2013
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242 Other related parties i

Excluding corporate officers, Vivendi’'s main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or jomnt
control, and companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence (please refer to Note 27 for a list of its main subsidianes, fully
consolidated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controlling interests that exercise significant influence as of December 31,
2014 on group affiliates i e, TVN, which owns 32% of nc+ {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group) as well as corporate officers of the group and its
related subsidiaries, in particular Havas Group and Bolloré Group

Excluding the following transact:ons with related parties, there are no transacttons between Vivend:, Havas Group and 8olloré Group and
their corporate officers

{in millions of guros} 2014 2013
Assets
Trade accounts recevable and other 32 35
Of which Havas H 15
Liabthities
Trade accounts payable and other 12 2
Of which Havas 5 H
Statement of eamings
Operating income 100 g8
Of which Havas z f
Operating expenses (72} {70)
Of which Havas {74 {24
Bolloré {5 7]
Contractual chligations, net off balance sheet 66 83
Advernsing transactions
Of which Advertising sales realized via Havas' agencies 89 88
Med)a costs realized via Havas' agencies (62} {62}

Some subsidiaries of Havas Group render operating services to Vivendi and its subsidianies under arm’s length terms
Regarding Canal+ Group
- as part of advertising campasgns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions through media space with Canal+
Group for an aggregate amount of €89 million m 2014 (€88 million in 2013},
- as part of advertising campaigns developed for Canal+, Canalsat, and Canalplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
main media companies through Havas Group and its med:a spaces for £62 million 1in 2014 (€62 million in 2013),
- transactions excluding medra, praduction, broadcast rights and fees were completed by Havas Group and its subsidianies for
€9 mullion in 2014, and
- Havas Group and its subsidianes developed and designed advertising campaigns in favor of Canal+ Group for €13 million in
2014

In addition, Havas and Universal Music Group {UMG]) announced the following agreements
- on September 29, 2014 digital brand integrations in select UMG music videos by using Mirnad's Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
- onJanuary 5, 2015 formation of Global Music Data Alliance (GMDA) related to consumer’s data
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Note 25 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendr's matenzl contractual abligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operatrons, such as content commitments {please refer to Note 10 2},
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Pesition, including finance leases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as tong-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments,

» commitments related to the group’s consolidation scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or
sale commitments, contingent assets and liabilties subsequent to given or receved commitments related to the divestiture or
acquisition of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to thrd partres over
Vivend!'s assets,

« commitments related to the group’s financing undrawn confirmed bank cred it factlities as well as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and hquidity nisks (please refer to Notes 21 and 22), and

* contingent assets and labihties related to hitigation in which Vivend and/or its subsidiaries are either plaintiff or defendant {please
refer to Note 26}

251 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments
Minsmum futura payments as of December 31 2014 Total minimum future
Tetal Payments due in payments as of
{1n millions of euros} Note 2015 2016-2019 After 2013 December 31,2013
Borrowings and other financial labihties 2623 363 2229 Kl 13967
Content habifires 102 2433 2334 a9 2 2335
Consolidated nt of f 1 position items 5056 2697 21326 n 16,302
Contractual cantent commitments 102 6135 i B96 4180 59 4298
Commercial commitments 2511 1160 kY4 588 247 2209
Operating leases and subleases 2512 640 1 289 270 2700
Items not recorded in the consolidated statement of financial p 7935 2.302 5,057 576 9207
Contractual obligations and commercial commitments 12991 4,999 738 609 25,509
2511 Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2014 Total minsmum future
Total Due In payments as of

{tn millions of euros) 2015 2016- 2019 After 2019 December 31,2013
Satellite transponders 752 118 399 235 686
investment commitrnents 85 55 30 - 1078
Other 510 235 269 16 732
Given commitments 1,347 408 688 -1 2,496
Satellite transponders (187} {B3) {100) {4} {159}
Other - - - {128)
Received commitments (187) {83) {100) {4) (287}
Net total (a) 1,160 375 538 247 2209

a

The decrease n off balance sheet commercial commitments was mainly related to SFR sold on Novemnber 27, 2014, and GVT, whose
sale by Vivendi 1s underway (€939 million and £127 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013)
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2512 0ff balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Mtmimumn future leases as of December 31 2014 Totat - mimmum future
Total Due in leases as of December
{in mithions of euros} 2015 2016 - 2019 After 2019 31,203
Buwidings 652 84 298 20 2,695
Other 6 3 3 - 221
Leases 658 87 3n 270 2916
Buttdings {18) {6} (12) - (216)
Subleases {18) {6) {12) - {216)
Net total {a) 640 1] 29 270 2,700
59 </t

a  The decrease m the amount of off balance sheet operating leases and subleases was mainly related to SFR sold on November 27,
2014, and GVT, whose sale by Vivendi 1s underway (€1,790 million and €451 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013}

25.2 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref |Context Characteristics {rmure and amnunt)
HEB GV e R C oMM IO IS S B g e A ST e W5 3
Indivdual nghts to traiming for French employees Approumately 0 4 million hours (3 6 milhon heurs as of December 31,2013} -

Gbligations in connection with pension plans and post retirement benefits|Please refer to Note 19 -
Cumulated amount of €93 mrilron (compared 0 5155 mrllron 8 of December 31 2013) -

Mrnrmum guarantees
Cther guarantees recerved No impact as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €1 milion as of December 31 2013)

a  Vivend grants guarantees i various forms to financial institutions on behalf of its subsidiaries in the course of their operations
b Manly relates to commitments recewved by UMG from third parties i connection with agreements subject to minimum guarantees on
the digital distribution of music nghts

253 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivendi has granted or recewved commitments to purchase or sell
securities

+ (n September 18, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into with Telefonrca, Vivendi committed 1o sell GVT (please refer to Note
32),

& the hquidity nghts related to Vivend:'s interest in Numencable - SFR are described n Note 3 1, and

o the liquidity nghts in respect of the strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN are detailed in Note 25 5 below

Vivend! and 1ts subsidianies have granted or receved purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affihates and unconsolidated
Investments
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divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ref |Context Characteristics (nature and amount) Expiry
[ ~# JContiigent linbilties- . .~ - 5. i 5 K LedERM o e smbcmVate m L I B
(a) [Acquisition of Bollos§ Group s channels (September 2012} Commitments undestaken in connection with the authonzanon of the acquisition with
the French Campetiion Authonty and 017
- the French Broadcasting Authonty 2015
IMarger of Cydra+ and n platforms {Novembar 2012} Rewiprocal guaranteas in favor of TVN
PLN 1 b:lhen wn the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants and 2015
- PLN 3G0 million in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty
{b) |Canal+ Group s pay-TV activities in France [January 2007 July 2017) New spprova! of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSate!iite subject to compliance wath mjunctions ordered by 07
the French Competiton Authenity
{c} [Dvestture of Canal+ Nordic {October 2003) Distribytion guarantees expired as of December 31 2014 given 1 favor of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadeast | 2014
Holding by & former subsidiary
(d)  [Divestiture of NC Numencable {March 2005) Speciic guarantees capped at €247 nulon {including tax and $ocial nsks) expired as of December 31 2014 20i4
Divastiture of PSG {June 2006) Unlimited specific guarantees 2018
Divesuture of UMG manufactunng and distrbution operations (May 2005) |Various commitments for manufactunng and distibution services ams
{e} INBC Universal transaction {May 2004} end subsequent amendments (2005 |- Breaches of tax representations -
- 2010} Obligation to cover tha Mast Favorad Nation provisions and
- Claims related to remediaf actions on May 11 2014 at the latest 2014
{h  [Drvestture of Sithe (Decamber 2000} Specihic guarantees capped at 3480 millon
{g} |Sale of 1eal estate assets {June 2002} Ayt first ] a5 capped at €150 million in total (tax and decennial guarantaes) 2M7
{h} |Dwestiture of FTC ghares (Decernber 2010} Commitments undartaken :n order ta end litigatton over the share ownership of PTC in Poland
{n} |Sate of Actmiston Blizzard {Oczober 2013) unlimited generat guarantees and
tax guarantees capped at $200 million under certain ciicumstances
Sate of Maroc Telecom group (May 2014) Commitmants undertaken in connection with the sale (ptease refer to Note 3 3)
Sate of SFR {November 2014) Commitments undertaken an connection with the sale (please refer to Note 3 1) -
Other contingent liabilities Cumulated amcunt of 87 million {unchanged comparad to December 31 2013)
{8} |Acquisiion of Boltoré Group s channels (September 2012} Guarantees capped at €120 rilhoa 2017
Acquisition of 40% of N Vision (November 2012) Guaranteas made by tT! cappad at approximately
€28 mitlion for general guarantees expired on May 30 2014 and rajls
€277 million for specific guaranteas (including tax matters frae and full ownership of shares sold
autharizations / approvals for the exercise of the actovity)
Merger of Cyfra+ and n platform {November 2012} Reciprocal guarantaes in favor of TVN
PLN 1 billion in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants 2015
PLN 300 milt:on in the event of a breach of speqific representation or warsanty and
PLN 145 million related to Negvision s unutilizad tax losses carmed forward
Acquisition of Kinowelt (apni Z008) Specific guaranteas notably ¢n film nghts were granted by the sellers
{d) [Dwestiture of NC Numencable (March 2005) €151 million sounter-guarantaed by Orange expiced as of Decermber 31 2014 2014

N1}

Acquisition of EMI Recorded Musig (September 2012} Commitments relating te full pensian abiigations is the Unsted Kingdom assumed by Ciar and
Guarantees relating to losses stemming from taxes and htigation claims in particular thosa related to pension
Jobhgations in the Unuted Kingdom

Oivestiture of Xfera (2003} Guaranteas amaunt to €7 million
Other contingant assets Cumulated ameunt of €86 mutkon {compared to €70 million as of December 31 2013}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and fiabilities descnbed above

a

As part of the French Competition Authority's approvat of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels (renamed D8 and
D17, respectively) on July 23, 2012, Vivend: and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments These commitments provide for restrictions
on the acquisition of nghts for Amencan movies and telewision series from certain Amencan studios and for French movies, the
separate negottation of certain nights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television senies, {imitations on the acquisition by D8 and
D17 of French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of nights to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air channels
through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a five-year period and are renewable once If the French
Competition Authanty. after having performed a competition analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty (Consed! Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the DB shares for
a minumum period of two and a half years

On December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annulled, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Competition
Authority's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and D17, respectively), wiich had been
approved on July 23, 2012 On January 15, 2014, Vivendi and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition
Authority On Apnl 2, 2014, the French Competition Authority reapproved the transaction, subject to compliange with commitments
given by Vivend) and Canal+ Group These commitments are similar to the ones contamned in the previous 2012 authorization except
for an additional commitment relating to the acquisition of broadcasting nghts covenng second and third exhibition windows for
French fiims All commitments are binding for a penod of five years starting July 23, 2012 In 2017, the French Competition Authority
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will have the opportunity to request a renewal of these commitments for the same duration, if deemed necessary, after a new
competitive analysis

On August 30, 2006, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authonized, in accordance with the merger control
reguiations, pursuant to & decision of the French Munster of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group
complymg with certain undertakings for a maximum period of six-years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the
avallability of channels and V0D, which could not exceed five-years

Gn October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authonity opened an enguiry In respect of the implementation of certain undertakings
given by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsateliite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend) and Canal + Group’'s filed motions requesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authonty's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first mot:on, the €30 miflion fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 million Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to
compliance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has rmplemented a number of these injunctions, same since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012 The
insunctions ma:nly focus on
* Acquisition of movie nights
- by limiting the duration of output deals to three years, requinng separate agreements for different types of nights {first pay-TV
window, second pay-TV window, series, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senes — OCS SNC or by adopting measures hmiting 1ts influence
over Orange Cinema Senes — 0CS SNC On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with
injunction 2{b) ordered by the French Competition Authority on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Seres - 0CS
SNC' Board of Directors resigned from their positions As a result, Muluthématiques appointed by letter with an effective
date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to Multithematiques to the Board of Directors of
Orange Cinema Senes - 0CS SNC
o Distribution of pay-TV channels
- by the distnbution of a mimimum number of independent channels, the distrbution of any channel holding premium rights, and
by drafting a model distribution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer,
- by the obligation to promote, In a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving mare than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all its own movie channels distnbuted by Canal+ Group {Ciné+ channels) available to third-party distnbutors
{unbundling)
¢ Video-on-demand (VOD) and subscription video-on-demand (SYOD)
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD rights on a non exclusive basis, and not combining
them with nights purchased for linear distnbution on pay-TV,
- by offering Studiocanal's VOD and SVOD nights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers en Internet Service Providers
platforms
These injunctions are imposed for a period of five-years and are renewable once At the end of the five-year penod, the French
Competition Authority will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions should be kept 1n place if market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these imunctions be lifted or partially or totally
revised Anindependent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authority on September 25, 2012,
will be responsible far monitoring the implementation of the mjunctions

In connection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nerdic in October 2003, Canal+ Group had retained distribution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary These guarantees, which were covered by a counter-guarantes
given by the buyers, expired on December 31, 2014

As part of the divestiture of NC Numercable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantess with a €241 million
cap {including tax and soctal risks) Specific nsks relating to cable networks used by NC Numenicable were tncluded in this maximum
amount and were counter-guaranteed by Orange for up to €151 million As of December 31, 2014, all of these guarantess were
exprred

As part of the NBC Unversal transaction which occurred in May 2004, Vivend: and General Electric (GE) gave certain reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivendi retamed certain liabilities relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivendi and GE undertook to indemmify each ather against losses resulting from, among other things, any breach of their respective
representations, warranties and covenants

Neither party will have any indemnification obligations for losses ansing as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
{1) for any indwidual item where the loss 15 less than $10 million and (11} 1n respect of each individual item where the loss 1s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of alf losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the liable party will be
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required to pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 mullion, but in no event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed
$2,088 million

In addition, Vivend) will have indemnificatson obligations for 50% of every US dollar of loss up to $50 million and for all losses in
excess of $50 million relating to habilit:es ansing out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth in certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of IACI's interest in VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivendi’s commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivend)’s Liability 1s now subject to a de minimis exception of $10 millron and a payment basket of $325 miilion

The representations and warranties given as part of the NBC Universal transaction other than those in respect of authorizaticn,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation had to
be brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of hmitations

The sale of Vivend/'s interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

In connection with the sale of its 49 9% interest in Sithe to Exelon (n December 2000, Vivend: granted customary representations and
warranties Claims, other than those made in relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 million In addition,
claims must exceed $15 millian, except If they relate to foreign subsidiaries or the divestiture of certain electrical stations to Reliant In
February 2000 Some of these warranties expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments still exist and any
potential habilities related to contamination risks will survive for an indefinite penod of time

In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivend granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidianes of Nexity (Nexim 1 to 6) The guarantees are effective until June
30, 2017

On December 14, 2010, Vivend:, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak {Elektnm’s man shareholder) and Elektnim's credrtors, including
the Palish State and Elektrim’s bondholders. entered into vanous agreements to put an end to the litigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa {PTC), a mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivend
notably entered into the following commitments
* Vivend: granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that was capped at €600 mition, which expired m August
2013,
s  Vivend committed to compensate the Law Debenture Trust Company (LDTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first €125 million,
46% between €125 million and £288 million, and 50% thereafter, and
+  Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm’s administrator far the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against it, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

As part of the sale of 88% of Vivend\'s interest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the "Closing Date™},
Vivend, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction
{representations, warranties and covenants] Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard undertoak to indemnify each other against
any losses stemming from any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification is unlimited as to time and amaount

In addrtion, Vivend: has agreed to indemmify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other liabilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co {"Amber”}, the Vivend: subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to penods preceding the Closing Date Such
indemnification s unlimited as to time and amount Tax attnbutes {mamly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by
Activision Blizzard were estimated at mare than $700 mullion, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately
$245 million Vivend: agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect (o these tax attributes, subject
to a cap of $200 miflion imited to taxable years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

On May 22, 2014, in accordance with the agreements entered nto on July 25, 2013, Vivend sold a first tranche of 41 5 million
Activision Blizzard shares, representing 58% interest in this company Fellowing this sale, Vivendi owns a residual interest of
41 5million Activision Blizzard shares, which 1s subject to a lock-up restriction that expired on January 7, 2015 Since this date,
Vivends 15 free to sell its remaming Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Activision Blizzard agreed to file a registration statement prior to each sale window to enable Vivend: to sell the Activision Bhzzard
shares in a public offering

Prior to any sale of Activision Blizzard shares by Vivendi in a market offering that occurs prior to the second anniversary of the Closing
Date (October 11, 2015), Vivendi must notify Activision Blizzard of its intention to sell the shares and Activision Bhizzard may, at its
election, offer to purchase some or all of the shares that Vivend: intends to sell in such market offering Vivand: may accept or decline
such offer at its sole discretion

ASAC Il LP was also subject to a lock-up provision which expired on April 9, 2014

Vivend received guarantees in respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2007 (€71 million), in the event of a favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerning Xfera's tax litigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2062 and 2003 radio spectrum fess These
guarantees nclude a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 muilion
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Several guarantees given in 2014 and during prior years In corngection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the tme
periods or statute of imitations of certain guarantees relating, ameng other things, to employees, environment and tax labilities, in
consideration of share ownership, or given in connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivend:'s knowledge, no matenal claims for sndemnification aganst such liabilities have been made to date

In add:tion, Vivend: regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and Iitigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactions

255 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreements {pnmanly those relating to nc+), Vivend: holds certan rights {such as pre-emptive
nghts and prierity nghts) that give it control over the capital structure of consclidated companies that are partially owned by minority
shareholders Conversely, Vivend has granted similar nghts to these other shareholders in the event that 1t salls its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consohdated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests, Vivend:
and its subsid:anes have given or recewved certain nghts {pre-emptive and other nghts) entiting them to maintain their nghts as shareholder

20% interest in Numericable - SFR

The main terms of the shareholders’ agreement between Altice and Vivend resuiting from Vivendi's interest :n Numericable - SFR are
described in Note 3 1

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN

The key liquidity nghts provided under the strategic partnership formed in November 2012 in selation to tefevision services in Poland are as
follows

- Atthe level of N-Vision

« Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire 1TFs remaining N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time duning the two three-
month pertods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,

e conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option on IT('s interest i N-Vision, IT! has a call option
to acquire Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision, exercisable at any time during the two three-month periods beginning May
30, 2016 and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and betwean May 1, 2018 and June
30, 2018, at the then-prevailing market value, and

e  Canal+ Group and IT] each has the lquidity nght, following the above call option penods, to sell its entire interest n N-
Vision

- Atthe leve! of nc+
e Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in nc+ at market value, which is exercisable dunng the two
three-month penods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 20186,
« if Canal+ Group exercises its call option, Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaining interest in N-Vision, and
e in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has hguidity nghts in the form of an Initial Public
Offering of its interest in nc+

In addition, in compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, 1t 1s stated that some nights and obhigations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders’ agreements (ne+) may be amended or terminated in the event of a change in control of Vivend: or a tender offer
for Vivend) being made These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions

256 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2014, no asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for the benefit of third
partigs

tn addition, the amount of assets of GVT, a discontinued operation, which were pledged or montgaged for the benehit of third parties,
amounted to €183 million as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €128 million as of December 31, 2013} This amount related to assets
pledged with respect to judicial guarantees for vanous litigations

As of December 31, 2013, the amount of assets of SFR, sold en November 27, 2014, which were pfedged or martgaged for the benefit of
third parties amounted to €84 miltion
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Note 26 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi 1s subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as "Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are Iikely to be incurred and when the
abligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the proviston represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivends may, at any time, reassess such nisk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend: for all claims and hitigations amounted to €1,206 million, compared to €1,379 mullion as of December 31, 2013 (please
refer to Note 18}

To the company’s knowledge, there are no Lega! Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company's knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had n the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company's and on its group's financial position, profit, business and praperty, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivend: itigation

Securities Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed aga:nst Vivend), Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consohdate these claims under its junsdiction into & single action entitled /n re Vivendr Universal SA Securities
Litigation

The plantiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securtties
Act of 1933 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communtcations On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consolidated class action surt that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class [“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend {formerfy Vivendi Universal SA) between Gctober 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class cert/fication decision of March 22, 2067, a number of indwviduat cases were fied against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunties class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2008, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury retumed its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivend between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were materially false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10{b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plainuffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misteading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “Iiquidity nsk” which
reached 1ts peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that nerither Mr Jean-Marie Messter nor My Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged nvsstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Paris or New York markets (12 days) during the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrison v National Australia Bank case, that Amencan
securities law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a secunty listed on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunty i the United States ”

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued an February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Momson” decision, confirmed Vivendr's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi’s ordinary shares on the Pans stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivend:'s post-trial
motions challenging the jury’s verdict The Court also dechined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the pfaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circurt Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petitron and dismussed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pans stock exchange
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in a decrsion dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Momson decision, also dismissed the claims
of the individual ptaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Pans stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had unti! August 7, 2013 to file a claim ferm and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These
claims are currently being processed and venified by an independent claims admintstrator and by the parties Vivend: will then have the right
to challenge the ments of these clams On November 10, 2014, at Vivend's intiative, the parties flled a mutuatly agreed upon proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantial portion of the claims
Certain large claims were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivendi continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
thosa clasms On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment

On January 21, 2015, Viverd filed its Notice of Appeal with the Second Cireurt Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivendi's appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivends believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal Vivend: intends to challenge, among ather 1ssues, the plaintiffs’ theones of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge duning the conduct of the trial Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 1 3 1 {Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 (Prowisions} Vivendi made a proviston on December 31, 2009, mn an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivend) might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunities class action litigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court's decision on June 24, 2010 i the Momison case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at £100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivend: rmight have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend) considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it 1s based may regquire further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estmate As s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate is based, because therr disctosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complamt of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Med:a Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed swit against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the Distict Court for the Southem Dhstrict of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivends Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintifs allege that the defendants violated
certain provistons of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the securtties class action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media’s request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securtties class action jury with
respect to Vivendi's hiability {theory of "collatera! estoppel”)

The Ltberty Media jury returned ts verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: hable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contamed in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivend: filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury’s verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tnal

On January 8, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict 1t also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accrung from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the averags rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment n the total amount of €945 million, ncluding pre-judgment snterest, but stayed its execution while it considered
two pending post-tnal motions, which were denied on Febreary 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t believes 1t has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed @ motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment is entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultansously On Aprit 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivendr's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivendi filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these twa cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivend: maintained as of December
31, 2014, the provision in the amount of £945 m:llion recorded as of December 31, 2012
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Trial of Vivendi's Former Officers 1n Pans

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office {Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading infermation regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscat years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivendi joined the proceedings
as a civil panty

The tnal took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Paris Tribunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Pars), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, i which it confirmed the previous recogmition of Vivend: as a civil party Messrs Jean-Mane Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys recewved suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Gullaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages te shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civd parties The former Vivend
Officers as well as some civil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requasted a 20-menth suspended prison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misteading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended pnison sentence and a fine of
€5 miltion for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered 1its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower cniminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the critena for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the conwictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines n the amount of €850,000 {of which €425,000 1s suspended} and €5 million {of which
€2 5 million 15 suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the lower court's order for the payment of damages (€10 per shara) to
certain shareholders and former shareholders of Vivend {the “civil action”) With regard to Vivend:, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a civil party to the proceedings, exanerated it from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought agamst it by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court (Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties

LBBW and al against Vivend:

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, Italy, Sweden, Belgium and Austna filed a
complaint against Vivend: with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegediy incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivend in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002 Subsequently, on Aprif 5 and
Apnit 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivendi the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the Brnitish Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivendi on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a "third party® responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence ther alleged holding of the securities

California State Teachers Retirement System and al against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apnil 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivendi and Jean-Marne Mess:er before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and 1ts former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plantitfs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appomnted a "thid party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to ewidence their alleged holding
of the securitres

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , its Beard of Directors, and Vivendi

In August 2013, a dervative action was imitiated in the Los Angeles Superior Court by an individual shareholder against Actvision Blizzard,
Inc ("Activision Blizzard” or the "Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivendi The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivendi's share ownership
in the Company The plaintiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that 1t
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend:

On September 11, 2013, a second denvative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonity shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transactron be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Actiwvision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
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Court of Chancery granted the motion enjointng the closing of the transaction However, on Octaber 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overtumed this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the ments

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action enutled /n Ae
Activision Birzzard Inc Secunties Litigation

On March 14 2014, a similar new action was imibated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated nto the In Re Activision Blizzard Inc Secunties Litigation proceeding currently underway

In Novemnber 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end te this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settiement agreement executed between the parbes was fiied with the Coun for formal approval and then the shareheider notification
pracess commenced The Court 1s expected to approve the settlement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patrimoine to Unibail

Unsbail has called ts indemnification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnmoine {a former subsidiary of Vivendi} in connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices 1n 1998 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patnimoine to indemnify Unibail for a tax Liability ansing
from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On October 31, 2008, the Versailles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court's
ruling, denied all of Unibail's claims and ordered it to reimburse Anjou Patrimoine for all sums paid under the first ruling On November 27,
2008, Unibail appealed against this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2068 ruking of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearning will take place on Apnl 2, 2015

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Yivend)) against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaiming due
pursuant to a builldings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annuiment of the sale following & judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Caurt CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivends delivered a guarantee so as to pursue setttement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the vahdity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court issued a decision setting
asida the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Beriin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regtonal Berlin Court in Apnil 2009, which decided in
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invahidity of the reasoring of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision ts now final In parailel, FIG filed a second claim for additional damages in the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 Gn June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of €3 9 million together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Telefonica against Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP {now Telefonica Brazil), filled a claim against Vivend: before the Civil Court of Sdo Paulo (3° Vara Cvel do Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estade de S40 Paule) The company 1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquinng control of
GVT and damages In the amount of 15 million Brazilan reals (currently approximately €4 9 mullion) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Telefonica Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to jurisdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of S8 Paulo to hear a case wwolving parties from Cunitiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confimed on Apri1 4, 2312 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica’s claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendr's responsibility for
Telefonica’s failing to acquire GYT The Court notably highlighted the inherently nsky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreaver, the Court dismissed Vivendi's counterclam for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign cammied out against 1t by Telefomea On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the 5th
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of S3o Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivend) and Telefonica concernmg the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction {which 1s to be
stgned on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT), the case has been suspended

Dynamo against Vivend

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivend: before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(S0 Paulo stock exchange) Accarding to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majonity of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 {the date on which Yivend took contiol of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws prowiding for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 15 crossed (the “poison pill prowision”) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend
Vivend;, noting that this poisan pill prevision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo's allegations The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
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Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, on February 6, 2013, Dynama filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janewro to compel CYM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral tnbunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisttion of GVT by Vivendi This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tribunal could make such an
application On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Jangiro Coust of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision and authorized the provision of
the above-mentioned information solely to the arbitral tribunal, denying Dynamo access to the information

Hedging-Gnffo agamnst Vivend:

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Griffo funds filed a complaint agamst Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {Sao Paulo
Stock Exchange} seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly ncurred due to the condtions under which Vivend completed the
acquisttion of GVT in 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tribunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their mitial briefs The
Hedging-Griffe funds demanded compensation far the difference between the price at which they sold thewr GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi i connection with the tender offer for the GYT shares, pursuant to the “poison pill” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend: believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gniffo funds to sell therr GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend: against Teleforuea was their own decision made i the context of therr management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend It alse denies any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as 1t was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend: or Telefonica

Litigation involving Vivendi subsidianes

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the Group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Pans Tribunat of First Instance fotlowing the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distnbute the TPS channels m Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant 10 a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadeast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In @ ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these repfacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made avalable to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabele Réunion was unsuccessful in its clarms concerming the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabcle Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanious junsdictions have taken the
opportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Reunion a
channel of simitar attractiveness Noncompliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réurion filed a
claim agamnst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre {Tnbunal de grande instance de Nanterre} seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enfarcement having been previously
rejected by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court} On November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded 1ts claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On April 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
legal obligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal agamst this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versaifles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réumion inadmissible Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appeal agaist the Apnl 9, 2013 decision

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réumon filed a complaint aganst Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages

On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Panis Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the farlure of the companies of the Group to fulfill thew contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action On April 29, 2014, the Pans Trbunal of First Instance recognized the
contractual liablity of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quahity of channels made avaitable to Parabole Réunion The Tribunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance

BelN Sports against the National Rughy League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authonty against Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting rights io the "TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority imposed intenm measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be organized Canal+ Group and the Nationat
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Pans Court of Appeal
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On October 9, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal dismussed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the Nationat Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nights to the “TOP 14~ for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed aganst this decision

Action brought hy the French Competitrion Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 8, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orangg, the French Competition Authonty sent Vivend and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused 1ts dominant position n certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend: and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MB, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 18, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certamn other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authonty requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distnbution nghts on channels broadcast by the Group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber opt:c and catch-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group agamst TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 8, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Télévision groups in the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption nghts into co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition  The French Competition Authonty is examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie n the telewision advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promation, having a single
advertising dvision and refusing to promote the D8 channe! during rts launch The French Competition Authority is examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre {Tribunal de grande nstance de Nanterre) by Copie France
who 15 seeking compensatson in respect of external hard dnves used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
external drive used by Canal+ 1s “dedicated” to the set-top boxes and therefore 1t should be treated as an integrated hard drnive Copre France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation is €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7

Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authority about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satellite
subscription called “cards only” {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite decoders,
manutactured and distrnibuted by third parties, including Aston} In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commerciai Court of Paris, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of sateilite subscriptions called “cards only* On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court issued an order denying Aston s requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling In chambers, granted its request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonty renders its decision on the mernits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universa! Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged ant-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Intemet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circiit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was dented They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process 1s underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downrloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class actien complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on line sales of music downloads and master ringtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions
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Capital Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complaint against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copynght infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The trial was held in March 2014, and, on March
18, 2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capitat Records It found the defendants hiable for knowingly allowwng the
unauthonzed content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages i the amount of $41 mullion On Qctober 30, 2014 the
Court confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of $12 2 million The defendants have appealed aganst the
judgment

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc , Stefani Germanotta and Umiversal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte {AKA “Orlan”) filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta (AKA "Lady
Gaga“} and Universal Music France with the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande Instance de Paris) for the alleged copynght
infringement of several of Orlan’s artistic warks

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings. Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clair filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, In¢ and Universal Music France befors
the Panis Tribunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande Instance de Panis) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation involving GVT (discontinued operation)

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

VT, like all other telecommunications operators, 1s party in several Brazilran States to vanous proceedings concerming the apphication of the
“ICMS" tax {/mposto Sober Circulagdo de Mercadonas e Prestagdo de Servigos), which s a tax on operations relating to the ¢irculation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electnicity services

GVT 15 notably a party to liugation i various Brazlan States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply te monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings intiated by GVT, all have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Brazil

The Brazilian tax authorities argue that the assessment of the taxes known as "FUST” (Fundo da Universalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagdes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilian terntory, including in
areas that are not economicatly viable, and "FUNTTEL" (Fundo para Desenvalvimento Tecnolgioce das Telecomumeagies), a federal tax to
finance technological investments In Brazilian telecommunications services, should be based on the company’s gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxatien GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authority from the
federal judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommunications Operators in Brazil Regarding the Application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against all the telecommunications operators in Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as "PIS” (Pragrama de Integragdo Socialht and "CQFINS” {Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Seguridade
Socrah, which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments n
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the histonc operators as GVT operates pursvant to a more flexible license that allows it to
set its own tanffs
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Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2014, approximately 540 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method {compared to
approximately 630 entities as of December 31, 2013}

Vivend) SA.
Groupe Canal+ S.A
Socrété d Edivon de Canal Plus {a)
Multithématiques S A §
Canal+ Overseas SAS
0B
Stuciocznal § A
{Tl Neowsion
TVN
VETV (b
Universal Mesic Group Inc
Unwvarsal Musig Group Heldings Ing
UMG Recordings Inc
Vevo
SiG o4
Unrversal Intarnational Music BV
Universal Music Eatertainment GmbH
Universal Music ELC
Umversal Music France S A S
Univarsal Music Holdings Limsted
EMI Group Wortdwade Holding Lid
Vivend Vitlage
See Tickets
Digrtick
Wengo
Watchever Group S A
Watchever GmbH
Elektnim Telekomunikacja
Disconticued businasses
Global Village Telecom S A [c)
SFR{d)
Maroc Telecom S A (g}

Note

3
3
3
3

C Censoldated, E Equity, na, not applicable

December 31 2014

Dacember 31 2013

Country Actountng Voting Ownership Accounting Voting Ownership
Method Interest Interest Method Interest Intergst

France Parent company Parent company
France c 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
France c 49% 49% c 43% 49%
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 500% 100%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France ™ 100% 100% c i00% 100%
Poland c 51% 5% C 51% 5%
Potand E 45% 75% E 43% 5%
Vigtnam c 3% 49% c 43% 43%
United States c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States E 4% 48% E 47% 47%
France C i00% 106% C 100% 160%
Netherlands C 100% 106% C 100% 100%
Germany c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France 4 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United Kinggom c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United Kingdom C W% 100% c 100% 100%
United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 0% 100% C 106% 100%
Franca c 100% 0% c 100% 95%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Germany C 100% 100% 106% 100%
Poland c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Brazl C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France na c 100% 100%
Morocco na C 53% 53%

a  Viend consohidated Société d'Edition de Canat Plus since (1) Vivendi has majonity control over the board of directoss, (i} no other
sharehaolder or shareholder group 15 in a position to exercise substantive participating rights that would allew them to veto or block
decisions taken by Vivend: and (n} Vivend assumes the majonty of risks and benefits pursuant to an agreement with this company
through Canal+ Distribut:on SA S Canal+ Distribution S A S, wholly-owned by Vivend:. guarantees this company's results in return
for exclusive commercial rights to rts subscniber base

b VSTV (Vietnam Satellte Digital Television Company Limited} is held 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV (the
Vietnamese public telewision company) This company has been consolidated by Vivend given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial contro! over it pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majonty shareholder and pursuant to the

company’s bylaws

¢ OnSeptember 18, 2014, Vivendi entered into a definitive agreement with Telefonica for the sale of GVT

d  On November 27, 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of SFR to Numericable Group

e On May 14, 2014, Vivend| completed the sale of its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group
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Note 28  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivend! SA in 2014 and 2013 to its statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms {including fees related to
discontinued operations 1n 2014 and 2013 at prorate tempons, if any) were as follows

KPMG S A Emst & Young et Autres Total
Amount Perceniage Amount Percentage
(in mullrons of euros) 2014 2013 20t4 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Statutory audit, certification consohidated and
indwidual financial statements audit
Issuer 06 07 10% 10% 07 09 10% 13% 13 16
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 41 42 73% 60% 55 56 75% BO% 98 98
(ther work and services directly related to the
statutory audit
Issuer 05 04 9% 6% 03 4% - 08 04
Fulky consolidated subsid:ares 01 07 2% 10% 05 01 7% 1% 06 08
Subtotal 53 6.0 94% 86% 70 66 96% 95% 123 126
GOther services provided by the network to fully
consohdated subsicianes
Legal, tax and social matters 02 07 3% 10% 02 03 3% 5% 04 10
Other 02 03 3% 4% 01 01 1% 1% 03 04
Subtotal 04 10 6% 14% 03 04 4% 6% 07 14
Total 57 10 100% 100% 7.3 70 100% 100%% 130 1440
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Note29  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivench S A has provided guarantees to the followtng UMG subsicharies, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim exemptions from audit, with respect to fiscal year 2014, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act

20086
Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 03478318
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 03506757
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 718329
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
EGW USD 8107989
EMI OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 403200
EMI{IP} LIMITED 3984464
EMI CATALOGUE INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038313
EMI GROUP AMERICA FINANCE LIMITED 2415597
EMI GROUP DANISH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 2421891
EMI GROUP ELECTRONICS LIMITED 461611
EMI GROUP FINANCE DENMARK LIMITED 2422007
EMI GROUP HOLDINGS (UK) 3158108
EMI GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1407770
EMI GROUP WORLDWIDE 3158106
EMIINVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038307
EMI LIMITED 53317
EMI RECORDED MUSIC {CHILE) LIMITED 07934340
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (ITALY) LIMITED 6420969
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK) LERAITED 6407242
EMI RECORDS GERMANY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420927
EMI RECORDS ITALY HOLDCO LIMITED £420934
EMIRECORDS UK HOLDCO LIMITED 6388809
EMIG 4 LIMITED 3038275
FLUMMANAGEMENT LIMITED 07908238
G RICORDI & CO (LONDON) LIMITED 228233
GLOBE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 05489649
JAYDONE UIMITED 4631083
LOUDCLOTHING COM LIMITED 06854912
MAWLAW 388 LIMITED 3580255
AELENTLESS 2006 LIMITED 3867906
UMG! {ATW) LIMITED 05103127
UNIVERSAL MUSIC (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 859087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS {UK) LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 02037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGB LIMITED 02200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 05092413
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LINMTED 3771282
UNWERSAL, SAG {UBA40) LIMITED 05159521
UNIVERSAL SRG (W A R ) LIMITED 05221402
UNIVERSAL SRG ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 01890289
UNIVERSAL SRG GROUP LIMITED 00284340
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 02698402
UNIVERSAL SRG STUDIOS LIMITED 03050388
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 01862328
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698304
UNIVERSAL/ASLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
VZ MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 03209625
VIRGIN MUSIC GROUP 2259349
VIRGIN RECORDS OVERSEAS LIMITED 335444
VRL 1 LIMITED 3967682
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Note 30 Subsequent events

The significant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 {the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as foliows

e On January 19, 2015, following a call for tenders process carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights refated to all of the National French Rughy Champronship’s “TOP 14" matches These nghis, which include all
seven games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2018,
and

s In February 2015, Vivend: announced the creatton of Vivendi Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Oificer
of Canal+ Group Vivend) Contents will be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content support for music
and visual image, and will manage related investments

Note 31  Adjustment of comparative information

tn comphance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Marac Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivend's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the following
terms

+ Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a resuft, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation, as from the third quarter of 2014 its contnbution to each line of Vivend!'s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as of
December 31, 2014, has been grouped under the lmes “Assets of discontinued businesses” and "Liabilities associated with assets of
discontinued businesses”

+ Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Bhizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and Dctober 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

As a result, the previously published Financial Statements were adjusted

31.1 Adjustments made to the main aggregates of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
The adjustments to data published for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

2014
Three months Three months  Sixmanths ended
{in mullaons of euros} ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30
Earnings before interest and income texes (EBIT} (as previously publishad) 176 260 436
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 far GVT 76 -B1 157
Eamings before interest and income taxes (EBIT} (restated) 100 179 Fafl

The adjustments to data published in the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and only relate to GVT and SFR

2013
Three menths Threemonths S months ended
(in mulhions of euras) ended March 31 _ ended June 30 June 30
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) {as published {a)} 472 1,140
Reclassifications related to the apphcation of IFRS S for GVT -85 -84 - 169
Reclassifications related to the apphcation of IFRS 5 for SFR -3 - 360 -671
Eamings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) (restated) 76 pril 300
2013
Three months Nine months Three months
Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended December December 31
{in millians of euros) 30 30, 31 o
Eamings before interest and income taxes (EBIT} (as published (a)) 610 1,750 {2,185} (235)
Reclassifications related to the application of iFRS § for GVT -90 - 259 - 96 -355
Reclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for SFR =317 - 988 +2415 +1427
Eamings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) {restated) 03 503 134 637

a  Aspublished in the 2013 Financial Report
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Year ended December 31, 2013

Heclassifications
related to
{in milivans of ewros) Pubhshed IFRS 5 {a} Restated
Operating activities
EBIT {435) +1.072 637
Adjustments 4911 - 4,354 557
Content investments, net (148} - {148)
Gross cash provided by operating actmities before income tax pard 4328 -3.262 1,046
(Other changes in net warking capital {308} +344 36
Net cash provided by oparating activnitias before tncome tax pasd 4020 -2938 1082
Income tax pard net 1197} +402 205
Net cash provided by operating activities of centinuing cperations 3823 -2.536 1287
Net cash provided by operating actvinies of discontmued aperations 1,417 + 2,536 3953
Net cash provided by oparating ectivities 5240 - 5240
Investing activitias
Capital expanditures {2 674) +2,396 {278)
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash {43} +1 (42
Investments 1n equity affiliates ' 2} +2 -
Increase in financial assets {106} +4 {65}
Investments (2 825) + 2440 {285)
Proceeds from sales of property plant, equegpment and intangible assets 50 -17 33
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after divested cash 2,148 -9 2739
Disposal of equity affiliates 8 - 8
Decrease in financial assets 127 -3 724
Divastitures 3,533 -29 350
Dividends receved from equity affiliates 3 - 3
Dwidends receved from urconsolidated companies 54 - 5
Neot cash provided by/{usad for) investing ectivitios of continuing operations 755 + 2411 3176
Net cash provided by/(used for} nvesting activities of discontinued operations {1,952) -241 (4 353)
Net cash provided by/{used for) investing activities {1,187) - {1,187)
Financing activitios
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of commen shares in connection with Vivend) SA's share-based
compensation plans 195 - 195
Sales/lpurchases) of Vivend SA's treasury shares - B -
Dividends paid by Vivend: SA to its shareowners {1325} {1325)
Other transacttons with shareowners (1 046) {1046}
Dvidends paid by conselidated compames to thew non-controlling interests 37) +4 133}
Transactions with gharaowners 12213) +4 2209)
Setting up of long-term borrowings and icrease in other long-term financial kabilities 249 -86 2405
Principal payment an long-term barrewings and decrease in other long-term financial labslities (1,823} +13 (1910)
Principal payment on short-term borrawings (5211) +50 {5.161)
(Other changes n shart term barrowings and other financial habilites k1| +5 5
Interest paid, net {528} +262 (266)
Other cash items retated to financial actvities {349) +19 (330)
Transactions on borrowngs and other financial habihities (5,483) + 263 {5.225)
Nat cash providad by/{used for) financing activitias of contimnng operations {7.702) +267 {7.435)
Net cash prowided by/lused for) financing activities of discontinued operations 1,284 - 267 1,017
Net cesh provided byRused for) financing ectivities {6.418) - {6,418)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations (48) +28 20
Foreign currency translatton adjustments of discontinued operations (44) -28 72
Change in cash and cash equivalents (2.457) - (2.457)
Reclassification of cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations (346) {396)
Cash and cesh eguivalents _
At beginrsng of the period S,Bi B 3894
Atend of the penod 1,00 - 1,041

a2 Helates to GVT and SFR {please refer to Note 3)

Financial Report and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014

Vivend: /135



